United States Cirrnit Court of Appreals

For the Second Circuit.

DETECTIVE COMICS, INC.,
Plamtiff-Appellee

3

AGATNST

BRUNS PUBLICATIONS, INC.,, KABLE NEWS
COMRANY, and INTERBOROUGH NEWS CO.,

Defendants- Appellants.

-

;&ON Arresar. F'rom 1teE UNitep StaTes DisTRICT
CoUurT ¥oR THE SoUTHERN DISTRIOT
oF NEW YORK.




INDEFEX,

Statement Under Rule XIII ....................
Subpoena ...
Bill of Complaint ........... ... ... ... ........

Amended Answer of Defendant Bruns Publications,
Inc., to Plaintiff’s Bill of Complaint ........

Answer of Defendant Kable News Company to
Plaintiff’s Bill of Complaint ...............

Answer of Defendant Interborough News Co. to
Plaintiff’s Bill of Complaint ...............

Testimony ........... . i,
OpPIMION . . e
Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law .......
Decree Appealed From ............ ... ... ... ...
Stipulation Attached to Decree ..................
Petition for Appeal ....

-
-
L]
»
L]
L3
»
-
»
.
-
»
-
.
[
*
.
»
-
-
-
*
-
r
.

-
*
-
L
*
*
L
»
*
-
»
-
&*
*
*
»
»
'
*
»
-
]
L
L 3
*

Order Allowing Appeal
Assignment of KErrors ......... ... .. iaL..
Citation on Appeal ............cciiiiiienirnnnns

Statement as to Contents of Record .............

L]

Stipulation as to Record ........ccovienviirenaces
Clerk’s Certificat

T L L T O B O O

PAGE

13

17

20

23
155
162
176
182
183




. INDEX.

1l
TESTIMONY.
WiTNESSES FOR DLAINTIFF.
PAGHE
Jacob 8. Liebowitz: 54
Divect ....- e ces 0
L e
Jerome Siegel: "
Direct . .... e Ceees %4
CTOSE o vveeeormornes e e s 6 4
Re-direct ... P e i oo
B"?’{zis{)g‘!% uuuuuuuuuuuuuuuu F e k 4 B % 1 £ & 3 4 s 3 F ¥ : “« & w3 ¥ @ ¥ 2,
Re-re-direct ... .. .. e e 68
Warren A. Angel:
Direct ..o R 71
Oross ..... s 73
Eﬁ'lﬂ.iréet aaaaaaaaaaaaaaaa P T R I | X v o8 b ¥ B K ¥ ¥ 76
RE-CTOSE o eeuraenn e e 76
Max . Gaines:
Direet ......... SN e .. 127
Cross ...... R e . . 138
Sheldon Mavyer:
Direct ............. e 140
Cross ......... e 141
Harry Donenfeld:
Direet """ L P * . = 2 * P L 143
Cross ............ e e 145
Re-dir
ect L R R PR . # N P s \ \ 151

INDEX,

Wirnesses For DEFENDANTS,

Williamn Hisner:
Direct
Cross ..
Re-direct
Re-cross

---------------

-----------------------

Samuel M, Tger:
Diveet .
Cross

Victor 8, Fox:
Direct ......
Cross
Re-direct ..........
Re-cross . ...

(Recalled) :
Direct ........ .
Cross . .oovvennvn.. e

EXHIBITS.

Pramntirr’s Examirs.”

1 to 11.—Eleven cards received from United States
Copyright Office (received in evidence at p. 27,
fols. 79-80) ..........

12 to 29.—First eleven issues of Action Comies (re-
ceived in evidence at p. 27, fols. 80-81) ......

93.—Copy of magazine called Wonder Comies (re-
ceived in evidence at p. 28, fols. 83-84) ......

24.—Agreement (received in evidence at p. 33, fols.

*Phe exhibits received in evidence are omitted by gtipulation (see
herein).

105

107
109

115
118
124
126

153
154

P 188




) INDEX.

95.—Check, dated March 1, 1938 (received in evi-

dence at p. 33, fols. 98-99) ..... ... ...l
96.—Agreement (received in evidence at p. 35, fols.
103-104) ...l e e
27.—**Superman’’ strip (received in evidence at p.
37, fols. 109-110) .. ... . . . i,
28, —Agreement (received in evidence at p. 37, fols.
110-111) ...... e e e
29 —Sales record (received in evidence at p. 47,
fols. 139-140) . ... . .
30.—Letter, dated June 20, 1934 (received In evi-
dence at p. 66, fols, 197-198) ... ... ..........
31.—Letter, dated October 4, 1934 (received in evi-
dence at p. 66, fols, 197-198) ...... e
32.—Circular (received in evidence at p. 72, fols.
214-215) .. SN
33.—Poster (received in evidence at p. 72, fols.
215-216) ............ e
34¢.—Affidavit (received in evidence at p. 102, fols.
305-306) ............ R
35.—Letter (received in evidence at p. 106, fols.
B18319) oo Cee

36 to 47.—‘Superman’’ strips (received in evidence
at p. 138, fols. 412-413)

48.—Memorandum (received in evidence at p. 139,
fols. 417-418) ..

49. —Check, dated J anuary 3, 1938 (received in evi-
dence at p. 151, fols. 453-454)

L A T T

nnnnnn LB A

*The exhibj
herein).

t8 received in evidence are omitted by stipulation (see p., 189

\\\\

INDEX,

90.-—Check, dated January 5 1933 (receive
dence at p, 152, fols. 454-455)

ol,m(.‘xhleek, dated December 23, 1937 (received in
evidence at p, 152, fols, 455-456)

52.—Check, dated J anuary 10, 1938 (received in evi-
dence at p, 152, fols. 455-456)

03.—Check, dated January 28, 1938 (received in
evidence at p, 153, fols. 457-458)

d in evj.

...............
------------
...............

aaaaaaaaaaaa

DEFENDANTS? Examirs,

A.—Drawing

(received in evidence at p. 144, fols.
431-432)

B.—Drawing (received in evidence at p. 144, fols,
431-432)

*The exhibits re
herein’,

ceived in evidence are omitted by stipulation (see p, 189




Anited States Nistrict Conrt

For 1HE SourmERN Districr or Npw Yonrw

iy
A7

Detective Cowmics, Iwe.,

Plaintiff,
AGAINST

Bruns PusrLications, Inc., KasLe Nrws CoMmPaNy,
and INTERBOROUGH NEWws Co..

Defendants.

0

Statement Under Rule XIII.

The proper styvle of the Court and the title of this
cause i1s shown above.

The suit was commenced on March 16, 1939, by service
of subpoenaes on the defendants, together with copies
of the bill of complaint. An amended answer was filed
by the defendant Bruns Publications, Inc., on April 6,
1939. Answers were filed by the defendants Kable News
Company and Interborough News Co. on April 25, 1939.

The original parties were Detective Comies, Inc., plain-
tiffs, and Bruns Publications, Inc., Kable News Company,
and Interborough News Co., defendants. The parties on
this appeal are the original parties.

The defendants were not arrested and no bail taken
or property attached in this action.

The trial was had on April 6 and April 7, 1939, before
Honorable John M. Woolsey.

No question in this case has been referred to a Com-
missioner or Master or Referee.

The decree appealed from herein was entered on June
16, 1939. There was no interlocutory decrees. An order
allowing an appeal was signed by Honorable Edward A.
Conger, United States District Judge for the Southern
District of New York, on June 20, 1939, and entered on
the same date.




Subpoena.
Tue PRESIDENT OF THE UnrTEp STATES OF AMERICA.

w - \
To Bruxs Pubrications, Ixc., KaBLE News ComMPANY,
axp InTERBOROUGH NEws Co., GREETING!

You ARE HEREBY COMMANDED to appear before the
Judges of the District Court of the United Sta‘?es of
America for the Southern District of New York, in the
Second Cireuit, to answer a bill of complaint exhibited
against you in said Court, in a suit in HEquity by

Derective Comics, Iwc.

and to further do and receive what the said Court shall
have considered in this behalf. And this you are not to
omit under the penalty on you and each of you of Two

Hundred and Fifty Dollars ($250).

Wiryess Honorable John C. Knox, Judge of the Dis-
trict Court of the United States for the Southern District
of New York, at the City of New York, on the 16th day
of March, in the year One Thousand Nine Hundred and
Thirty-nine and of the Independence of the United States

the One Hundred and sixty-third.

CaARLES WEISER,
Clerk.

WEerL, Gorsaan & Manges,
Solicitors,

The defendants are required to file their answer or
other defense in the above cause in the Clerk’s Office on
or before the twentieth day after service hereof excluding
the day of said service; otherwise the bill aforesaid may
be taken pro confesso.

CaarLEs WEISER,
(Seal) _ Clerk.

Bill of Complaint.
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DIsTRIOT oF NEw Yorx,

Index No. ... .— (Civil: 3/58,

0

Detective Comios, Inc,,
Plaintiff,
AGAINST

Bruxs Pusricarions, Iwvc.,, KieLe Nuws Company,
and InterBoroUeH NEWs Co.,
Defendants.

'a)
wr

Derective Comics, Inc., plaintiff above named, files
this bill of complaint and alleges and charges as follows:

1. Plaintiff, Detective Comies, Inec., at all times here-
inafter mentioned was and still is a corporation organ-
1ized and existing under and by virtue of the Laws of
the State of New York, having its principal office and
place of business at No. 480 Lexington Avenue, in the
Borough of Manhattan, City, County and State of New
York within the Southern District of New York, and
was and still is engaged in the business of publishing
magazines for sale to the general public throughout the

United States of America and elsewhere.

2. Upon information and belief, defendant, Bruns
Publications, Inc., at all times hereinafter mentioned was
and still is a corporation organized and existing under and
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Bill of Complant.
of New York, having
and place of business at No. 480 Lex-

il ity, County
. oton Avenue, in the Borough of B{a'llP‘ittail’ C];,s trict of
mgton AYEE o« York within the Southern Dis
¥ " ¥ o Y S B o Ay ’ * -
T St Y()I'k, ﬁﬁd was an b , . s . o 1N
Ne ‘ for sale to the general publi

1shi VAN GE
yublishing magazt " ene
ihe TUnited Statfes of America and elsewhere.

by virtue of the Laws of the State

its principal office

and

3. Tpon information and ‘bel"ief, defeﬂd?}lt, ;iigés
News Company, at all times her:emafter men z'one i
and still 1s & corporation organized am}i eﬁinst‘lng _un 5,1
and by virtue of the Laws of the Stat? fot Ilh%’l()ls and has
and now does regularly engage in business 1 the State‘
of New York and maintains a prineipal office and place 01;
business at Ne. 420 Lexington Avenue, in the Boroug:h t:')i
Manhattan, City, County and State of New York within
the Southern District of New York, and was and still is
engaged in the business of distributing magazines through-
out the United States of America and elsewhere.

4, Upon information and belief, defendant, Inter-
borough News Co., at all times hereinafter mentioned
was and still is a corporation organized and existing under
and by virtue of the Laws of the State of New York, hav-
ing its principal office and place of business at No. 525
West 52nd Street, in the Borough of Manhattan, City,
County and State of New York within the Southern Dis-
trict of New York, and was and still is engaged in the

business of distributing magazines in the Cj
of New York, ¢ City and State

’ 5. This is a suit bron
rights granted under the
upon a periodical and this

ght for infringement of copy-
statutes of the United States
Court has jurisdietion of the

5

Bil of Complaint.

us . a suit in equit
arising under the Copyright Laws of the Uniteq Sic;latez.

6. S'aié{ defendants are inhabitants of and may be
found within the Southern District of New York.

7. Plaintiff was organized for the purpose, among
other things, of carrying on and since its organization haz;
carried on and is now carrying on, the business of writing,
producing, publishing and selling periodicals; that for
these purposes it has caused to be written by its agents
a series of periodicals entitled ‘‘Action Comics’’; that
plaintiff, being an employer for whom said periodicals
were made for hire, is the author and proprietor thereof.

8. Plaintiff, being a corporation organized and ex-
isting under and by virtue of the Laws of the State of
New York, is and was at the time of securing and regis-
tering claim to copyrights in said periodicals, as herein-
after set forth, a citizen of the United States.

9. Said periodicals caused to be written by plaintif,
the author thereof, by its agents as aforesaid, contain a
large amount of matter wholly original with said author
thereof and constitute copyrightable subject matter under
the Laws of the United States. .

~10. Plaintiff did on or about the 18th day of Apr%l,
1938, secure copyright for the June, 1938, issue of said
periodical ‘‘Action Comics’’ by publishing the same zg::,nd
offering the same to the general public with !:he following
notice of copyright, ‘‘Entire contents mpynghj: 1938 by
Detective Comigs, Inc.” inscribed upon the title page;
plaintiff did on or about the 25th day of Mayi. 1938, *se{?lre
copyright for the July, 1938, issue of said periodical

13

14

15
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< v heye Zyishin the same aﬁc.l Oﬁe“-ng
i« Action Cﬂnziﬁsé-(giiréﬁu};ﬂbllie gwith the ff)llawn]lﬁg‘ tlng;sf
e S “j Elgjciﬂré contents copyright 1938 bj{ : iiff did
of G(ipy“gl’?” inscribed upon the title page; piatll right
Comes, Ine. ! 'g}é}tl dav of June, 1938: S,.e(}l]:fe copy g
on O about the Zoth J ? Said pel’}.()dl@ﬁl ¢ Aetion

the August, 1938, 1ssue © ng the same to

for the same and ofterl

et b jﬁbliShing ) . Toht
&Gm;itlaraf g)uhlie with the following notice of copyright,
e ral pub

«Entire contents copyright 1938 by _??tﬁfwgi dci??f{.
Inc.’’ inscribed upon the title page; piaiitl . oht for
the 95th day of July, 1938, secure COPYFIEAL -
about the v o ¢ ‘4 eriodical ¢ Action
the September, 1938, issue ol sa % : b e
Comics’’ by publishing the same and‘ oi‘feru}g the sa !
to the general public with the following notice of copy-
right, ‘‘Entire contents copyright 1938 by ]')ei.:ectl‘ife
(Comics, Ine.,’* inscribed upon the title page; plaintiff did
on or about the 25th day of August, 1938, secure copy-
right for the October, 1938, issue of said periodical
“Action Comics’”” by publishing the same and offering
the same to the general public with the following notice
of copyright, ¢Entire contents copyright 1938 by Detective
Comics, Inc.,’’ inscribed upon the title page; plaintiff
did on or about the 26th day of September, 1938, secure
copyright for the November, 1938, issue of said periodical
‘“Action Comics’” by publishing the same and offering the
same to the general public with the following notice of
copyright, ““‘Entire contents copyright 1938 by Detective
C.omws, Inc.,”” inscribed upon the title page; plaintiff
did on or about the 25th day of October, 1938, secure
?a‘py.rlght fOI: the Decﬁemt{er, 1938, issue of said periodical
Action Comics’’ by publishing the same and offering the
same to the general public with the follow; i
Gﬁfﬁ}’l‘i ht, *‘Enti . owing nofice of
Camief inc ,? ire c?ntents copymght‘ 1938 by Detective
) s 1nseribed upon the title page; plaintiff

7
Bill of Complaint.

did on or about the 25th dav of N

copyright for the January, 157939, is;);(jx?)}f)e;i??fér;g}ml
““Action Comics’’ by publishing the same and oﬁe;icxfl

the same to the general public with the following notice ogf
e?py}'ight, “En.tn'e contents copyright 1938 by Detective
Comics, Ine.,”” inscribed upon the title page; plaintiff did
on or about the 27th day of December, 1938, secure Copy-
right for the February, 1939, issue of said periodical
‘“Action Comics’” by publishing the same and offering
the same to the general public with the following mnotice
of copyright, ‘‘Entire contents copyright 1939 by Detective
Comics, Ine.,”” inseribed upon the title page; plaintiff did
on or about the 25th day of January, 1939, secure copy-
right for the March, 1939 issue of said periodical *“ Action
Comies’’ by publishing the same and offering the same to
the general public with the following notice of copyright,
‘““Eintire contents copyright 1939 by Detective Comies,
Ine.,”” inscribed upon the title page; plaintiff did on or
about the 25th day of February, 1939, secure copyright
for the April, 1939, issne of said periodical ‘‘Action
Comies’’ by publishing the same and offering the same
to the general public with the following notice of copy-

‘right, ‘“‘Entire contents copyright 1939 by Detective

Comics, Ine.,”” inscribed upon the title page.

11. After publication of each of said periodicals with
said notices of copyright as aforesaid, plaintiff duly reg-
istered its claim to copyright in each of said issues of
said periodical ‘‘Action Comics’’ by filing, in respect of
each such issue thereof, with the Register of Capyrigh?g
application therefor, specifying that each issue of said
periodical belongs to subdivision (b) of Section 5 of the
Act of March 4, 1909 and heretofore (in respect of each
of said issues of said periodical) duly deposited in’th%
mail, addressed to the Register of Copyrights, Washing-

19
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Rill of Complamt.

os of the best edition of each

d as aforesaid, which were

ton, D. C., two complete copl
he limits of the United

icsue thereof then publishe

‘ vithin t
ted from type set wit : L
giﬁgdfmm type set therein, and were bound within t

limits of the United States, and paying, ?n ;:espeézt Qij
each such issue of said periodical, to the Register of Lopy

rights the fees required by law.

19. There was duly issued to plaintiff ’under seal of
the Copyright Office and signed byﬁ the Register of Copy-
rights, a certificate of registration in respeet of each such
issue of said periodical, except as hereinafter stated, as

follows:
(a) As to the June, 1938 issue of said periodical:

June 14, 1938—Class B, No. 379787.
(b} As to the July, 1938 issue of said periodical:
June 14, 1938 —Class B, No. 379788.

(¢) As to the August, 1938 issue of said peri-
odical :

July 30, 1938—Class B, No. 385466,

(d) As to the September, 1938 issue of said
periodical :

September 17, 1938—Class B, No. 387907,

ge) As to the October, 1938 issue of said peri-
odical : <

October 27, 1938—(lass B, No. 394784,

f) Ast : ‘
Odi(ga)lg s to the November, 1938 issue of sald peri-

October 27, 1938—(lass B, No. 394886,

9
Bill of Complaint,

() As to the De : ,
Odi(?al: ecember, 1938 igsue of said peri-

December 22, 1938 (Nass B, No. 399214

h) Ast . . .
Odi(e a)l: S to the January, 1939 issue of said peri-

February 7, 1939—(lass B, No. 405349,

as by said certificates, or duly authenticated copies there-
of ‘her;e ready in Court to be produced and -pro;fert of
which 1s hereby made, will more fully and at large appear.

In respect of the February, 1939, March, 1939 and
April, 1939 issues of said periodical, the issuance to plain-
tiff of such certificates of registration is imminent, all re-
quirements of law having been duly complied with by
plaintiff for the issuance thereof in due course.

13. Thereby there was secured to plaintiff, its sue-
cessors and assigns, as provided by law for the first term
of twenty-eight years from the foregoing dates of publica-
tion, the exclusive rights and privileges in and to the
copyrights of each of said issues of said periodical ‘‘Ac-
tion Comics’’ throughout the United States and territories
thereof, including the sole liberty and exclusive right to
print, re-print, publish, copy and vend said copyrighted
periodicals,

14. Since the respective dates of publication of each
of said issues of said periodical as hereinbefore set forth,
said periodicals have been published by ;;)Iaintiff and fill
copies of said periodicals made by plaintiff or under its
authority or license have been printed and bound as §et
forth in paragraph ‘‘11’’ above and that all such copies

25

26

21
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. -th in paragraph
Gioes of gﬂpvright a5 set forth in paragrap
hotices Y
hore the T

107" above. ) -
the time of securing copyrights

thereto as aforesaid, and prior to
ined of, has been and now
tor of the entire right, tiilzle and ‘inte.r..
opyrights of each issue of S‘al.d
»» and of all rights and privi-
herehy and is entitled to sue

15. Plaiﬁtiﬁ‘ Si‘l’liﬁf&
claims

registering ’
e t herein compla

the infringement
i the sole proprietel =
est in and to the 35:1(1 € ‘
periodical v Action Comlcs
lepes granted and secur?d t
fii; infringement thereof.

16, Copies of each of said copyright issues _OJ‘;& said
periodicals each entitled ‘‘Action Commsj ianc}g ot-ﬂt‘ g 111%
fringing periodical entitled ‘‘Wonder (Jormc's , 1ssue 0,
May, 1933, are deposited with the (lerk of this Court
up(;n fhe filing of this bill and plaintiff begs le'ave tf:’ pro-
duce the same upon the hearing or trial of this action or
upon any motion made in the course thereof.

17. After the securing of copyrights as aforesaid
and before the commencement of this action, and without
the consent and against the will of plaintiff and in in-
fringement of said copyrights and in violation of the
rights of plaintiff, defendant Bruns Publications, Ine.,
published or caused to be published and is about to place
upon thff market for sale to the general public throughout
the United States and elsewhere, a periodical entitled

““Wonder Comics”, May, 1939 1ssue, portions of which

WETe copies from plaintiff’s aforementioned copyrighted
geru}dmala. Upon information and belief, Kable News
bgrililééfl:gé alid Interbz}mug:h News Co. have been retained
7, detendant, Bruns Publications, Inc., to distribute said

Dging periodical to dealers thereof for sale to. the

11

Bill of Complaint.

genera} public throughout the United Stat

and said defendants, Kable News Comparf S 8:1 d1l

ough NeWS.CO., are presently in possessioi’ 0‘[fl 1 o
bers .Of copies of said infringing periodieals andarlig X Ilbllm*
f;o (j!_lst}*lbute Or are in the process of distribuiir?o-a ad
infringing periodical to dealers thereof for sale 1 S?}];d
general public throughout the Uniteq States and else\;)heree

All‘ s:a:id aci_:s of all said defendants are in violation of
plaintiff’s rights hereinabove set forth.

d elsewhere

18. Plaintiff has just learned of such infringement
and of the proposed distribution of said infringing ;eriodi-
cal. Said infringing periodical has never before been
published or distributed or sold to the general public
anywhere in the United States or elsewhere and unless
such publication, distribution and sale be forthwith en-
Joined and restrained, plaintiff will suffer irreparable in-
jury and substantial damages.

19. Plaintiff by reason of the foregoing premises
cannot have adequate relief except in a court of equity
and in this Court.

Wazererorg, plaintiff prays

(a) for a decree adjudging plaintiff’s aforesaid
copyrights to be good and valid and owned by
plaintiff and to have been infringed by defendants;

(b) that the defendants, their officers, ag?nts*and
employees and all persons acting under their diree-
tion, and each of them, may be p&‘rpeﬁualﬁ en-
joined and restrained from in any wise infringing
plaintiff’s said copyrights;

(¢) that a preliminary injunction may be gmﬁte?
to plaintiff against defendants to the same purport,

32
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gill of Com plaint.

t as hereinbefore prayed for in

erpetual injunction;

pe decreed to pay .pla'int;’ﬁ
‘ . as may be sustained by plaintiff in

such damages =

o of defendants’ unlawiul a(fts and to
consequence oy over to plaintiff all gains, profits
account and Pay Jerived or realized by defendants

ﬁ'dvagtgges - . g ’1 b . .
?ﬁil hoir :ofringement of plaintiff’s said copy
‘rom  the

rights; | |
(e) that Jefendants be required 1o deliver np on

oath to be impounded during thej pendency of ﬁh}s
gction all coples in their Possesspn or m.lder t.elg
control, infringing plaintiff’s said copymgbts an
to deliver up on oath for destruction all s:ueh
infringing copies and all plates,' mcj]dsf matr}ees
and other means for making such infringing copies;

r and effec
sald P

regard to
(d) that defendants
may

teno

(f) that defendants pay the costs of this action
and that reasonable attorneys’ fees be allowed to
plaintiﬁ’;

(g) that plaintiff have such other, further and

different relief in the premises as the Court may
deem just and proper.

Wem, Gorsaar & Manges,
Solicitors for Plaintiff,
Office & P. 0. Address,
No. 60 East 42nd Street,
Borough of Manhattan,
City of New York.

Solicitor,

(Verified on March 16th, 1939, by Jacob §. Liebowitz,

ecretary and Treasurer of Plaintiff.)
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Amended Answer of Defenda

nt B .
tions, Inc., to Plaintiff’ runs Publicg-

s Bill of Complaint,
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT,

SouTHERN DISTRICT OF New York,

Docket No. ....—Civil: 3/58.

0

Derecrive Comics, Ixc.,

Plaintiff,
AGAINST

Bruxns Pusrications, Invc., Kasre News Company,
and IxterBoroUGH NEWs Co.,
Defendants.

R

The defendant Bruns Publications, Inc., for its amended
answer to plaintiff’s bill of complaint herein, shows:

First: Admits the allegations contained in paragraphs

» * $E1 13 (eep1?
of said bill of complaint marked or numbered *‘17, 27,
EYY LEQYY G677y 4R d “416°°.
s43n’ {;41” «ch? , 6 , 7 , 8 and 16

Sgconp: Denies the allegations contained in pa;mg;x:aphs
of said bill of complaint marked or nambered ‘17" and

“19,,.

Tap: Denies so much of paragraph of gaid bill ;):
complaint numbered ¢¢18’* ag alleges, or fsantau‘lsdt;helﬁt;n-
clusory averment, that said defendant’s periodica

fringes plaintiff’s periodical.

37

38

39
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+ Brums Publications, Inc.,

Defendar of Complaint.

epel f

P information sufficient .to
enies knowledse ® f said bill of complaint

. 0
Ff}ﬁgfﬁ*fasf pgmgraPES b 401177, 41277, 4137,
form & belie pored 97 107, ’
m
rkf:‘d 0 nﬁw
fﬁi” and “197

AND DISTINCT DEFENSE THIS

F L
For 4 pEFENDANT ALLEGES
Lo ,
hat those pm‘tians of plﬁli{l'tlﬁ S Hl&gazllle
Fomm: concerning which infringement 1s al-

. (omies”’ o 1
uz;g;wﬁ fﬁgi susceptible of monopolization under the
leged, are

.t laws, by virtue of the fact that the ideas ex-
wpg;;ghihereiz; 4s well as the form of such expression
pres

were ot original with the author thereof.

Fok 4 SECOND, SEPARATE AND DISTINCT DEFENSE THIS

DEFENDANT ALLEGES:

Srxra : That the comice strip ‘‘The Wonder Man”‘eon-
tained in this defendant’s publication is an entlre‘ly inde-
pendent concept, created Dby this defendant’s artist, W}IO
worked independently of plaintiff’s comic strip and plain-
tiff’s character “Super Man”, and that this defendant’s
said comic strip, or any part thereof, or said character,
“The Wonder Man” were not copied from plaintiff’s
comic strip or character ‘‘Super Man’’, and that defend-
ant’s said comie strip and character ‘‘The Wonder Man”’

do not, therefore, constitute an infringement of plaintiff’s
copyright,

Fog a THIRD, SEPARATE AND DISTINCT DEFENSE THIS
DEFENDANT ALLEGES :

SeventE: Th ‘ ‘ ‘
compi “7H: This defendant denies that, in preparing,

ling and printing its comie strip entitled ¢‘The Won-

15

Amended Answer of Defendan

t L
to Plaintig, Bruns Publzcatwm, Ine.,

Bill of Complaint.
der Man”, or in creating the
known as *“‘The Wonder May’’

the result of plaintiff’s laborg
that its aforesaid aetg

of a resort to, origina

fzentral character thereof
» 1t unfairly nseqd or pirateé
» and this defendant alleges
Were not a substitute for, or in I?eu

| resources or independent creation,

For A FOURTH, SEPARATE AND DISTINCT DEFENSE THIS
DEFENDANT ALLEGES :

KieaTa: Deni ng inti i '
nies having seen plaintiff’s magazine prior

to the conception, origination and publication by this de- 44

fendant of said defendant’s magazine.

For a ¥FIFTH, SEPARATE AND DISTINCT DEFENSE THIS
DEFENDANT ALLEGES:

Ninta: That by reason of plaintiff’s piratical use of
ideas and concepts contained in various publications by
others than the plaintiff, and the consequent infringement
by plaintiff of the copyrights of others, plaintiff is guilty
of inequitable conduct and should not be heard to com-
plain herein against this defendant.

For A sixtH , SEPARATE AND DISTINCT DEFENSE THIS
DEFENDANT ALLEGES!

Tenta: That upon receipt by this defendant of notice
from plaintiff of alleged infringement of copyright‘ or (:f
the alleged appearance of simnilarity between .plami;;zﬂ‘ $
and this defendant’s respective publicatians,.tm;s defend-
ant caused changes to be effected in its pubheatm} S0 as
to remove or discontinue such similarity between 1t§ and
plaintiff’s publications, although this dgfendant bglzev&eg
and still believes, that it had a legal right to prin %1;'
publish the matter which plaintiff alleges to have consti-
tuted an infringement of plaintiff’s copyright herem.

45
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46
Amended Answer of Defendant Bruns Publications, Ine.

to Plawmtiff’s Bill of Complaint.

For A SEVENTH, SEPARATE AND DISTINGT DEFENSE THIS
DEFENDANT ALLEGES:

ELevenTH: That the acts on the part of this defend-
ant of which plaintiff ecomplains herein do not consist of
such a copying of any material or substantial part of
plaintiff’s publication or copyrighted matter as to consti-
tute an infringement of plaintiff’s copyright.

Waererore sald defendant Bruns Publications, Ine.,

47 prays that a decree be entered herein dismissing plain-

tiff’s bill of complaint, together with the costs of this ac-
tion and reasonable counsel fee,

Koenie, Bacaner & Kornia,
Solicitors for Defendant,
Bruns Publications, Inc.,
Office & P. O. Address,
No. 70 Pine Street,
Borough of Manhattan,

City of New York.

RapraEL P. KoENig,
48 Solicitor.

(Verified on April 4, 1939 by Victor S. Fox, President
of Defendant.)

17

Answer of Defendant Kable 49

N
Plaintiff’s Bill of ¢ ¢ws Company to

omplaint.

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

SouTHERN Distrior oF New Yorg

0

Derecrive Cowmics, Ixc.,
Plaintiff,
AGAINST
50
Bruns Pusuications, Inc., Kasie News Compaxy,
and InterBoroucH NEWs Co.,
Defendants.

0
L ¥

Defendant, Kable News Company, by its attorney,
Qamuel A. Fried, answering the complaint herein, re-
spectfully shows to this Court as follows:

First: Denies any knowledge or information §ufﬁeient
to form a belief as to the allegations contained in para-

graphs marked 7, 9, 10, 11, 19, 13, 14, 15 of the complaint, g4

herein.

mation suffi-

Qrconp: Denies any knowledge or infor n suf
contained in

cient to form a belief as to the allegatien;? )
paragraph marked 17 of the complai_nt herein, except ;ggg
this defendant admits that he distmbuted‘the Magy .
issue of ‘‘Wonder Comics”, prior to service of the ¢

plaint herein upon this defendant.

Tairp: Denies upon inf"
every allegation contained in paragr




52

53

o4
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Answer of Defendant Kable News Company to
Plamtiff’s Bill of Complaint.

plaint bherein, except that it admits that the May, 1939
issue of “Wonder Comics”’ is the first issue thereof dis-
tributed by this defendant.

For a FIRST, SEPARATE AND DISTINCT DEFENSE,
DEFENDANT ALLEGES:

Fovrra: Upon information and belief that those por-
tions of complainant’s magazine ‘‘Action Comics’’ con-
cerning which infringement is claimed are not susceptible
of monopolization under the copyright laws, in that the
ideas expressed as well as the form of expression thereof
used in complainant’s said magazine was not original

with the aunthor thereof.

For a SEPARATE, SECOND AND DISTINCT DEFENSE,
DEFENDANT ALLEGES:

Frere: That it admits that it has distributed for sale
the May, 1939 issue of ‘“Wonder Comics’’, published by
the defendant Bruns Publications, Inc., but also denies,
upon information and belief, that its distribution thereof
wag with knowledge of any rights of the plaintiff or with
knowledge of any copyright therein vested in or claimed
by the plaintiff.

For a THIBRD, SEPARATE AND DISTINCT DEFENSE,
DEFENDANT ALLEGES:

Sxrr: Upon information and belief that the defend-

ant Bruns Publications, Ine.’s comic strips of its ‘‘Won-
der-Man’’, are an entirely independent concept created by

said defendant’s artist working independently of the
plaintiff’s comic strips ¢‘Super-Man’’, and that the ‘* Won-
der-Man’’ comic strips were not copied from those of

f
%u
2
?%
%
i
\S‘c
:
%
W
i
%ﬁ
i
b
4
4
o
i
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Answer of Defendant Kaple y
L £

Plaintifs piy o Oom;f Company ¢, 55
4 I *

.

““Super-Man'’
thereof.

» and g th .
' . e}"(}fﬁre
not a
n

DEFENDAN'I‘ ALLEGE% :

SEVENTH : Upon informas:
nies that in Preparing
strip ‘““Wonder-Map ’
Ine., as a substitute f:Jr
resources, or independent

pirated the results of the plaj irly used op 56

| SAMUEL A, Frixp,
Attorney for Defendalit,
Kable News Company,
Office & P. 0. Addvess, o7
291 Broadway,
Borough of Manhattan,

City of New York.
To:

Wzin, GorsmaL & Manges,
Attorneys for Plaintiff,
60 East 42nd Street,
New York City.
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ough News Co.

i AnsWért:fPﬁ ‘;ﬁ’;?:;;;l z;rg:;pliint.

UNITED QTATES DISTRICT COURT,

QouTHERY DISTRICT or NEW YORK,
e
DerecTivE LOMICS, Ixc., ——
AGAINST
59

T A T;“ 4 A X >
Repye PUBLICATIONS, Ixc., Kapre NEws COMPANY,

and INTERBOROUGH NEWS Co.,
Defendants.

— 0

Defendant, Interborough News Co., by its attorney,
Qamuel A. Fried, answering the complaint herein, respect-
fully shows to this Court as follows:

Figst: Denies any knowledge or information sufficient
to form a belief as to the allegations contained in para-

60 iraghs marked 7, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15 of the complaint
erein.

‘ Secoxp: Denies any knowledge or information suffi-
cient to form a belief as to the allegations contained in

paragraph marked 17 of the complaint herein, except

that this defendant ; .
1939 issue of ““31 admite that he distributed the May,

: onder Comies’’ rior to )
complaint herein upon thig defc;ngant service of the

Tamwn: Denies upop
: 0 : .
every allegation ¢ pon information and belief each and

ontained ip paragraph 18 of the com-

e S e o e
3
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Answer of Defendant Interborough News Co. to 61

Plamtiff’s Bill of Complaint.

Pla’mt herein, except that it admits that the May, 1939
1ssue of ‘““Wonder Comies” is the first issne thereof dis-
tributed by this defendant.

For A ¥FIRST, SEPARATE AND DISTINCT DEFENSE, DEFENDANT
ALLEGES:

Fourra: Upon information and belief that those
portions of complainant’s magazine ‘‘Action Comics”
concerning which infringement is claimed are not sus-
ceptible of monopolization under the copyright laws, in
that the ideas expressed as well as the form of expression
thereof used in complainant’s said magazine was not
original with the author thereof.

For A SECOND, SEPARATE AND DISTINCT DEFENSE, DEFENDANT
ALLEGES @

Frerm: That it admits that it has distributed for sale
the May, 1939 issue of ‘‘Wonder Comics’’, published by
the defendant Bruns Publications, Inc, but also denies,
upon information and belief, that its distribution thereof
was with knowledge of any rights of the plaintiff or with

knowledge of any copyright therein vested in or claimed 63

by the plaintiff,

For A THIRD, SEPARATE AND DISTINCT DEFENBE, DEFENDANT
ALLEGES

Qrxrr: Upon information and belief that the defend-
ant Bruns Publications, Ine.’s comic strips of its “Wende}'—
Man’’, are an entirely independent concept created ‘t?y g,a:x’d
defendant’s artist working independently of the plamtlﬁj
comic strips ‘‘Super-Man"’, and that the ««Wonder-Man’’,

62

' £ . 33
comie strips were not copied from those of ¢‘Super-Man’’,

and is therefore not an infringement thereof.
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s Defendant I?Hffﬁ"bﬂ?‘@zigh.EVK;’.?,(),Q Co. to
(}';gzﬁéjz;f;g Bill of Complaint,

ARATE AND PISTINCT DEFENSE, DEFENDANT
SEPARS )

For 4 FOURTH, ALLEGES ;

. Tpon information and belieﬁf .defel'ldant de-
SEVENTH ./P aring, compiling or printing its comje
nies that in prifan“"”the defendant Bruns Publicationg,
strip “\A"&ﬂieg tiute. fz}r, or in lien of a resort to Original
fue, = 2 Sirs 'indepeﬁdent creation, unfairly used op

. 2o . . .
;?j;fg 1;;@ results of the plaintiff’s labor.

64 Ansiwer

WaereropE, this defendax'lt prays for a defzr‘ee dis.
missing the plaintift’s complam.t here.m and requiring the
laintiff to pay the costs of this actl:on al?d that reason.
Ehle attorney’s fee be allowed to this defendant,

65

Yours, ete,,

SAMUEL A. Friep,
Attorney for Defendant,
Interborough News Co.,,
Office & P. Q. Address,
291 Broadway,
Borough of Manhattan,

66
City of New York.

To.

Wen, Gotsaar & Mangrs,
Attorneys fop Plaintiff
Enst 4919 Street,

New York City.

23
67
StenOgl‘apher’s Minutes,
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT,
SOUTHERN Distrior or N Ew Yorxg,
Civ. 3-58
o
DEeTECTIVE Comics, Inc.,
Plaintiff,
AGAINST 68
Bruns PusLicaTiONs, Ixc., KaBLE Nuws CoMpaxy, and
INTERBOROUGE NEWs CoMpany,
Defendants.
Before .—Hox. Joun M, Woorsey,
District Judge.
New York, April 6, 1939;
11:00 A. M.

APPEARANCES:

WEIL, Gorssal & Mances, Esgs., Attorneys for Plaintiff;
Horace S. Manges, Esq., of Counsel.

SamvuelL A. Friep, Esq, Attorney for Defendants Kable
News Company and Interborongh News Company.

KoeN1e, Bacaner & KoeNig, Hsgs, A}ttarneys ford])izﬁg;
ant Bruns; Raphael P. Koenig, Hsq., an

Blum, Esq., of Counsel.

69




24

70 Jacal 8. Lichowite—/lor Plaintiff—Direct.

The Court: I have read your briefs and I received ap
amené&d-answer for the defendant Bruns. There ig yq

oljeetion to that heing filed?

Mr. Manges: No, yvour Honor.
The Court: I understand in a general way what thig

is about. Now, you hetter make your record. There ig
no use having an elaborate opening or anything like that
Make vour record by showing your contracts and show
what y%?ﬁ have got in the way of rights and then we wi])

deal with that guestion.

Jsco 8. Liesowirz, called as a witness on behglf of
the plaintiff, being first duly sworn, testified as follows:

Direct Ezamination by Mr. M anges:

Mr.. Manges: Your Honor, upon consent may I
have it noted upon the record that the correct name

of Kable News (o, Ine., should
Company, with no ‘,‘Inc.’ ’ ¢ read Kable News

-, iage ﬁsnrt: How‘ can that be?
- Manges: Tt is an Ilinoig corporation.

Ezi; :iz 1eW rules, to any of thege things at all
Y21 pleaded and proved. The plaintiff is

Detective (g;
State? 68, Inc, 5 Corporation of New York

Mr. Manges.
nges: Yes, your Honor,

he Court . And
I Manges: 1 aiBruns Publicationg?

T e i,

25
73

Jacob S. Licbowitz—for Plaintiff—Direct.

The Court: Kable News Company—just a proper
name written out in full—is an Illinois corporation?

Mr. Manges: Yes, doing business in New York.

That is conceded.
The Court: And the Interborough News Com-

; pany? .
Mr, Manges: Is a New York corporation.

The Court: Does that have an ‘“‘Ine.”’ on it?
Mr. Manges: No. That is an old name and that
was before the statute. Isn’t that correct, Mr.

Fried?
Mr. Fried: I assume so,
Mr. Manges: I call your Honor’s attention to the

fact that the first six paragraphs of the complaint
are admitted by all the defendants.
The Court: I noticed that.

Q. Mr. Liebowitz, you are secretary and treasurer of
the plaintiff corporation? A. Yes.

Q- And how long have you heen acting in that ca-
pacity? A. Since the date of organization.

The Court: When is that?
The Witness: December 30th, 1936.

- Q And' the company is in what business? A. Publish-
Ing magazines, four comic magazines,

Q. .And Wh«‘ilt are those magazines? A. Action Comices,
iDetectwe Comies, Adventure Comies and More Fun Com-
ics.

Amﬁ;dowhén ?di(ilA your company commence publishing
omics . The first issue was a J 1SSu

Q. What year? A. 193g, e e

Q. Has it been published monthly thereafter

date? A. Yes, up to

74

(k7
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76 Jacob S 7icbawitz—107 Plointiff—Direct,
N {}‘[ L.

Grst issue published on or about

g5 that .
' ﬁ.ﬁ@ was That 18 1"1ght,

April 18th, 19387 A
The Court: The June issue was published in
ﬁf;"éf Witness: Yes, sir; put on sale about April
18th.

The Court: Why was it called the June issue?
The Witness: Magazine dates as a rule are al-

ways post dated. * .
Mr. Manges: I think that is customary in the

tr-;?}f; Court: I know to a certain extent. You
might get April Harpers’ Magazine perhaps on the
25th of March, we will say, just as a guess—I
don’t know what the exact date would be—but it
wounldn’t be two or three months before.

The Witness: I can explain that first issue. We
put that out April 18th and we left it on sale for
about six weeks. The next on-sale date was about
May 25th and thereafter it was published periodi-
cally about that time so there was only a month’s
difference after that time,

The Court: That wag a trial balloon, the first one?
The Witness: Yes.

78

Q. In other words, the J ly i
is that rightt Ay ;& uly issue came out May 25th,

Q. Is not that g £ommon practiee :
e ~ practice in the field of pul
magazines, Mr. Lichowitzf A, Tt i, ¢ field of pulp

Q. I shoy ,_ ‘
the 11 ﬁar‘;:gau these 11 cards and ask you if they are

b 1o o rd8 received by yoy fro th :
the Uni fo JO9uIrom the Copyright Office of
States (handing witness)? A. Yes, they are.

. 4 éz:i they all refer 1o the magazine Action Com-

27

Jacob §. Lic?bawitz-——fw Plai@mjﬁ_,_ Direct 19
v LR i .
Mr. Manges: T offer them in ey
‘Dv | ol 1 evidence,
(Marked Plaintiff’s Exhibits 1 to 11 in evidene )
e,

Q. I show you these 11 magazines
of this court and ask you if they repr
sues respectively of the magas
by the plaintiff?

taken from the fileg

‘ .esent the first 11 is.
me Action Comieg published

The Court: That goes from July to when?

MI-,'Manges: From the July, 1938, issue to and
including the April, 1939, issue. 80

A. That is right.

The Court: Should not that be 109

The Witness: Eleven. It is including the April
issue.

Mr. Manges: If we included May we would have
12, a complete year.

The Court: Your first issue was the June issue?

Mr. Manges: Yes.

(Marked Plaintiff’s Exhibits 12 to 22, inelusive,

in evidence.) .
8

Q. Mr. Liebowitz, were all copies of the Ju;ne issue
identical and all eopies of the July issue identical, and
so forth? A. Yes.

The Court: All copies published of each issue

were the same?

Mr. Manges: Yes.
The Court: The same in pictures; th
ter press, and everything?

o same in let-

Q. That is correct, Mr. Liebowitz! A, Yes.
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82 Tacob S. L?’E&@wﬂ'z—-«fﬁr Plaintiff—Direct.
pies of all the issues printed from type

od States? A. Yes.
1} the copies bound? A. In New York

Q. Were all co]
cet within the Unit

Q. Where were a

City. the $2.00 copyright fee paid by the plain-

. And was -
tiff ?n each of the eleven instances? A. Yes.

Mr. Manges: Will counsel stipulate that this is
the magazine of the defendant Bruns Publicationg?

Mr. Fried: Yes.
The Court: Do all of you agree to that?

Mr. Koenig: Yes, sir.

Mr. Manges: I offer this magazine in evidence
called Wonder Comies, being the copy produced
from the file of this court.

(Marked Plaintiff’s Exhibit 23 in evidence.)

Mr. Manges: May the record show that that was
the copy to whieh I referred when counsel for the
defendants conceded that that is the magazine
Wonder Comics published by the defendant Bruns
Publications?

The Court: When was that published?

Mr. Manges: This is marked May, 1939.

The Court: Is there any stipulation that that is
the first one they published?

Mr, M&ng:ﬁs: That is conceded.

Mr. Koenig: Yes, your Honor, that is conceded.

Mr. .. : :
Marzh‘Manges, It is the May issue published in

84

Q. Mr. Liebowitz, the
?mtgr of these eleve
n evidence? A. Vg,

Pla:intiﬂ" is still the sole pro-
I copyrights that have been offered

29

Jaco

Q. NOW, with respect to ti .

* * ’ ]e Str i P b1 b

contained in each of the elevey is;gegf uljf?lﬁals, s that
1AL L,

Q. And %t jlss always the first strip? A, Yes
Q. And it is always 13 pages? A N alway

instance I think it was cut down to 9 o ot always. TIn one

ages.

‘The Cour't: It is thfe leading strip in your maga-
‘z‘lxée each tu,fne; that is, the real protagonist is the
wuperman’ against the “Wonder " '
P man’’ here, is

Mr. Manges: That is it exactly,

tl‘he Court: That is as I gather it from your
briefs.

Q. Is the copy of ‘‘Superman’ written for the plain-
tiff each month by Mr. Siegel? A. Yes.

The Court: Who is Mr, Siegel?

Mr. Manges: He is the author,

The Court: What is his first name?

The Witness: Jerome Siegel.

The Court: He is an employee of your company?
The Witness: He is.

Q. You have a contract with Mr. Siegel for this copy,
have you not? A. We have a contract, yes.

Q. Now will you tell us how the ‘‘Superman’’ feature
came to you? A. Well, when we contemplated a proposed
publication of a new magazine we were looking around
for some features. Onme of the features submitted was

this ¢‘Superman’’ strip.

. Who submitted that?
T itn ' d through the Me-

The Witness: It was submitte
Clure Newspaper Syndicate.

b I\ .
9. Llebowz.tzhfor Plaintiff—Direot 5

86

87
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31
1 nite—for Plaintiff—Direct.
88 b S Licbowite for S
Jacob 5. L ot Jacob 8, Licbowitz—foy Plaintiff—Direcs. 91
Court: By this Mr. Siege . : ; .
gﬁ: Witness: It was originally submzttf?d by Mr, 3’0:02 Did 1they copynght 1t beforehand ot was it
Qegel to the MeClure Newspaper Syndicate and Wh tnhwn enogq ) Ent that they assigned to you!
;}:fe’? couldn’t use it at the time. We, being on good | BF ﬁppened? |
téz';ﬁ% with them, and they knew that we were look- 7 r. Manges: T will offer documents,

The Court: I don’t m

ing for some features for a new magazine, they ean to be impatient.

cubmitted that strip to us for consideration. We . |
decided to publish it. . Q. I show you th.ls paper and ask if that was
; into between Detective Comies ang Messrs.
(. And when was that? A. About January, of 1938, ; Shuster on or about Mareh 1st, 1938
80 Q. And thereafter did you enter into a contract with paper)? A. That is right,

entered
Siegel and
handing witness

92

Mr. Siegel and Mr. Shuster? A. Yes. o

Q. And Mr. Shuster is the man that does the drawings
from Mr. Siegel’s copy? A. That is right.

The Court: Make that clear.

Mr. Manges: One man writes it and the other
man draws. Two men do the work.

The Court: This was in January, 193817

The Witness: Yes.

The Court: You mean that the letter press de-
seribing this extraordinary creature is written by
one man-—what is his name?

Mr. Manges: Mr. Siegel conceives al the story

part; Mr. Shuster does the art work, the cartoons.
The Court: What is his first name?
Mr, Manges: Joe,

90

Q. Did Detective Comics, Inc., buy the rights to

“Superman’’ from Megsy
8578, Shust '
the Ist of March, 19381 4. yeo o O OF bout

mag:?? Ojf%l}l:t: Y()u bought the rights to ‘‘Super-
contract ”‘tai do you mean by that? You made a
© % With them that they should do this for

The Court: By this document, signed by both of
them, they gave you exclusive rights to this crea-
tion of theirs called ““Superman”. Both the au-
thor and the cartoonist signed it. That is the begin-
ning. That, in effect, is an assignment of a com-
mon law copyright by both of these people. It is
hard to conceive of just what you would call it be-
cause these comic strips become almost entities and,
I suppose, one would call that an assignment.

Mr. Manges: Yes, sir; of all their proprietary
rights in and to the comic strip.

The Court: Of course, the comic strip does not
exist until it is written.

Mr. Manges: The character, the central charac-
ter.

The Court: That is the curious point about it. Tt
is like ‘“The Toonerville Trolley’’ and many (?f the
other things that become kind of inf‘m'n.lally incor-
porated. At any rate, that was the basis on which
a contract, or what not—whatever 1t 1s—you don’t
need to call it some juridical name—was made.

Mr. Manges: T offer this in evidenece.
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32

acob 8. Lich pwite—for Plaintiff —Direct.
acob 5.

Koenig: This is objected to by the defend-
?{;run{; on .the ground there is no indication to
ant

what it refers.

oot : V¢ Superman.”’ ‘ .
;&l;e g{?)znicr; It says ‘‘a strip entitled ‘Super-

men' '’ but it does not refer to any particular strip

he contents thereof. ' |
W’;Ifhs Court: I will let that in because that is ome

they start with and, as I say, these *things like
«‘Superman’’ and «Little Orphan Annie’’ and all
these other things are—these people couldn’t as-
sign the comic strip if it had not been written. It
is really a contract that they will do some stuff
which they will exhibit.

Had they shown you what ‘‘Superman’ was be-
fore the contract was entered into?

The Witness: Yes, certainly.

The Court: So you knew in a general way what
ideas they had?

The Witness: At the time this release was given
the 13 pages for the first issue had already been
drawn.

The Court: So that ‘“‘Superman’’ had achieved
13 pages by March 1st when that was given?

The Witness: That is right.

Mr. Koenig: May 1 inquire as to when the pencil
date was put in?

The Witness: At the time it was signed. That is
my handwriting,

thMZ‘ Fried: If your Honor please, I object to it on
L urther ground—I assume you are offering it
n evidence, Mr, Manges?

Mr. Manges: I did offer it

33

Jacob S. Laebowite—f

Mr: Fried: On the ground it is contrary to the
pleadings of the complaint. Complainant pleads
I believe, in one of the paragraphs that the authc;;
of this strip was in the employ. It does not read
that he acquired the rights or whatever copyrights
he may have as an independent contractor,

The Court: Under these new rules it doesn’t make
the slightest bit of difference if there is a variance
like that. I will let it in and if necessary you can
conform the pleadings to the proof. Under the new

or Plaintiff—Direct. o1

rules we just don’t pay any attention to those things, 98

(Marked Plaintiff’s Exhibit 24 in evidence.)

Q. Mr. Liebowitz, you say by March 1st, 1938, the first
strip of 13 pages had been drawn? A. That is right.

Q. Had it also been submitted to your company by
them? A. That is right, and paid for.

(. And have you with you the check referred to in the
last exhibit, since the question of date has been raised? A.
(Producing paper and handing to counsel.)

Mr. Manges: I offer in evidence a check dated
March 1st, 1938, of Detective Comics, Ine, to
Messrs. Siegel and Shuster for $412, including the

first item of $130.
(Marked Plaintiff’s Exhibit 25.)

Q. Continuously subsequent to March 1st, .1938, have
Messrs. Siegel and Shuster submitted th.e senpt.for the
strip ‘‘Superman”’ for the magazine Action Comies? A.

Yes.

The Court: They have worked for you ever since?
The Witness: Yes.

99
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100 Jacob S. Liehowitz—for Plaintiff—Direct.

: 38 did vou put into writ-
4 by September 22nd, 1938, did 3
inggtﬁj I;errz;s of employment ander which they were to

work? A. That is right.
Q. And that was with respec

. ¥
tion Comics? A. Yes.

t to ““Superman’’ for Aec-

Mr. Manges: I offer this in evidence.

The Court: Ask him whether that is the paper.
You must not lead him quite so much.

Mr. Manges: I want to shorten this. I don’t

101 think there is any dispnte about this.

Q. T show you that paper and ask you if that is the
agreement yon have been referring to (handing witness)?
A, It s,

Mr. Manges: I offer it in evidence,

Mr, Koenig: I object to it on the ground of im-
materiality. It has nothing to do with the issue,

The Court: What is the date of this thing?

Mr. Manges: It is dated September 22nd, 1938.
Mr(i Fried hcsbjeetgd about not showing employment
and now when 1 want |

109 defentiant. obiects to show employment the other

The Court: I try these cases vervy broa
usnally- go by the rule that you can alﬁeg'salilsgki
scmeth,}ng off that you have on but you can’t put
s&meﬁhmg on that you haven’t got and every now
?;:t tgn Wwhen you come to decide a case you find
- it is&ife tlti something that you wish were there,
e uii ¥ to have too much than too little in
Gifts .q .y cases. It doesn’t make the slightest
‘hl‘:ﬁj: as there is ng jury present.
strips 1 zi ﬂ?é;iztl e?ll conception of these comic
think it was rather important to
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tie up these authors of it
the person who is claimin
shall let this in.

Mr. Fried: No objection.
(Marked Plaintiff’s Exhibit 26 in evidence,)

as much as possible with
g a copyright to it, so I

-« Q: Has the plaintiff helensed the McClure Newspaper
Syndicate to use the comic strip ““Superman’® in dail
papers throughout the United States? A. It has. ’

Q. Is that of 75 West Street, New York City? A. That
is right.

(. When was that license issued? A, September, 1938,

Q. And is it still in existence? A, Tt is. ,

Q. I show you this strip and ask you if that is a strip
containing the first 6 ‘“Superman’’ strips which were sub-
mitted to McClure Newspaper Syndicate pursuant to that
license (handing witness)?

104

The Court: What is precisely your point?

Mr. Manges: I am just trying to show the value.
This is a specimen,

Mr. Koenig: If your Honor please, at this point
may I interpose the objection to that that I don’t
see how that is relevant to the issues forming a
part of this case?

The Court: I will find out. Mr. Manges, what
exactly is the point of this? You elaim if you
should be successful in this case and you get an in-
junction that would bear on the profits?

Mr. Manges: Of course, that would follow.
The Court: The statute says “In liew.”’ .Qf
course on statutory damages the value of the thing
would not play any role at al{ but I thought, if it
was a proper thing to allow it on some minimum
or maximum Or something like that, if you claim

105
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[ geniy 0. A4
] damages you would have to be heat'd. through
mi?z-tey Ib]'u*:% wanted to get what vour idea was.
a Mas = e i +2 What does that
o . .nt these plctures
Why do yon wa
m;f;i? Manges: 1 wanted to get into the record the
fact ;hat it}zet*e s 4 very serious license question
2 | to protect and must protect., If

that we are frymng to
these pecple plagiarize of course we can not keep
ap the license which is of rmmense value.

The Court: That is as to the value of your li-
%ﬁfMange&; Exactly. In answer to Mr. Koenig’s
objection that he doesn’t know what “Sup‘erman.”
we are talking about I would like a specimen 1n
here to show that this is the ‘‘Superman’.

The Court: But this is so long afterwards. We
all know the **Superman’’ we are talking about
merely by referring to that first March 1st letter
which was telling of your ‘‘Superman’’, just calling
it “‘Superman’’, You did have 13 pages or some-
thing like that, which had already been set up and
it was the subject matter that you were discussing.
It was the subject matter of that license or exelusive
agreement or what not. If you want to go on and
show that you have given a license to a newspaper
s*_s'rndir:tate, that is all right, but why go on to these
pictures?

_ Mr. Manges: I just want to identify that as be-
ing the same subject matter, as one sample.

The Court: You only licensed “‘Superman’’
liﬁzf;e%zgizs ;:hgﬁyh: Si;pﬁrma.n”. Ever ginae. the
o MoClure i8 Deen a weekly strip given

The Court: T will let you do that.

a7
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Mr. Manges: 1 offer the strip.

The Court: Tlr.lat 18 just an illustrative exhibit
of the sort of thing you give them weekly?

Mr. Manges: Yes, your Honor.

The Court: You are not going to put them all in
for the whole year, are you?t

Mr. Manges: Oh, no.
(Marked Plaintiff’s Exhibit 27 in evidence.)

Q. Have you the McClure agreement with you? A.
Producing paper and handing to counsel.) 110

Mr. Manges: I offer in evidence the document
produced by the witness.

Mr. Koenig: May 1 urge an objection on the
ground of materiality, your Honor?

The Court: It may be premature until there is a
ruling about this. I suppose if there 1s any recov-
ery it may come in before the Special Master so I

will have it marked. .
(Marked Plaintiff’s Exhibit 28 in evidence.)

Q. Mr. Liebowitz, did your company run a contest to m
determine the most popular of the features of the mag-

azine? A. Yes, sir. _
Q. And did ¢¢Quperman’’ win that contest?

Mr. Koenig: I object to that, your Honor.

The Court: I don’t care. 1 will let l]ljim c:ebthat;

1 n't be s

We are in a zone of the grote‘sque. 0 ‘
serious about the thing. We wx}l find fmt atafju;e ;;
and get the whole business and if that 1s their be

. : ‘show that.
lead they are entitled to sl,{; jmpel myself into the

Mr, Koenig: Maybe I can ] :
grotesque, your Honor, from lack of experience ifl
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this type of jmaginative litigation but I conform to

vour Honor’s ruling. |
" The Court: You won 't suffer by so doing. What

'« this last question: If they had a contest? How
did vou have the contest; by radio or what?
Mr. Manges: I am going to ask him.

Q. Will you tell us the facts with respect to this popu-
Jarity contest conducted by your magazine? A, In the
September, 1938 issue we offered 25 $1.00 prizes for the
best letter on the magazine and also they were to enum-
erate the first five features in accordance with their liking,

Q. That is the notice that appeared on the inside
cover of the September, 1938 issue at the time? A. That
is right.

Q. Proeceed. A. We reeeived a number of replies.

' Q. Have you the figures with you? A. Yes; they are
in that envelope there.

The Court: He can refresh his recollection.

Q. (Harzfiing witness papers.) A. Out of a total number
ifs 542 repl:es tabulated on ““‘Superman’’ 404 preferred
mdn.pgiaaﬂ’l as fhe first feature; 59 shows it as the sec-
repfies hs he tym%; 21 as the fourth; 17 as the fifth: 19

ShOW no indication at all making a total of 54,2.

The Court: 404 put it first?

£ﬁe Witness: Yes,

I'he Conyt -

sons, It has an appeal to at least 404 per-
The Witness: That

942 replieg tabulatei 18 out of the total replies of

Q. To your knowledge,

&f& § £

PUPETMan’’ to any has the magazine become known

part of your reading publies
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The Court: As to what?

Mr. Manges: Has the Action Comics magazine
becor.ne known as ‘““Superman’’ to any part :f the
reading public,

Q. Do people inquire for it as ““Superman’’?

The. Court: That may well be but that would
come in better on an unfair competition question
than it would on a copyright question.

Mr. Manges: It is again showing the value where
it is the leading part of the whole magazine, where
the public gets to know the whole magazine by that.

The Court: How does he know?

Mr. Manges: I am asking if he does know.

The Court: Do you know?

Mr. Manges: I said ‘‘to your knowledge’’.

The Court: ‘“To your knowledge’’ is vague.

Have you ever heard anybody ask for your maga-
zine under the name of “Superman’’? You your-
self, T mean? I don’t mean what somebody has

told you.

The Witness: No. o
The Court: He has mnever heard it himself.

Mr. Manges: I will bring it out through the dis-
tributor.

Q. Do you know Mr. Victor Fox, the President of

Bruns Publications? A. Yes.

Q. And how long have you known
cember, 1936.

Q. In what building a

48 ington Avenue.
SOQPesz ;’?iere are the offices of the defendant Bruns

Publications? A. 480 Lexington Avenue.

him? A. Since De-

re the plaintiff’s offices? A,
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ces of each of those corportions have
cenue since the inception of the
A. That is right.

Q. And the Gﬁ’i'
heen in 480 Lexington A

respective em“p@mtmns?

The Court: They are not in the same office or

anything like that?
Mr. Manges: Noj;
The Clourt: Have they g0
The Witness: Separate offices.
The Court: How separate?
The Witness: They are on different floors.

Mr. Manges: Completely so.

The Witness: One is on the ninth floor and one
is on the seventh.

The Court: Which are you ont?

The Witness: The ninth.

they are in the same building.
t separate offices?

119

Q. Is Mr. Donenfeld the president of your company?
A, He is.
Q.'Md dic? Mr. Donenfeld at one time have a 50 per
ﬁeﬂté ngérerest in the Bruns Publications? A. Yes
. Was Mr. Fox at the office of the intif
4 Was Jr. - plaintiff at any
150 f;:f;swn during the yvear ending March 20th, 19397 A.

Q. How frequently? A. 1
week; sometimes oftener. . I should say at least once a

Q. Did you ever see hi
dent News Company? Ty e of e Indepen-

%‘ihga Court: What is that?
r. Manges: That is a distributor.

Q. What is the I
A distributing ggmngfpﬁndent News Company A

41
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Q. And are they located i
N ed m 480 Lexington Avenue also?

Q. And are you also connected with that irm? A 1

am.
. tQ:bAsld ?id the Independent News Company act as
stributor To 1 i
i:_‘ o r another magazine of Bruns Publications?
Q. And in connection with that other magazine was
Mr. Fox frequently at the office of Independent News
Company? A. I saw him there often.

Q. And did you see him there often during the last 122

year? A, Yes.
Q. How often did you see him at the office of Independ-

ent News Company during the last year? A, I don't
know: I would say daily.

The Courl: Is this on the question of access?
Mr. Manges: Yes, sir.

The Court: The defendants have got to admit
That does not mean that you haven’t a
must admit this was pub-
lished. The difference between 2 copyright and a
patent, the main difference, we will say, is that the
first person who invents something gets 2 right
for a period of time but a man who writes 2 book
or something of that kind, he only gets a right to

prevent the copying of the book and it is of the

essence of copyright that there be copying and there
legs there be access. In other

cannot be copying un '
L] L] d

e you lived 1n England and 1 live
T e Wit stories that were almost

we wrote two
here and ot be any breach of copy-

identical, There would n ch Ot
right on my part if I Jidu’t know your storys &

know anything about it, and it couldn't be estab-

access,
canse of action but you

123
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‘mitted,
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lished I ever saw it. You would have to have ac-
ore vou get anywhere, This had heen on

ess bef
¢ sold., If yvou deny access there

the newssstands and

wouldn’t be anything in it. ‘
My, Koenig: I was going to point out the fact

that this magazine was published during this period
of time that was under diseussion.

The Court: Do you admit that you people saw
this magazine?

Mr. Koenig: I don’t doubt that they did, your

Honor.

The Court: Can’t you admit it and be done with
it? That is the reason I always advocate in cases
of this kind that the real test is to make a motion
to dismiss on the pleadings with the things annexed
to it and by that process you admit access and say
“We don’t care whether we had access or not but
what we did was not an infringement of copyright’’
and I have induced a great many people to follow
that course. Some people think it is a dangerous
course. I don’t think it is. However, don’t let us
W&;Ite t;ém on the question of access on a magazine.
pnbl;;he éﬁiﬂ:;g : We ﬁenaede‘that Fhe magazine was

| we knew of its existence.

The Court: That you had seen it?

33;{1:. Koenig: Yes. -

€ Q= Thﬁf you have to say access is ad-
i Wiy don’t you say it?
r. Koenig: Yeg,

The Court: AY ri
drop all this,

Mr. Manges: My,
_ Mr. Frieq; ;

ght, aceess is admitted. Then

to do with the pub-
to me that this book
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was published and distributed ¢
Nl or eleven
and was distributed widely to the publie I:I(x)filthi
cm&‘tse there was general access to everybody ’
e Court: T should think there wasn’ ‘

tion about it. o By ques.
' Mr. Mal}ges: What I am bringing out is the ques-
tmz:.a .Of wilful piracy; that this man was seen ex-
amining the sales figures on the sales slips.

The Court: Go on.

Mr. Manges: That is what I was doing.

The Court: There is no question about aceess.

Q. You say you saw Mr. Fox frequently, practically
daily at the office of Independent News Company within
the last year? A. Yes,

Q. Were the sales figures of his magazine Action Com-
jos on the same slips coming in from the dealers as an-
other magazine of Mr. Fox’s? A. No, they were not on

the same card.

MThe Court: Another magazine of Mr. Fox’s? The
sales figures of your magazine were shown in cards
sent in by the Independent News Company?

Mr. Manges: I will withdraw that.

Fox looking at the sales fig-

_ Did vou ever see Mr. ‘
; . agazine Action Comies? A.

ures in connection with your m

Yes.

The Court: How does it hap?en? He eann?t see
the sales figures without looking at something.

Mr. Manges: 1 want to find out under wh?;t.dm;
cumstances he saw that happen and how di

hagﬁﬁnWitnaﬁs r a distributing
e ‘ :
company to gsend ou

Well, it is usual fo
{ a pick-up c&

rd to a dealer.

7
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The Court: A what? '
The Witness: They call that a pick-up card. They

cend a card to a dealer and the dealer indicates on
it what the sales of the magazine are at any particu-
lar time bv making an actunal checkup on the news.

stands. ‘
The Court: There 1s something that I haven’t

heen told wvet.

By the Court:

Q. Is Independent News Company your means of dis-
tribution? A, Yes.

Q. Through whom you distribute? A. Yes.

Q. The distributors of the other magazines are these
g?ntlemen who are defendants in the case? A. No, they
distribute another magazine. They are publishers of an-
other magazine,

Q. Who? A. Bruns Publications.

. Q. } know, but haven’t you got some distributors here?
oesn’t one of these coungel represent a distributing

company, the Kable News C . .
Interborought 4y P2 and then there is the

thiﬂr.r &B‘riid : That .is_ correct. We distribute, at
: present time, this book that is in question be-
ore your Honor,
The Court: That i
; irt: That is call infri
Mr,. Fring. Yos s ed an infringement?
The Court. That ig
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Q. You had a common distributor gt
Yes,

one timey A

Mr. Fried: That ig the situation.

By Mr. Manges:

Q. And in that way did Mr. Fox see the checkup
cards?
The Court: How do you know? Did you see him
looking at it?
The Witness: Yes, sir.

By the Court:

Q. Were they things that anybody could look at in
the Independent News Company? A. No. Mr. Fox was
anxious to know how his magazine was selling and I was
anxious to know how Action Comics was selling and our
other comic magazines were selling too, and in the morn-
ing before

Q. What day? A. Well, almost every day; the cards
would come in daily. Before they were actually assorted
according to state or city I would be looking at the cards

and he would be looking at the cards.
Q. Were you an officer of the Independent? A. Yes.

Q. What officer? A. Secretary.
Q. And was he an officer? A. The defendant? N
Q. No; was Mr. Fox an officer? A. Of the Bruns Pu

lications ?
. C m an}?? A No.
Q. Of the Independent News Lo I;*ou sag you and he

i to is
Q. What this really amounts "
would come down almost every day to the Ini?f;ﬁfr
News Company and see what the returns were
e ars and he

respective papers and you would look :f: ;};; e would
would look at his or you would leok at his |
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look at yours? A. I had a right to look at his. I was an

. of the distributor. o
ﬂfﬁ{gl %ﬁi} were an officer of the distributor? A. Yes.

Q. And you didn 't object to his looking at yours? You
didn’t prevent him from looking at yours? A. I couldn’t,
The returns were there and weren’t assorted, they were
all in one batch and werve being sorted out.

Q. Hadn’t you ever gaid anything to him to stop him
or something of that kind? A. No. I had no reason to
believe—we were on very friendly terms.

Q. In other words, they had admitted access from the
point of view of copyright and the fact is they had access
to your returns, is that it? A. Yes.

By Mr. Manges:

Q. :fmd from those cards could Mr. Fox tell that the
magazine Action Comics was selling very well?

Mr. Fried: Objected to.
The Court: What wag your circulation? Let us

get down to the facts. Have vo |
circulation? you records of your

The Witness: Yes, sir.

Q. (Handing witnesg bapers.) A, Will you give us the

figures, pleaset A
Q. Yes, - Shall T read first for the first issue?

Th : i
¢ Court: Where giq you get this from?

The Wity |
Th-g gﬁﬁf . EfY;;My actual sales records.
The Witn&@?'&z Yz; sales records in your office?

et &

The Conrt. A11 ¢
it o) T8t Why don’t you mark that
o d save time if it is altogether. How

47
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The Witness: 500,000,
The Court: Every month?
Mr. Ma:nges: That is the present number
The Witness: ¥es, the present number, .
$ﬁe %gt;rt: Is it more than ip previous months?
e Witness: Yes, it has alwavsg i ]
e firar iness ¥s 1nereased since
Mr. Manges: 1 offer in evidence th
he sheet -
duced by the witness, o
(Marked Plaintiff’s Exhibit 29 in evidence,)

Q. Mr. Liebowitz, on Plaintiff’s Exhibit 29 you have a
column at the top marked ‘‘Draw’ and then another
column marked ‘‘Sales’’. Will you tell us what you meant
by the word ‘“‘Draw’’? A. “Draw’’ are the number of
copies distributed to wholesalers all over the country.
“‘Sales’’ are the net sales after returns have been de-
ducted.

Q. I notice that with respect to the last two 1issues
marked thereon, being March and April, 1939, “‘Est” is
written after the figure. What does that mean? A. It

means estimated sales.

The Court: You haven’t got final returns on
those ? .
The Witness: No, sir.

Q. Are they estimated from the pick-up cards? A.

The pick-up cards, yes, sir. ' -
Q}) And pwith réspect to the March issue are the fig

ures now practically final within a couple of thousand

doll A. Within a thousand copies. e
i Srsgiave you had a request from a law firm in Milwau

: 06 r-
kee requesting the granting of the right to use Supe
man’’ on garments?

~—/or Plaintiff —Direct. 139
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Mr. Fried: That is ijeefe.d 'to. ‘
:Phé Conrt: I don’t think it is material.

Mr. Manges: I withdraw it.

Q. The “Superman”’ figure has been used on your
covers for the months, as I nnderstand 1t, of December,

February, March and April, is that correct?

The Court: You mean a fignre representing this?

Mr. Manges: ‘‘Superman’’.

The Witness: It was also used on the first issue.

Mr. Fried: If your Honor please, I objeet to it.
That is all before your Honor now in the evidence.

The Court: It is on the exhibit.

Mr. Manges: I will withdraw it,

Q. Did you have a conversation with Mr. Fox during
the month of February, 1939, with respect to a comic mag-
azine? A. Yes.

Q. Will you tell his Honor what was said by Mr. Fox
and what was said by you, o the best of your recollection?
AZ We;ll, be was up to see me at one time at the office, I
thmk 1t was around five o’clock. A part of the éonveréa«
tion was to the effect to inform me he was going to pub-
lish a comic magazine and that the jssye was being pre-
g}gr;d 33; about two weeks. I said it was quite a surprise

¢ because I thought we wonld have known before

and I didn’t think i L ,
two weeks’ tim.:: " was possible to get an issue out in

publigh befﬁm?%at did the Bruns
Tii g;iﬁ%s ATM World Astrology Magazine.
The ’Witm;g Tor, T8 mggazjm?

Publications

o -
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A (Oontinued)'At that time we discussed costs H

r{:te he‘ was getting his plateg done for $950 lI'did e, told
lieve it. He said, ‘““Well, if you want to I will lntt v
meet the man. He ig coming in tomorrow and T ;ﬂly’ou
tro-duce you to him’’, Talking over the general cha ac.
temst‘i(}s of the magazine that he proposed he saidri;.:
magazine was going to contain the hest features of comi;z
magazines on the stands; it would have detective, adven-
ture, action, fun. I had no idea at the time of’ course
that he was contemplating any—— ’ ’

Mr. Fried: I objeet, your Honor.
The Court: Strike that out.
Mr. Manges: That is all.

The Court: Now we will have a recess for about
five minutes.
(Short recess.)

Cross-Exzamination by Mr. Koenig:

Q. With reference to these postal cards, Mr. Liebo-
witz, are they ordinary penny postal cards sent through
the United States mails? A. Yes.

The Court: Which?

Mr. Koenig: These postal cards referred to, your
Honor, are ordinary penny postal cards sent
through the United States mails.

The Court: You mean for the contest?

Mr. Koenig: No, with reference to t'he checkup
on the figures; the returns which he said Mr. Fox

examined.
The Court: That Mr. Fox and he saw?

Mr, Koenig: Yes.
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Q. These postal cards, do they contain the name of

o7 A. That is right. .
theémizm&ev had no reference to any particular fea-

* oazine? A. No.
mgm’@}ézz 2?3§§j;ﬂ§racice to have more thgn one maga-
zine ;313 a postal card at any ti.me’? A. Sometimes; yes.

Q. And how many magaznes woul‘d you hmi’e on a
postal card? A. 1 chould think it varied; sometimes we
would have two, most often it was just one. '

Q. Was there any time in which any of the magazines
published by the Bruns Publishing Company was on a
postal card econtaining Action Comies? A. 1 believe so.

Q. And how many of these postal cards would you
send out at one time? A. To all the dealers.

Q. How many dealers? A. I should say about 600 or
700.

Q. And what period of time were they sent out or
what interval of time? A. It all depends what information
we want. Sometimes we want a 15-day checkup after the
magazine was on the stand 15 days and at another time
we would ask for complete returns on any particular issue
that we wanted.

Q- Would you send them out more than once a month?
A. Not often. We would sometimes send out a 15-day
check;z;g m}il also follow it up with a card asking for
complete returns,

__ e SO that you would get of a morning sometimes
many more than 600 or 700 postal cards? A. No, we never
got that many at one time, ’
mﬁ?@%z:?yoi %fl iiur mailings separate as to each
at different i@iewaiﬂ} de rome oo checked by dealers
country. They w"fl@ come from different parts of the

Ry wonld not come at the same time.

e

F L ST R et oy 50
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Q. Would the occasion ever arise when yon would
out a postal card on Aection Comies
another magazine that the reference
received at or about the same time?

send
and another one on

on both would he

The Court: On the same card?
Mr. Koenig: On different cards.

A. On different cards; that is right.

Q. So it is possible that there may have been well over
a thousand cards received at one specific time? A. No,
it is not possible in only one day. We never did get
that many.

Q. How many did you get in a dav? A. We would re-
ceive sometimes 100 or 150 or 200. I never counted them.

Q. Let me understand this: in order to get the returns
on a magazine like Action Comics you would necessarily
have to examine several hundred cards over a period of
time? A. Yes, surely.

Q. And did you see Mr. Fox do this? A. Not the com-
plete compilation, no. I might say that the World Astrology
Magazine was a magazine that sold around 33 per cent.
of the total copies distributed and Action Comics en-
joyed sales of 80 or 85 per cent. There would be oc-
casions when World Astrology dealers would h‘a?e a very
good sale on World Astrology and then the position might
be quite the reverse. That happened when I would be

looking at World Astrology.
Q. gian’t it a fact you examined your cards separately

and Mr. Fox examined his cards separately? A..d We
might on occasion but very often we would both faomemax
on a morning and we would poth be very anxious t
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what the results were and we would be looking them over
at the same time on the desk.

Mr. Koenig: That is all.

Cross-Examination by Mr. Fried:

Q. Just one question. You stated that your sales for
Action Comics was 80 or 85 per cent, did you not? A.
Not on an average; no, sir.

155 Q. Well, for instance on the June issue you had a

draw of 202,000 odd and you sold 130,000, is that right?
A. That is right,

Q. And on the next issue you had a draw of 211,000
and you sold 136,0007 A. Yes.

Mr. Fried: That is all.

Mr. Koenig: When did Mr. Fox cease to use
your distributing concern?

The Witness: I think he gave the Independent
News Company notice on February 11th, 1939,
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JEROME SikcEL, called ag a w

. . itneg
plaintiff, being first duly sworn, S on behalf of the

testified ag follows:

Direct Examination by Mr. Manges .

Mr. Manges: I only bring on this witness because

they plead as a separate defenge lack of originali
* * » J lt ’
I think it is a burden. S

The Court: All right,

Mr. Manges: Since they plead that I think it ig
a burden on our part to go forward with some- 158
thing, however little.

The Court: It is your burden to establish origi-
nality. I don’t care what you do, just so we get
it done,

Q. Is the seript for ‘‘Superman’’ as published in Aec-
tion Comies magazine written by you, Mr. Siegel? A.
Yes.

Q. And are you the Mr, Siegel that has been referred
to in these written exhibits that have been offered this
morning? A. Yes, sir. ‘

Q. You have been here since the beginning of the trial
in this room? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And you have heard the testimony? A. Yes, I have.

Q. Where do you reside? A. In Ol@velapd, Ohio. |

Q. And you have come here for thisi trial? A Yes.

Q. Mr. Siegel, when did ya; g?nﬁewa tz; idea of
‘‘Superman’’, approximately? A. Six years age.

uQI? AI?id y(’iu gﬁ@ been the only one that lz.a& gmﬁﬁl&z
the script for ‘‘Superman’’ airppeainégvzn Action Comic

azine, have you net? A. Yes, 1 have. |
ma%, J;An:d aftexj’r you conceived of it, you tell “j W;ﬁ;
you did abont it, after you put it In seriptt  A. 13
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‘th which we work now is different. The system
w1

system ork is different than it was when we first

with which we W
gtarted.

The Court: Tell us how you did it first and tell usg
hﬁ%?’hgﬁ%ize; ?ﬂ(i*iginally I would wri’te out the
seript and recite it to an artist and pmnt‘; out the
way that I thought the scenes ‘Shi}uld be dﬁ}?l[ﬁted and
then he would proceed to finish off according to my
points. Now we have a great deal ‘ef work and we
find it necessary to have artists as's:ist us so I write
up the script and mail it to the e;ty where the ap-
prentice lives and this apprentice makes rough
sketches of the drawings and Shuster finishes the

drawings.

Q. And Mr. Shuster is the Mr. Shuster that has been
referred to in the prior testimony, is he? A. Yes.

Q. And he is the main artist? A. Yes, he is.

Q. In writing up your seript do you copy anybody
else’s work? A. No.

Q. Is it original with you? A. Yes, it is.

Mr. Manges: That is all.

Cross-Examination by Mr. Blum:

Q. Did you ever hear of a comic strip called ‘“The
Phantom’’? A. Yes, I have heard of it recently.

Q. When was the first time you heard of ‘‘The Phan-
tom’’? A, It may have been about a year ago or a year
and a half,
Q. Where did you see the comie strip entitled ¢“The
Phantom”’t A. The first time T saw it T believe it was—

R S S R SN b 3
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The Court: Tt doesn’t
Lot : make the «lie :
ence. This ign't g patent opse, e slightegt differ-

I don't o
he knows, the (question g are what

thought of himself, He saig
Now the question ig whether the
his thing,

Mr. Blum: What [
what he may have se
copied.

The Court: When did you see it?

The Witness:
a half ago.

am addressing myself to ig
en and what he may have

Either ahout a year or a year and

Q. And that was prior to the first publication of the
“‘Superman’’, wasn’t it? A. Yes, it was.

Q. And where did you see the publication of ‘“The
Phantom”? A. Tt was reprinted in one of the Big Little
Books sold in the 5 and 10 cent stores.

Q. How was that character, “The Phantom” dressed;
in what costume? A. Well, when I first saw the book I
was startled to see how similar it was to the ‘‘Superman’’
features.

The Court: He said he conceived the idea of the
““‘Superman’’ six years ago and now he says he
saw this ‘‘Phantom’’., Before the ‘‘Superman”
was published, you mean?

The Witness: Yes,

Q. I believe you stated to the Court that you 1Were
startled at the similarity between ‘‘The Phantom amfi
the ‘“Superman’’. Now tell the Court what points ad
similarity startled you? A. Well, tthe character appeare

in a close-fitting costume. ’
t‘) }3 %fﬁﬂghar points of similarity? A. Well, that 1s
about as far as it went.
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Q. Did you see in that little book or in those c&rto?ns
scenes depicting this character, ‘‘The Phantom?”’, taking
off his outer garments and appearing a skin tight black
costume with a mask? A. No, I did not.

Q. What newspapers did you read in your home town
hefore the ““Superman®’ was published? A. The Cleve-
land News, The Plain Dealer and Press.

. Now I show vou a photostat of a sheet of paper
which bears the date of November 6, 1937, New York
Journal and American, and call your attention to the strip
entitled ‘‘The Phantom’’ and ask you whether this is the
figure that you saw in that book prior to the publication
of the *‘Superman’? A. This is the figure that T saw

in the book.

Mr. Blum: I ask that this be marked for identifi-
catlomn,

The Court: Where is the book?

Mr. Blum: I don’t know what book. I will try
and see if this is the book he saw.

Q. Is this the book which you saw? A. I don’t be-
lieve that was the release.

The Court: Look at it.

Q. (Handing book to witness.) A. It may have been
another book issued by the same company.

Q. Just look at this book which I show you and tell us
how closely the pictures in this book represent the pic-
tures in this book which you saw before the ‘Superman’’
was published? A, Well, T did not read the book, I
merely picked it up and flipped the pages and noted that

the character was similar to the way I had depicted
‘‘Superman”’.

27

Jerome ;S’iregel“-fofr Pla.imtiﬁ’MC‘ross-
Q Up !;0 that time the “Superman’?
published, isn't that sor A ff pag sos

Q. Now flip the Pages of this b

v e A8 book and ook
cover and tell the Court how closely the pictures 2t iﬁe
book you bave in your hang ' in the

had not been

.The Court: He can't tell the Court any such
thing, The Court coulg look at it himself,

Onor, we haven’t the hook
i Cleveland or elsewhere,

The Court: Tt doesn’t do any good then. He
has already said the brincipal thing was the tak-

ing off of the outer garments which left a ¢loge
fitting garment inside,

Q. Was that picture of “The Phantom’’ you saw in
that book one which represented a charvacter with a mask?

A. Yes, sir.

The Court: That case we had, and that I got re-
versed in, that I first decided in your favor in-
volved just the same sort of question we have here,
namely, a trespass by this man is not a defense
for a trespass by that man.

Mr. Blum: I am not pleading trespass by this
‘man,

The Court: That is what you are leading up to.

Mr. Blum: No. The man says he conceived of it
some six years ago. Upon that I don’t know what
corroboration is going to be offered. .

The Court: I don’t either. Certainly people like
Eugene O’Neill always keep notes and can trace
their characters back. Those things are an excep-
tion to the self-serving declaration rule and they
are always allowed in patent cases.

Mr. Blum: I am not charging any trespass be-
cause it so happens we are the attorneys for the
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King Features Syndicate which published .‘"I‘he
Phantom’’ and we have never made any claim of
infringement against the plaintiff or against the
defendant. It is not a matter of trespass at all

The Court: What are you claiming?

Mr. Blum: I am trying to find out what original-
ity or what spark of originality this character the
“Superman’® possesses, that is all,

The Court: Go on,

Mr, Blum: Just one guestion so I won’t weary

173 the Court,

. Sinee you haven’t the book which you say that you
saw prior to the publication of the ‘‘Superman’’ how
about this pieture on the cover of the book I show yon, is
that about the same as the picture you saw about a year
and a half ago? A. Yes, except that I think the other was

whole length.

Mr. Blum: I offer this.

The Court: You can’t do that. I am very, very
broad about these trials, but that is going much
afield. You produced that book, which is all right.

174 Mr. Blum: May I just have it marked for identi-
fication?

The Court: You can have anything marked for
identification. What about this other photostat
you had, has that been marked?

Mr. Blum: No, your Honor, that has not been
marked. I would like to mark that now, if T may.
This is a page of the New York Evening Journal.

" (I&%ﬁrked Defendant’s Exhibit A for Identifica-
: ion,
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The Court . The on]

‘ \ ' a t " ] * -

Just this thing markeg E‘]‘ ghgsérilf;nterested ne
Mr. Blum: Yes, sir.
The Cqul‘t: Did yon ever see that?
The Witness: The daily stuffy

A, ThiS pap@r; no.

me a few yeq
that was shown to me up at Mr. Nicholson’s cgicfc:it‘S e

The Court: Whose office?
The Witness: Major Nicholson,

A. (Continued) However, there is one other thing T would
like to mention—I mean in connection with my having
seen this book.

Q. Go ahead. A. When T saw thig book T went over
to the artist’s office and I wondered whether our “‘Super-
man’’ had been seen lying around the King Features
Syndicate.

The Court: You went over to an office? Whose
office?

The Witness: Joseph Shuster. We had sub-
mitted our seript and strip first to Central Press
and the Central Press Syndicate, which is owned
by King Features—

The Court: When had you first gotien your
seript up, you and Shuster together? Do you re-
member the date?

The Witness: I couldn’t tell you the exact date.
If I look back through my letters I might find cor-
respondence. However, there are different ways

I could find that out,
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The Court: How can you find it out? You live

s iMlava|f ! ’ out

N Lifmig{:ﬁ:asﬁn;}h};t won't be mecessary, but 1
Wirs],jh et{} say that ‘‘Superman’ was submitted to
the King Features Sf”“‘%igate q.mte 2 Whl-le ?emm
I saw this book and possibly before they distributed

it.

Q. Who submitted it? A, Central Press Syundicate,
Whicl; is owned by King Features Syndiea};e.
179 Q. How do you know it is owned by 'I\.mg Features
Syndicate? It may be, but I don’t know it.

Mr, Manges: Mr. Blum isn’t on the stand.

Q. How do you know Central Press Syndicate is
owned by King Features Syndicate? A. Well, I heard it
and I also saw something from Central Press Syndicate
bearing a King Features Syndicate stamp.

Q. You mean at the present time? A. Yes.

Mr. Blum: T move to strike out that part about

the King Features Syndicate.
180 The Court: I don’t know that I will strike it out.
Mr. Blum: Just so we will know what we are

}ﬂlkiﬂg about I wonld like to have it marked for
1dentification,

The Court: What?
Mr. Blum: The book and the photostat.

'I:‘he Court: You can mark anything for identifi-
cation but T don’t care about the book.

By the Coyrt:

Q. What I wa o *
Photostat ig of ﬂlxl t to find out from you is this: This

¢ New York J ournal. Putatively, at
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least, it says Saturday, November 6, 1937.

after you claim {fo have conceived the idea o
man’’? A, Yes, sir.

That was
f ““Super-

Q. And it was before ‘‘Superman’’ was published? A
Yes. |

Q. Is that right? A. Yes.

Q. When did you first come to New York? A, T be-
lieve three vears ago.

(. That would be 1936. That would be before this
was published. This is November 6, 1937. A, Perhaps
it was two years. I don’t know the exact date but it was
just a little while before these magazines were completely
taken over by Detective Comics.

Q. That is all right, but what I am trying to find out
is the relation in time of this comie strip called “‘The
Phantom’ to your conception of the ‘‘Superman’’ and
your actual publication of the ‘‘Superman’. You say
this particular publication was between those dates, that
18, November 6, 1937, which was the date which was be-

tween the time when von first conceived ‘‘Superman’’

and the time when ‘‘Superman’’ was published by this
plaintiff, is that right? A. Yes.

Q. What was your business before, during this time
when you say you conceived this ‘‘Superman’? Were
you just a newspaper reader or were you a dra:ftsmanj! .A.
In an amatenrish way I was putting out magazines, editing
through the mails.

Q. You don’t do any drawing yourself? A. No, 1

do not. .
Q. You just write the letter press releases? A. Yes,

Mr., Blum: I will say, your Honor, ths:t I can
show very easily that the publieation of this E:ae
in February, 1936. I have a copy of the certificate
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FrOme :
be register where we registergd the title in
h-on; tfgnt | Sﬁice of some of the oviginal sheets,
the rate

. The Patent Office ? ‘
%Tlhe gi};g You register the title in the Patent
Mr. : g

k, and that certificate was

trade-mar ) .
gﬁi{?eg SinaJul}r, 1936, I think. We will take it up
later.

wart: 1 don't know what tl}at hgs got to
d@Tiiihi{:R I want to get through with this. AN T

want to do is to look at these magazines.

By Mr. Blum:

Q. Do you have with you the very first drawing th?,t
was made of the “Superman’’? A. I do not. That strip
was redrawn a number of times.

Q. When was that strip drawn for the first time, in

what year?

The Court: He didn’t draw it, he wrote the letter
press. When did you get together, you and the
artist and complete the strip?

Mr. Blum: That is what I meant to ask.

Q. When did you and your artist get together for
the first time to make a complete strip? A. In 1933.

Q. Have you got the duplicate of that strip, the origi-
nal str.ipi A. It might possibly be in the release that
was printed in the magazine because we had drawn sev-

eral v?;riatiﬁn-g of the strip and we cut it up and pasted
them in magazine form.

b d
-

Thg G@art: Unless we have the date of it
mpld 1ot do us any good anyhow.,
Mr. Blum: That is al).

F e e e .
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Cross-Examination by Mr. Fried -
Q. Will you please turp

tion book, November, 1938
then will vou turn—

‘?0 Page 8 in Detective’s Ac.
I15sue, and look at that and

¢m are numbered, you
Your Honor can iden-
at the motion papers for an

have got to count them.
tify them by looking
injunction,

Q. (Continuing) How many frames or boxes consti-
tute the story of ‘‘Superman’’ in that particular issue?
A. 99. There are 100 pictures to the release but 99 panels.

Q. 99 panels, is that right? A. Yes.

Q. And how many pages does it cover? A. 13.

Q. Would you say that the other 8 or 9 issues also are
of 13 pages each? A. With the exception of an issue that
was 9 pages.

Q. And each of these 13-page issues of “‘Superman”
contain about 99 or 100 frames? A. That was the average.

Q. It is alleged by the complainant here that this pic-
ture on page 8 which I will mark with an “X”’——

The Court: You mean that picture of a moon

and a man striding along?
Mr. Fried: That is right.

Q. (Continning)—was infringed by a picture on page
4 of Wonder Comics, the defendant magazine, which we
will mark X-1. Now, this magazine, Wonder Gﬁnneg?
consists of 14 pages of script of “Wanderman’j, does it
not, and it too has at least 100 frames, is that right? A.
Well, it may possibly have more. I didn’t count them.
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Q. But at least 1007

The Court: He didn’t count them. Anybody ean
mn:ﬁt them if they take time. We are not interested

in how many frames there are.

Q. In the June issne of Action Comies will you turn to
;mgeil,. and we will mark this picture Y. Will you also
turn to page 1 in Wonder Comies ?

The Court: I don’t see why, when you have a wit-
ness on the stand, you have to do these things.
After all, it is how it strikes me, not how it strikes
him.

Mr. Fried: I am trying to direct your Homnor’s
attention to the specific charges of infringment.

The Court: I know, but you can do that in your
argument. We are just wasting time now. We
don’t meed a witness on the stand to do that.
When you have a lot of these things to look at I
just lock at them and make up my mind. Ask him
3nytthir1g about dates or anything like that, if yon
want.

Mr. Fried: There are no other questions, your
Honor.

Re-direct Examination by Mr. Manges :

) %w I ‘ghgw you this letter dated June 20, 1934, and ask
i1 8 s a letter that you sent to Mr. Frank Armer
{hﬁgdigg witness)? A, Yes, it is.
- Will you read that ang see i
b | if that refreshes your
recollection as to the dates with respect to “Supermail”?

The Court. Does.

The Witness. You it refresh your recollection?

it does.
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" uQr;egga{:??knzw 'ghen you submitted the firgt seript of
Q‘ Ye,& + 10U mean to any publication?

Mr. Manges: I will withdraw the question,

Q. T show you this letter dated October 4, 1934, ang

ask you if it is a letter written by you to Mr., Frank
Armer? ‘

The Court: Who is Mr. Frank Armer?
Mr. Manges: He is an editor.
The Court: Ask him.

A. He was the editor of Super Magazines, Incorporated.
This is my letter.

Mr. Manges: I offer this letter.
The Court: You have got a witness on the stand,

a live man, still articulate enough to say the dates
when he first submitted it.

Q. Will you please read the letter of October 4th, 1934,
and see if that refreshes your recollection as to the seript
of “‘Superman’? A. This was the feature ‘‘Superman’
which was submitted to publications at this time.

The Court: What time?

MThe Witness: Previous to October, 1934,

The Court: I will let you mark these things on
the theory of an inventor’s notes. ‘

Mr. Manges: They are the originals which I ob-
tained from the addressees.

The Court: They are signed by you?

i : Yes.
, The Witness: Yes T object to the

dence upon the

Mr. Fried: If your Haonor F}].e’asa*
introduction of those letters 1n evl
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round that they are incompetent, irrelevant and
jmmaterial; on the further ground they are not
binding on the defendant Kable News Company
and the defendant Interborough. Newrs qgnxpany.

The Court: You haven’t been in this kind of a
case much because if you had you would }mow, for
instance, that if Eugene O’Neill keeps a lltt.].{i& note-
hook, things like that are always allowed in when
he has a case for copyright infringement, and so
about notes of inventors. There is no question
about that and I think these are juridicially compe-
tent for that reason.

Mr. Manges: I offer the letter of June 20th, 1934,
as Plaintiff’s Exhibit No. 30.

(Marked Plaintiff’s Exhibit 30 in evidence.)

Mr. Manges: T offer the letter of October 4th,
1934, as Plaintiff’s Exhibit 31.

(Marked Plaintiff’s Exhibit 31 in evidence.)

Mr. Manges: That is all.

The Court: We will adjourn until a guarter of
three,

(Recess until 2:45 P, M.)

(ArrER RECESS.)

2:45 P, M.
JEROME SiEcEL, resumed the stand.

Re-cross Examination by Mr. Blum:

mga:z ihi";" g;@ ﬂlg earliest dated drawing that you can
PLroan J. e ‘4 1 erm - 2% s
letter dated 1084, " OTawings! A, Well, that

'al’hn Court: He didn’t make the drawings.
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man’’. Have yon any earl :
y dated drawing j
VVell, I d()n’t haVe any- repYOdu(‘;tion. g here? A.

Q. You haven’t got it7 A No.

By the Court:

Q.‘ Have you got any drawing? What s the earliest
drawing that you have got? Have you got any here?
A. Well, it was reprinted in the magazine,

Q. Is that the earliest representation you have got of 200
it? A. Well, no, it was not. It was first drawn on ordi-
nary paper.

Q. Of course it was. What have you got now? Sup-
posing somebody was doubting your word about it what
have you got to show, what can you produce and say
‘“Here is something that indicates when 1 first did this’’?

The Court: That is what you mean, don’t you!?
Mr. Blum: Yes, sir.

A. The only drawings 1 can show are those that are in
the magazine, 201

The Court: That begins in March, 1938, doesn’t it?

Mr. Manges: April.
The Court: The April number of 19387 - ‘
Mr. Manges: It is the June issue but published in

April.

Q. That is the earliest thing you have got to show!
A. Yes.
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By Mr. Blum:

Q. Please :
hook I hand you (handing
with the picture that you sa

1l seeil is picture.
1 don’t recall seeing this pie
. g Now 1 show you this picture on the other cover.

Is that the pictare which vou saw in 1957 or in 19367
A It might have been. I don’t remember exactly how

that appeared.

is pletur the cover of this

Kk at this picture on . :
oo witness). 1Is that identical
w sometime in 1937 or 1936¢

The Court: You can’t get anywhere with that.
Mr. Blum: I think so. I am through with this

witness.

Re-re-direct Examination by Mr. Manges:

(. Mr. Siegel, in your letter of June 20th, 1934, Plain-
tiff's Exhibit 30, you state: ‘“‘You may be interested to
know that a strip of mine entitled ‘Superman’ may be
syndicated in the daily newspapers in a half a year or
$0.”” Now, on the date that you wrote that letter were
there seripts of ‘‘Superman’’ in existence? A. Yes.

Q. In strips?

The Court: In drawings?
Mr. Manges: Yes.

we}g: Were there strips of it, of drawings? A. Yes, there
- g Ang{) prior “tg the date of the writing of this letter
o une 20th, 1934, had you sent “‘Superman’’ strips to
n&?’ Newspaper or magazine? A, Yes, I had sent it to the
wepaper syndicates or to a publisher’s syndicate

The Court: Are voy ojv:
P A n
The Witness: Yez 8Ving the real namef
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The Court: Publishers Svnd;

: : s Syndi
The Witness: Yes, yndieatel
The Court: Where is that?
The Witness: That is in Chicago,

A. (Continued) And to Mr. La Farve of
Newspaper Syndicate, e La Farve

Re-cross Exammation by Mr. Blum:

Q. What- happened to those drawings that you say
were made 1n 1934 and sent to these various people? A.
Well, they were pasted up into a magazine page form.

Q. Where are they now? A. Well, they are in the
magazine,

Q. I am asking about the original drawings that you
say were made in 1934, where are they?

Mr. Manges: He answered that they are in the
magazine.

The Court: He says the only place now is in the
magazine,

By the Court:

Q. What did you say? A. Yes, those drawings were
cut up and pasted into magazine form, into page form
for magazines.

Q. And then what happened to them? A And t}izey
were sent in and are now published in Action Comies.

Q. But after they were pasted in magazine form weze
they photographed or photestated or what happened to
them? How did they reproeduce them? A. 'I“hey #;vsfeiz
simply cut np into magazine page form and mflezd ghat
the magazine in the beginning of 1938. That is

happened to them.
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You mean the On€S that you say you had back

* 7 A. Yes. . . .
in 333111& then that was furned into this Action Comics

Y  nrinted but you made up a dummy or some-
f;igbﬁigsetzgaf with these pictures in 'it. From that they
reproduced the pictures, is that the idea? A. The very

res.
Saﬁz }:;Z??éry same pictures, yes, but don’t you see you
made one picture, you and your collaborator Shuster,
and then what he is asking you is where is that earliest
209 picture that you made and you say that you had made
some, you and Mr. Shuster, is that right? A. Yes.

Q. You made some before June 20th, 19347 A, Yes.

. Was Mr, Shuster working then with you? A. Yes,.

Q. You made some then and those same ones you had
made at that time were subsequently, not having been
taken by these other newspaper syndicates to whom you
offered them, were subsequently taken by Action Comics,
is that the story? A. Yes.

Q. Then Mr. Blum wants to ask you what has become
of those and you say what? A. I suppose they are in
the office of the magazine, in the files.

Q. In the files? A. I think so.

Q. Would they be dated? A. Well, they have no date
upon them,

Mr. Blum: That is all.
Mr. Manges: That is all.
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WarreN A. AxgrL, called as 3 wi
W . y Ca. : witness on b
plaintiff, being first duly sworn, testified ag f;lklljgs?f e

Direct Examination by Mr. Manges:

Q. Mr. Angel, are you connected with the def
Kable News Company? A. I am. efendant

Q. In what capacity? A. Vice-president and General
Manager.

Q. The Kable News Company distributed the May,
1939 issue of Wonder Comics, did it not? A, We did.

Q. And when did it distribute it? A. In the middle of
‘Mareh, 1939. This last month.

Q. Will you give us the dafe? A. I think it was com-
pleted on March 22nd,—final copies were shipped.

Q. And when did it begin? A. About the 15th, 16th.

Q). And how many copies of that issue of Wonder Com-
ics were distributed by Kable News Company?

212

My, Blum: I object to that. I think he is try-
ing to anticipate what may or may not be an ac-
counting. It is not important, the extent of the

defendant’s business.
The Court; I will let him do it.

213

A. Approximately 230,000. o ‘
Q. I show you this paper and ask you if this is a ¢ir-

cular distribnted by Kable News Company with respect

to Wonder Comics (handing witness) ! A. Tt is, sir. -
Q. And when was that circular distributed? A. I don t

know the exact date but it 18 in the latter part of Marech
I know.

The Court: After this was drawn up?

-
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Warren 4. Angel—for Plaintiff—Direct.
The Witness: Abont the same time we sent out
e . Fad w0

the book is ghout the same time we sent out the
he s a

copy. .. . ‘
f;{r Vaneges: 1 offer this 1n evidence,
PO ™ i

(Marked Plaintiff’s Exhibit 32 1n evidence.)

Q. T call your attention to the‘f;aet that Plaintiff’s Ex-
nibit 32 states: *May 1ssue shipping at once.” Does that
refresh your recollection as 1o whlqh vfzent. first, the d.}s-
tribution of the magazine or the distribution of the cir-
cular? A. T don’t know. I can’t answer that accurately
but it was probably sent out at the same time the books
were being shipped.

Q. I show you this poster and ask if that was a poster
used by the Kable News Company (handing witness)?
A. Yes, it was.

Q. In connection with Wonder Comics? A. That is
right.

Q. Was this poster distributed throughout the coun-
try? A. It was.

Mr. Manges: I offer it in evidence,
(Marked Plaintiff’s Exhibit 33 in evidence.)

; fQ. Mr. Angel, you know Mr. Fox, the president of the
efendant Bruns Publications, do you not? A. I do, sir.

Q. Did you ever have any conversation with Mr. Fox

as to the similarity of Wonder Comi . X
; om .
187 A. No, sir, T did not. les with Action Com

Q. You and he ne \ . o
ity of these two ma ver discussed the question of similar-

tents? gazines? A, Are you talking of con-
Q. Any kind of similari :
Q. Did youn ever iyl A No, sir.

ity w discuss the questi imi
. hoa estion -
ity with any other persony A, 1%,, gir of such similar

73
Warren A. Angel—for Plaintiff—Cross. 2l

Q. Y‘m say similarity in contents, Did you discuss
any other kind of similarity? A. Yes, sir. -

Q. What kind? A. Being a comic magazine I dis-
cussed that part of it

The Court: What do you mean by that?

The Witness: He handled about five comic maga-
zines of this type, like Detective Comies, Western
Comics, and I asked him what type of comic it was
and he said a general comic.

218
Q. But there was mo conversation concerning Action

Comies? A. No, sir, there was not.

Q. Was there any conversation concerning the char-
acter ““Wonderman’’? A. No, sir, there was not.

Q. Or ¢*Superman’’? A, No, 81T

Mr. Manges: That is all.

Cross-Examination by Mr. Fried:

Q. Mr. Angel, you are the vice-president of the Kable

News Company, are you not? A. Yes,. sir. | 219
Q. And your office is located here in New York City?

A. Right. '
Q. Kable News Company 18

magazines? A. Yes, sir. | ‘
%, About how m;ny magazines does Kable News Com

pany distribute? A, Title ;}; nuniggrs?

. Titles? A. About 175 or 180. .

g Alnd about how many copies of magamge; 516%’ gg;
Jistribute monthly? A. Between 7,000,000 and o

Q. A month? A. A month.

a national distributor of
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Warren 4. Angel—ior Plaintiff—Cross.

I respectfully object to this as not

. Manges: .
Mr g nothing that I brought

proper cross-esamination;

out. |
The Court: I don’t know what you are getting

1t does not seem to have anything to do with

af. ..
how it is a suecessful con-

this. If you want to 8

cern, I suppose it is. .
Mr. Fried: Your Honor, I want to get in the tes-

timony of Mr. Angel which I would give in direct
hecause 1 would like not to have Mr. Angel come
back tomoOIrTow.

The Court: I am quite willing to do that but 1
am only asking what it has got to do with this;
what is the importance of it. Supposing you called
him on direct examination, What was the point of
it?

Mr. Fried: These are just general questions, T
am just leading into something.

‘ Q. You entered into a contraet, did you not, Mr. Angel,
with the Bruns Publications for the distribution of Won-
der Comics? A. Yes, sir.

’ Q. How many issue of Wonder Comics have you dis-
tributed? A. One,

‘ Q. And that is the May, 1939, issue of Wonder Com-
1c8? A, Yes, sir,
o Q. Just how do you distribute this magazine? What is
¢ operation of distributing this magazine, Mr. Angel?

A, g‘he mechanical operation? ’

. Yes. A. We furnish th ’ ’

v 15 urnisn the publisher or his binder
or his printe : . . A y
bis ?1;;% 'Hter labels and instructions to ship directly from

Q. To wh W ._
out tho %m?g A. To our wholesalers located through-

75
Warre
arren 4. dngel—for Plamtiff—Cross. o2

Q. Were the labelg containing and names and addres
88es

of your wholesalers forwarg :
case? A. Yes. ed to any bindery in this

% 'i[;o c‘lwh(;lm? A. Trade Bindery,
. And where are they | ’
exact address, 1 think ityis Dgfstf %?treit..l dont Know the
Q. In New York City? A. In New York City
Q. And the magazines are then sent out by t.vh.e Trade
Bindery Company, are they? A. Yes, sir.
Q. Before Kable News Company even saw the maga-

zine, is that right? 294
The Court: What is the difference?

A. T saw copies partly, half way through the distribution.
Somewhere in there I saw copies.

MThe Court: It doesn’t make any difference any-

how.
Mr. Fried: This is really on the question of
knowledge and intent here, your Honor.
The Court: They did distribute it.
Mr. Fried: Yes, they did. There is no question
about that.
The Court: 1 don’t care what their intent was.

They run the risks of trespassing if they are Wrong.

225

Q. Did Kable News Company have any knowledge of
mics magazine? A. No, SiT.

the contents of Wonder Co : T
Q. Did it have anything to do with the manufacture

of the ‘“Wonderman’’? A. No, sir.

difference if

%t make any
o s that all?

t: That doesn
The Cour dightest. T

they distributed it, not the
Mr. Fried: That is all,
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I—for Plaintiff —Re-direct.

Warren A. Ange Y o
Warren A. Angel—for Plaintiff—Re-cross.

Discusston,

Re-direct Examination by Mr. Manges:

YVou have no sales figures as yet for the May isgu?’
have .you? A. Not as yet. We have none. The book is

still on sale.

Re-cross Examination by Mr. Fried:

Q. When does this book come off sale, Mr. Angel?
A. Tt should come off sale along about the latter part of
April.

Q. Then you won’t know what the actual sales of this
magazine are until 70 days thereafter, is that correct?
A. That is correct.

Q. That is 70 days after the off-sale date? A. That is
correct.

Mr. Fried: That is all.

Mr. Manges: I understand counsel will concede
that Mr. J. Stolz is a director of Interborough
News Company, is that correct?

Mr. Fried: He is a vice-president.

Mr. Manges: I understand it will be conceded
that on or about July 27, 1938, Mr. Stolz sent a
certain letter to all branch managers, inspectors and
route men, with which Interborough News Company

ifaad relations, a letter in the form that T
1 my hand,

The Court: What date?

Mr, Manges : July 27th, 1938, Is
: Mr, Koenig: |
statement that

have here

that correct?
I merely tell Mr, Manges on his
Mr. Stolz sent ont this letter I

17

Discussion,

would' I}Ot require him to prove the actual sendine
out of it by producing him. °

The Court: Is it signed?

Mr. Manges: No; it is a mi

The Court: Whees js My St;ll;zographed letter.

Mr. Manges; I was going to subpoena him. I
asked if T would have to and they said no, they
would concede the letter was sent out and, acting
on that, I didn’t subpoena him. If there is any
question about it 1T would like to subpoena him.

The Court: Did you see the letter before?

Mr. Manges: I showed it to him before.

Mr. Koenig: I said I would not require Mr. Stolz
to be produced to say he sent out the letter.

The Court: That speaks for itself. If he did
send out the letter or circular, whatever it is, then
let it be admitted.

Mr. Koenig: Mr. Fried represents the Interbor-
ough News Company.

Mr. Fried: If your Honor please, 1 represent the
Interborongh News Company in this case but I
know nothing about this letter and I certainly am
not in the position to concede that the letter was
written. I know nothing about it. As a matter of
fact, this letter was written in 1938.

Mr. Manges: Then T ask that Mr. Stolz be pro-
duced.

The Court: Where is he?

Mr. Manges: He is up in his office.

The Court: Where is his office? '

Mr, Fried: The last I knew of Mr. Stolz is he
went out to Detroit to attend the faneral of the
president of the Interborough News Company, g‘;:
of the defendants in this case. Whether he
come back or not I do not know.
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78
Discussion.

Mr. Manges: Mr. Stolz, T am informed, is in his
Dﬁ:‘;ieﬁggér?f}%aﬂ him up and tell him to come
dmﬁ lhez‘*eﬁ Have one of yvour men (‘;:a,]l him up and
tell him to come down here. Why didn’t you speak
to the person that represented Interborough News
Company?

Mr. Manges: I did, your Honor, I spoke to both
of these gentlemen this morning. 1 spoke to both
of these men.

The Court: This is not the Municipal Court.

Mr. Fried: Mr. Manges, in order that the record
be clear, you will have to concede I made no com-
ment about that letter. You showed me the letter
and then it was taken out of my hands and I made
no comment about that letter,

The Court: In order to prove it he would have to
have Mr. Stolz; you knew that, didn’t you? You
knew he would have to prove it by Mr. Stolz, didn’t
you?

Mr. Fried: Perhaps. I didn’t even know that.
I bad no notice of this letter at all.

The Court: Well, we will get 1t in eventually by
somebody. There must be other people in their
ﬁﬁége. You subpoena the whole bunch of them and
bring them down here tomorrow.

yg%?ﬁiiifég: Otherwise the plaintiff will rest,
The Court. i 1
after the defe;daf}}f;’lzzszﬁl ?}Tl i fhat fetter
Has the defendant got anybody to call?
gg ﬁ};m: Do you rest, Mr. Manges?
v Bl gj%‘%: Wﬁ rest except for that letter.
- Blum: That cay always go in at any time,

» g
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William Ersner—for Defendants—Direct.
WitLiam E}SNER, called as a witness on behalf of the
defendants, being first duly sworn, festified as follows.

Direct Examination by Mr. Blum

Q. State your age, residence and occupation? A, I
am twenty-two years old. T am an artist. I live at 2564
Creston Avenue, Bronx, New York,

(). Are you engaged in business for yvourself? A.T am,

(. What is the nature of that business? A. We sup-

- ply comic material for newspapers and magazines.

Q. Who is the other person who is associated with
you in that business? A. Mr. Iger.

Q. Did you supply or did Mr. Iger and you supply to
the defendant in this case Bruns Publications the pie-
tures and the drawings for the matter complained of?
A. Yes, we did.

Q. What was your relation with the Bruns Company
at that time? Were you employed by them or were you
independent contractors? A. We were independent con-
tractors.

Q. In addition to supplying material in the form of
drawings and script to the Bruns Company, the defend-
ant in this case, have you also supplied such material to
other concerns? A. We have.

The Court: What has this got to do with it? It
doesn’t make the slightest impression on me. These

people published the thing.

Q. This is the material you supplied—

The Court: What difference does tit makej It :&ﬁ
there and I look at it. I am not going to listen to
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William Eisner—ijor Defendants—Direct,

ust perfectly absurd. Why you want to

it. It 18 J ot understand.

into it I cann : | )
g’a\;n Blum: I want to go into the question now
;_ I‘c b * |

whether he copied and where he derived the mata-

.ial that he supplied to the defendant._ ‘

The Court: It doesn’'t make any dlﬂer?nee. ‘If
ihé result of the thing is gometh.mg that is eop;led
and they knew this magazine, f..hlS other magazine,
and here they have got this thing, what difference
does it make whether the man who drew these
things—you mean you want to show he didn’t know
the other magazine?

Mr. Blum: I want to show this: that before he
had ever heard of plaintiff’s magazine he had sub-
mitted to the defendant his own drawings and
seript of the character in issue; that he was told
to come back; that at the end of a year or so he
‘fnally induced the defendant Bruns Company to
publish his material and that before that time, be-
fore he had ever heard of the plaintiff’s magazine
or character, this man, from his knowledge of comie
strips and his reading of strips like ‘‘The Phan-
tom” and others, had found these common sources
and derived the idea of a man dressed in tight fit-
ting costume and performing all these feats.

In these copyright cases I think the defendant is
entitled to prove first lack of actual copy, that the
material was originated before the plaintiff’s ma-
terial appeared on the market and that there was
4 common source which was availed of by this
man. Those are the standard defenses which I
have listed in my little trial memorandum and you
are a:lways allowed to prove that. If it were a
question, for example, of a low comedy Irishman
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William, Eisnermfor Defendants—-—-l)imct

and a low comedy Jew

ﬁ)ose'c_ase, I that cage the defendant was allowed
prove that these comie characters wer

for many, many years and the ¢ ?me lknf)wn

its knowledge not . e ‘efendant derived

. : i om the plaintiff but from some

SOULCEs common to all, and that is what I am try-

g to prove here. Tt ig a standard

think proof of that kind | om0 and I
- 1as been offered in other

cases,

The Qourt: [ understand if T wanted to cut oyt
everything else except that question of access and
Just take those things and look at it that is all 1
would have to do in this case.

Mr. Blum: Suppose, for example, your Honor,
you would believe this man made g drawing in
January, 1938, and submitted it to the defendant
Bruns Publishing Company before the plaintiff’s
magazine had ever been published? ‘

The Court: It doesn’t make the slightest differ-
ence if the Bruns Company—before the plaintiff’s
magazine had ever been published?

Mr. Blum: Yes.

The Court: Then these people went on after
the magazine had been published, they went and
picked up this thing and found it had gone well and
went on and took it on and they knew it was, ac-
cording to their contention, a copy.

Mr., Blum: But even in the case of a copy you
must prove something more than access; you must
prove an actual plagiarism or copying.

The Court: You can do it by looking at it. That
is the way you do it. I am very used t.tf these cases.
All T have to do is look at the two things and de-
termine it. This man could talk blue in the face
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William gisner—for Def endants—Direct.

o thing was not eapie@ from another

't make any diﬁer.enee if you had that
thing and this thing was published and they knew

it ;fz&ﬁ it was published. *

Mr. Blum: May I remind your Homnor of the
Dardanella case where Jerome Kern was accused
of bhaving copied his song frc:tm anetheri He took
the stand and denied the ’eopylng. He said that the
gundamental musical motif was one in B.eethoven’s
Symphony published a hundred years pI‘lOI‘.ti) tpat
and then Judge Learned Hand made up his mind
as to whether when Mr. Kern wrote it he was
thinking of the plaintiff’s song or whether he was
thinking of Beethoven’s Symphony.

The Court: How can he make up his mind on a
thing like that?

Mr. Blum: He made up bis mind adversely to
the defendant because he said on the entire case he
believed Mr. Kern was thinking of Beethoven’s
musical motif and not of the plaintiff’s theme.

The Court: I am not going to waste much time
on this. Just exactly what is it you want to prove?

Mr. Blum: I want to prove this: that before the
plaintiff’s magazine was published this man and his
associate had produced the drawings and part of
the script which is complained of in issue without
the slightest knowledge of any work that might have
beef‘ done by plaintiff’s writer and by plaintiff’s
ﬁl‘j}iﬁt at that time; that the material was then sub-
mxtt?d to the Bruns Company prior to the time of
p ubhﬂaﬁ?ﬁ of the plaintiff’s magazine; that this
;?I; éﬁﬂ:fad his knowledge of this figure, this man
been anwéﬁhéz’ from ‘fThe ‘Phant-osm’ ’ ’ which hfid
papers f HIOWn comic strip running in the daily
or about three years prior to that.

but it doesn
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William Eisner—for Defendamgh_mmct
The Court: T don’t kno

can be copyrighted.

whole thing, which yO

copy of the other,

th:%ri‘n ?Lzﬁérngggag e:xtent, 1If this man states
of his figure y’l’nﬁd " @d$ ::“mq?le, he hgd concelved
that to t}i’& défendafxtig) rawings and submitted
., : runs Company, the inquiry
?aturally starts with, first, whether he is to be be-
ieved. Now, if the plaintiff’s figure were g very
unusual groteisque figure, let us say, like ‘“Betty
Boop’’ or ‘‘Mickey Mouse’” or ‘““Barney Google,” to
take some of the adjudicated cases, and this man
says he was the prior originator, we have one issue
of credibility. On the other hand, whereas in *The
Phantom’’ you do have a prominent representation
of a man dressed in skin tights and wearing a mask
and performing all kinds of feats of incredible
agility, you do have common to the world what this
man says was the source from which he got his
idea and to that extent, as I understand the com-
plaint—we have no bill of particulars but going
back to the moving papers for preliminary injune-
tion where the plaintiff stated its case, what they
did there was this: Out of the several hundred
pictures of plaintiff’s various issues and the one
issue of defendant’s magazine they took little
panels or frames, about five or six of the de.fend-
ant’s, and said that there the script and the pxetur-e
is a deceptive simulation of panels with pmtureﬂs
and seript in plaintiff’s magazine. That was the
allegation of eopying. ‘
For example, they claim that because*thxa man
had described his figure as ¢The Champion of the

W whether a man in tights
The question ig whether g3
U see here, whether one ig a
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250 [Villiam Fisner—ri o Defenda
hat was a coincidence to stating that

?, - L
Oppressed” t n of mere coincidence be-

to warrant the assumptio

: seribed their man
‘331;;;‘6 t(hii{;r??glc don’t want to hear the whole case

MI%; edﬁlum: My questions will be very brief.
T}; Conrt: ﬁaw long wil} this tak??
Mr. Blum: I should say it wouldn’t t'ake more
than five minutes for this man and five minutes for
an.
al};?f%:;ft: All I'ight, I will hear you, but I don't
think there is very much in it so long as he pub-

lished it after, but go on.

251
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Q. I show you a sheet of drawings and call your at-
tention to the full length figure, which I will designate
with a capital X, and ask you when you made the first
drawing of that figure? A. The first drawing of that fig-
ure was made early last year,

Q. What part of 19387 Give us the month as best you
can. A. Approximately January.

The Court: Is that thing I see before me a draw-
ing in pen and ink on paper?

The Witness: That is a drawing in pen and ink
on paper.

The Court: You mean it is an original drawing?

The Witness: That is the original.

‘Q. Now, how about the other items which appear on
this sheet fif paper, when were they drawn or written, in
What and in what year? A. The rest of the page was

drawn in early Janua i
anuary of this year.
Q. That is 19393 A 1939, ’

%
%
i
3
5
&
ik
b
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William, Eisner—tfor pe fendamts—Direct

Mr. Manges::

The Court: T wiy put a cirele in req around it,

All the rest of it outside ..
‘ of th JBE
in January of 19393 ' red pencil line was

The Witness: Yes,

Mr. Blum: I offer ip e

tified by the X in req
hibit B.
, Mr. M.ange.s; I object to it upon the ground it is
zmmgterlgl, mmcompetent and irrelevant, and not
binding in any way upon the plaintiff, It they
sat down and copied our material it i a plagiarism
regardless of the date when a part of the drawing
may have been commenced,

The Court: I think probably you are right, it
would be a plagiarism, but it is irrelevant and im-
material. T don’t really see anything in that thing
myself. Mark it for identification and if I am
wrong then you can have it if you go up.

Mr. Blum: This is made by this man, according
to his testimony, before the plaintiff’s publication
ever appeared upon the market,

The Court: Yes, but that did not appear on the
market. The plaintiff’s publication did appear on
the market before the defendant’s publication sub-
sequently came out.

Mr. Blum: Will your Honor permit me to offer
that in evidence for what it is worth? ‘

The Court: No, I will let you mark it for identi-
fication and I will exclude it. ,

Mr. Blum: Before I make my offer I would like

to ask a few questions.

vide?nee the drawing iden-
pencil as Defendant’s Ex.

Q. At the time that you made the drawing maaka?
with a capital X had you in any way known or Izerar 0
the plaintiff’s character *‘Superman”’? A. No, sir.
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Defendants—IDrect.

] { your original drawing
Q. Was this drawing marked X ¥ gine o

A, Yes, sir. .
Q. And in maki

anv other drawing? A. No,

ng that dra’s?’ing’ did you copy it from
sir.

g 1 71 2 tb.iS I'i inoe
Mr. Blum: I now offer i ev idence drawing

as Defendant’s Exhibit B. o
Mr. Manges: I renew my objection,

e

he Court: I will exclude it. . 3
Irfij Blum: I ask that it be marked for identifica-

tiom.

(Marked Defendant’s Exhibit B for Identifica-
tion.)

Q. I show you Defendant’s KExhibit A for Identifica-
tion and ask you to look at the portion of Defendant’s
Exhibit A which is entitled ‘‘The Phantom.’’ For how
many years have you known of a comic strip, ‘‘The Phan-
tom,"”” being published in this country?

Mr. Manges: Objected to as incompetent, irrele-
vant and immaterial,

The Court: What difference does that make? I
don’t understand this whole thing. I think you
are entirely on the wrong track about it. I may
be wrong—I don’t say I am right—but I am just
telling you what my impression is.

Mr. Blum: Your Honor, I tried to brief this in
my trial brief and it seemed to me that under the
authorities—first of all we go back to the old case—
mahe Court: T don’t want to hear the case argued

Mr. Blum; But, your Honor, T state, as I under-
f}?ﬂd the law and the reason why I am offering
ﬂf ft&ﬁtlmony 18 if there i8 any similarity between

gures of the respective parties but there was
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William E’is%er—ﬁfor De fe%da/nts——l)irect

ln} - I«t . ]
fcndan‘F d(‘ﬁl-l\ed whatevey similarity exists
something in the I5ts - from

Public domain, thyt

‘ . 14N, | .
there can be no finding of infringement, p(g}haih?;
my theory and for that reason I would like to ask
one or two questions. | "

The Court.

.Lﬁl]. ri(?" .
dence in. You ght, 50 0n and get your evi-

cqn mark that for identification and
e 1t then T will take it byt you go on

and ask your questiong and get through.

Q. For how many yvears have y
strip entitled ‘‘The Phantom’’
fendant’s Exhihit A?

on known of the comie
which appears upon De-

Mr. Manges: That is objected to as incompe-
tent, irrelevant and immaterial,

The Court: I will let him answer that.

A. T think five years,

Q. You are sure that it was at least as far back as
19377 A. Positive,

Q. And did you know of this comic strip ‘“The Phan-
tom’’ before you had ever heard of the plaintiff’s char-
acter or of its seript? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Does that Defendant’s Exhibit A for Identifica-
tion illustrate the manner in which ‘‘The Phantom’’ has
been portrayed to the public? A. It does.

Mr. Blum: I offer Defendant’s Exhibit A for
Identification in evidence.

The Court: I think probably the best thing to do
is to reserve my views on that for the moment and
also on the other exhibit. I will reserve my rul-
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William Eisner—for Defendants—Direct.
}?‘.’ D o ¥

.awing this chap subsequently
ing myt%mh it)hlf gugia]?;dgmarked for identification
made Whmn “this one and we will see how it de-
and also }irhaps during the argument I will de-
v.elap& that. 1 think it is a very interestir.lg ques-
f:gz Orh is 'ngething that 1 am quite satisfied in
my ;:nind ahout. We will take this up on the argu-

ment.

Q. Did you personally prepare all the drawings and

g all the seript for the defendant’s publications? A. I did
26 '

264

—not all of the drawings. | '
Q. Who is the man who made some of the drawings

if you didn’t make them all? A. Well, we have boys
working in the office. .

Q. Were all the drawings made under your supervi-
sion?! A. They were,

Q. Were any of the drawings of the defendant’s pub-
lications copied from any of the drawings in Action Com-
ies, which is the plaintiff’s publication? A. No.

Q. Was any of the script of the defendant’s publica-
tion copied from any of the seript or words of the plain-
tiff’s publication? A. No, sir.

Q. Referring to Defendant’s Exhibit B for Identifica-
tion and these words * Thus was Fred Carson the Wonder-
man endowed with supernatural strength’’ and so on.
When for the first time did you designate your figure
as the ‘“Wonderman’’? A. When I first presented the
sketeh that is marked with the X to Mr. Fox.

The Court: And when was that?

The Witness: That was in J anuary of last year,
1938.

Q. What month of 19387 A January of 1938.

Q. And at the time

words ““The Wondermg you thought of the phrase o

N7 had you at fygt ti

’ﬁ 1] ¥ £ + " m ¥
heard ou h.cid'}ou ever known of «y, Superma me  ever
1s the plaintiff’g character? A N, sir b which

L] , P ) .

Q. Tell the Court how you canie to think of the jdeq

of a man dressed ip tight fitting costume and performi
numerous wonderfyl feats, as bertormng

. . . T ‘ . ‘ )
Exhibit B for Ldentification? “Presented in Defendant’s

Mr. Manges: That is
the scope of the issues,

The Court: How dig he think of ity

Mr. Blum: Suppose T reframe the question.

objected to as not within

Q. When you drew Defendant’s Exhibit B for Identi-
fication and you got the idea of representing this figure
performing a number of feats showing strength and agility
had you previous to that time read or known of charae-
ters in literature dressed like the man in Defendant’s
Exhibit B for Identification and performing numerous
feats of strength and agility?

Mr. Manges: That is objected to.

The Court: T don’t think that is in these cases.
It doesn’t make the slightest difference what was
formerly in literature. If you are writing history
it doesn’t make any difference about those things.
It doesn’t seem to me that it does. He said he
had this thing independently and did not copy it.
We will have to see whether subsequent proceedings
resulted in a breach of the plainfiff’s copyright b;y
reason of the publication of this thing, wheth?r it
is near enough like it to be a breach of ee::;)ymght,
but I don’t see what other people did. It is not 2
question of antecedent things that were affected
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4 1g just a : .
at all, 1t 18 Ju8 time you publish something it

Rvery ) .
fromf B@-ﬁmething into the public domain. Anybody
thwszv tat to a certain extent—he can copy it
can copy U

too much and he has to be very, very particulgz-
: otarts to do any copying ando if access is
if h6d~ it dilutes bis claim that he didn’t copy it,
gﬁz speak. You are attempting to caunte}' on
that with dilution of the claim ¥nade by _t}:le plam.tlﬁ’
of copying by claiming that th{s man did the thing
antecedent to the time the plaintiff’s ‘‘Superman’’
wag published, but T don’t see that. . .

Mr. Blum: We don’t have to go into Achilles
with impervious skill.

The Court: You did in this brief.

Mr. Blum: We don’t have to go into that. I
don’t want to argue the case, I want to get
through, but may I suggest this: In the ‘‘Betty
Boop”’ case which your Honor decided let us as-
sume there had been proof that the ‘‘Betty Boop”’
figurine had been sold for a hundred years, with the
exception of some very slight immaterial variation
in contour?

The Court: I don’t believe a hundred years ago
they had a conception of “Betty Boop’”.

Mr. Blum: You see the defendant’s figurine and
the plaintiff’s figure, the two of them look very
much alike, but the defendant’s figurine very much
resembles something, let us say, which was com-
monly sold ten years previously and the defendant
says ‘“‘Before I designed my doll T knew that this

thing had been made and you could buy it in any
store for ten years,”’

91
. " |
William E:-.merm-for Defernda,m.qml)ire(-t
The Court: Yy
. PRt You are arguine
N ot SUWHIE e case. T don’
tiant dte hear any argument of the cgge. What nz%t
Gﬁr 0B3lrou want to ask? T wi] pass on fhat qnm;:
» Blum: The question T want to ask ig this:

Q. What sources

ing the figure which is markeq with a capital X in De-

fendant’s Exhibit B for Identificat;
‘atio
you and published to the world? I, sources known to

Mr. Manges: Objected to ag
of the issues.
The Court: T will take it subject to objection but

I don’t believe it hag got anything to do with it.
Go on.

not within the scope

A. The mythical characters— —

Q. Let us confine ourselves to comic strips, books and
things.

The Court: Confine yourself to ‘““The Phantom’’,
or whatever it is.

A. I was influenced by ‘‘The Phantom’ who defended
poor people and wore a skin-tight costume.

Q. In the daily sequences of the ‘‘The Phantom’ as
that appeared in the newspapers, is this character repre-
sented or was it represented as performing feats of great
strength and agility? A. I didn’t hear all of that.

Q. In these prior publications of ‘‘The Phantom’ prior
to the beginning of 1938 was that char&ete-r.“The Phan-
tom’’ shown in these cartoons as performing feats of

great strength and agility?

Mr. Manges: I object to that as not t_he best evi-
dence and not within the scope of the 1ssues.
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L
. or Defendants—Cross.
T E’?S‘m??”“—'ﬁ”
Willwam
said he thought of ‘‘The Phan-

The Court: He ture of *“The Phantom” in

tom’’ and We have a pic
there, haven’t we!
Ay, Blum: Yes.
The Court: 1 will .
peed any more of this.
| Mr. Blum: Very good.

wiiness.

ustain that objection. 1 don’t

I am through with this

1 : At
Cross-Examinatton by Mr. Manges:

Q. Mr. Eisner, when is the first time that you ever
SawW ;m*pies of the magazine Action Comics? A. 1 don’t

11 it definitely. : ‘
reﬁ% ?Yi}ﬁ don’t recall? A. No. T have seen it from time

to time.
Q. From what time to what time? A. Well, T have

seen it on the newsstands.

Q. How long ago? A. Several months ago.

Q. How many months ago? A. I don’t recall.

(). One month ago or eleven months ago? A. Between
that time; about eight months ago.

Q. Don’t you follow the comic magazines as they come
ont? A. I am aware as they come out.

Q. Isn’t that your line of trade? A. That is true.

Q. If you were selling a Chevrolet car would you watch
the Plymouth? A. Well, naturally.

Q. If you saw a new magazine come out in April,
1538, Action Comics, would you look at it then or mnot?
A. T didn’t know the exact date when it did come out.

\ The Co-urt:: He said he doesn’t remember when
%18 first saw it. He couldn’t possibly see it before
1t came out and it came out in April, 1938.

93

William Eisner—f, I)efe%damsﬂt?ms‘;
Mr. Manges: Yeg
out whether he .

came out in April, 1938,
The Wilness: No, T did not

Q. Did you see it in Ma
exact month I saw an isspe
that date.

. Did y '
Q v you read the contents of the magazine? A, No.
Q. You never read ““Superman®’? A, No

) (). Never tg this day have you read the seript of
Superman”’, is that right? A, No. I saw it recentl
Q. You said you didn’t know? ’

vy, '1938? A. T don’t recall the
of it but T saw it later on after

The Court: He said he didn’t read it then when
“he first saw it.

Q. When for the first time did you ever read the

comic strip ‘‘Superman’’? A. About several days after
our comic book came out.

The Court: Why did you read it then?
The Witness: Because T was informed by Mr.
Fox that some sort of action was being taken.

Q. Referring to this lawsuit? A. Referring to a law-
suit.

Q. And until you heard of this lawsuit you, the cre-
ator of ‘““Wonderman’’, never read the strip ‘‘Superman”,
is that right? A. That i1s true.

Q. And when you did read ‘‘Superman’” did you see
the clanse ‘‘Champion of the Oppressed’’ repeated sev-
eral times? A. I think I have seen that.

Q. You think you have seen it? A. I am not sure.
It was mentioned several times. I don’t know.

st ey oo
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William Risner—jfor Defenda?’e-ts—mé‘mss,

. ever used that phrase?
new whether you
Q. Do you know
The Court: 1 was voing to say that those are
e C : ST | .
; rdinary English words. You mean Jl].bt‘ bfe-
ust O't 1s r:epeated about thiz man therefore it is
£ I}Se 1 W . . . LT L
on of vour main claims for infringement?
one o _— rman’’ 1s confinually por-
Mr. Manges: upe ., b
traved as ‘‘Champion of the Oppressed. They
J ‘ ‘ ey b6
ng that phrase throughout. They use Wm.lder-
. i the Oppressed’’—the same iden-
man, Champion of the Opp

tical phrase,

Q. Did you ever see the words ‘‘Foe of evil and in-

justice’’ In ¢‘Quperman’’? A. I don’t recall the exact
words of the feature,

The Court: Of course, I can look at all these
things and compare the two and see whether one
of them is too close to the other.

Mr. Manges: This is only on credibility, your
Honor.

The Court: All right; go on.

Mr. Manges: I would like to go down the list on
some of these things and see what position he 1s
going to take with reference to them. Some of
thermn may refresh his memory.

The Court: I will let it in. Cross-examination
18 a very wide field. Go on.

Q. The ‘‘Superman’ and ‘““Wonderman’’® are dual

characters, are they not? A. What do you mean, dual,
two characters, two different characters?

Q. Aren’t they in the character of an ordinary per-

#on and then they both, when they take off their ordinary
garments, they assume the character of a person with

95

Wills SHe
am E’wne?‘mfor Defenda%ts——(?mss

superhuman attributes; th
1th respect to hoth

of them? A, Well, as for .

Q. Yesor no? A g don ’;ﬂi(eﬁeg&fondermannm
the ““Superman’’ o
the other to one,

Q. You did read the Nove :
pon]ics, did you not? A, 1 1311}))22 12?1?@1?}?35 oi Action
issue looked like. T don’t remember the b oat that
see a copy cxact date. If 1

Q. I refresh your recollection t}
* . * N lat at i o M .
““Outside the night club, he sheds page 8 it states:

his garments
glasses and stands revealed in the § ; > and

- . uperman uoniform,’’
Do you remember having read that? A, T have seen that

18t that gq wi

The Court: Is th
of it?

Mr. Manges: There is
your Honor.

at a picture with the moon back

a moon back of one; yes,

Q. And do you remember in your issue at page +4:
‘““Alone on the deserted field a transformation takes place.
Fred Carson removes his outer garments and becomes the
Wonderman, mightiest human on earth”’; do you re-
member that in yours? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Is it not true then that both *‘Superman” and
““Wonderman’’ have a dual personality?

The Court: An ordinary man who wears glasses
and a man who takes his clothes off and becomes
incredible, that is what he means.

A. Well, he does. He wears civilian clothes as a dis-
guise. He is essentially the ‘Wonderman.’’ He only
wears those clothes to disguise the fact that he 1s a
‘““Wonderman’’,
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sner—for Defendants—Cross,

william Et
Q. Is not that ¢act also true with respect to ‘‘Super-

19 A From what 1 read in that issue, yes.

mag That is not at all true with respeet to ‘‘The

is it? is true. He wears civilian clothes
Phantom’’, is it? A. It 18

to disgnise his persoll.

97
William, Ez’sneru—mfor Defendang
e ants—

Q. This idea of
when did that oce
feature.

Q. Was that back in 19389

Q. When? A, That wag W

Cross.

‘ “VOnderman a1
ur tO you"_} A A

Q. Isn’t “‘The Phantom’’ just one per‘gorfality? A. ];.10,
Q: In the strip ‘‘The Phantom’’ there 1s no occasion
where an ordinary man becomes superhuman through a
change of costume, ;s there? A. Well, he doesn’t become

.ause he changes his costume at all. L
superhuman because he ¢ ! ’ ' think in Decemb
Q. And there is not the dual personality that there is Q. That wag .

the feature in January hen recently completeq

287 53 (i 1y 3 C 1 )
in the cage of ‘‘Smperman’’ and Worzderrflan , 1s there? Of this last year I‘fgggd m December of what year? A 290
A. The fact that ““Wonderman’’ changes big costume does ’ .
not make him superhuman. The Court:
Q. But he is never superhuman until he takes off his drawing of I’;h.is ?nOanI l?fhdeljsmnd, aside from thig
ordinary garments, isn’t that right? A. It depends on the | on his chest in De fen(;zlnt’ shlES} h}?iédts Bra;sed and a W
. £0iby or Identifica-
story. tion, do I understand t i o4
Q. Is that right? A. It depends entirely on the story. | other part of thisa\iagtgiz“ifl?j ?'Om ﬂlatl 9aél the
I can not state a rule. | | subsequent theveto? anuary, 1959, or
Q. Do you recall a drawing that you did of ‘“Wonder- The Witness: That is richt
Ly 3 : &ril,
fflér& ;fnig It:;;fhi{f}?a iﬂlllmgsn and using the phrase ;.E‘.}llle ‘%q?rt: Ei&?}iything else on this exhibit?
, _ . e Witness: at is right.
088 Q. Do you remember seeing a copy of ‘‘Superman’’ 8
also running into a full moon and using the phrase ¢Off Q. You say you created the cover of Wonder Comies 291

in 1938, do you not? A. Yes.

' Q. You swore to an affidavit in this action in opposi-

tion to a motion for a preliminary injunction, did you

not? A. T did.

: dQ. You swore to that on the 20th of March, 19391 A.
id.

Q. Do you remember swearing to this effect at that
time: ‘“ * * * that he (meaning youn) created the cover

with respect to Wonder Comics in January, 1939”1 A.
Now you mentioned it, I must have.

S g s -

into the night’’ in the caption? A. A lot of words includ-
ing that.

SRR S

3

.Mr, Blum: Would you mind reading the entire
thing in each magazine?
The Court: I don’t care about what he remembers
or doesn’t remember about this thing. What is the
%’0953 Of going through all those parallel copyings?
Mr. Manges: 1 thought he might remember that
some of these things were before him when he
did his drawing,

e Court: He said that they were not already.

fee
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' o tor Defendants—Cross,
William Ersne! for D¢,

Which is correct? A. Well, it. was over a period of

. Q. Th eason [ mentioned that 1S‘becaus‘,@ T presented

et 'e" ; over and then the final drawing was made.

q sketch ot the cov then the fnal drawing was made.

= f ¥ 3 {}:e G
¢ Piyéi E iE(} p._‘[-(],m Pl
“iﬁ {ff}'{i?} “i}i}?{' I}{ ]ll&(é {’}!“i ! e“ Ie ﬁ tl

dmmn{%ﬁiﬁ%eiit 1;10 Defendant’s Exhibit B for Identi-
ﬁgag;:m I eall vour attention to 'the fact that th‘e top of it
is roughened. Was there anything taken off of that? A,
Yes, there was the title of the story, the ‘*Wonderman”’,
That was taken off the drawing. '

Q. Why was that taken off before it was presented
here! A. Because we saved the title to place the title on
future drawings in order to save the job of redrawing the

title,

By the Court:

Q. You mean that is cut off? A. No, it was not cut
off just before I brought it here.

Q. You cut the drawing when you make the title? A.
It 1s page 1.

Q. As shown on page 1 in volume 1 of Wonder Com-
ics in order not to have to draw and redraw the same
heading? A. Exactly.

Q. You just cut off that part of it? A. That saves
considerable time, yes, sir. |

Q. And this first page here of this “Wonderman”’ is
Practically that same drawing there, isn’t it? A. Except
for the fact that it had color,
top%h?hﬁi{ hﬁfﬁ. color ;and that hasn’t got the title on the

P Which it did bave in the first place? A. That is right.

Q. Then you took it off to use on the next number, is

that it? A, That ig ri
used it, 1s right. On subsequent numbers we
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William Eisner—¢
fOT Defenda%t.s%rogsl 295

By Mr. Manges:

Q. Have you the rest of that
We can present it if you wish, We

Q. Has it any date on it?
is the exact replica of it,

baper preserve(y A.
can get it. We have it
A. No, it has no date, That

The Court: This is the exact re
see the curve there where the
in.

plica. You can
“Wonderman’’ comes

Q- You' Say the insert X 1s the only part of Defend. 296
ant’s HKxhibit B for I:dentlﬁcation which was completed
before January, 1939, is that right? A. That is right,

Q. And the insert X is superimposed in the cage of
this exhibit on something else. Can you tell us what is
underneath Exhibit X? A. There is another drawing un-
derneath of that character., I will explain that piece of
paper that is pasfted on the board, which is a piece of
bond on which we make sketches. We use a soft bond and
that drawing we wanted more suitable after I had com-
pleted it, completed the page, so I merely pasted over it
and let that go as that.

Q. For what use did you draw the insert X back in g9
19387 A. That was to show to Mr. Fox the idea of the
character.

Q. Of what character? A. ‘‘Wonderman.” |

Q. Did you first use the expression «“Wonderman on
any drawing after conferring with Mr. Fox{ A. T don’t
understand. You mean after January, 19381 "

Q. No. At any time did Mr. Fox suggest to you G% i
. ” 19 A. No, it was my thought.
ing the figure ‘“Wonderman "t A. X0, tter M.

Q. And was that thought expressed by yﬁ;ga A, That
Fox had given you an order to do any art workt A.
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ossed by me when I first presented the sketch iy,
was exXpres o

Janunary, 1938.

By the Court: |
Q. Have you got a nom de p_lume which you use? A,
I do it under several nom de pl}mlea.
Q. Which ones? A. Will Erwin and Renze and Edwin
p. Willis. We put nom de plumes on thes';e drawings be.
canse 1 do so many of them I can’t possibly
Q. You don’t remember your own name? A. It doesn't
sound like my own name.
Q. You have got what looks like Crown Willis on this.
A. It is Erwin. It is very, very small
Q. What you meant was Erwin Willis? A, Yes.
Q. And that is one of your nom de plumes? A, Yes,
Q. Why do vou use a nom de plume? The only way
to get a reputation is to come out sfraight on your own.
I don’t see why you use a nom de plume. A. Because T
do so many if I signed my right name to each piece—I
use a different style on some features than I use in
others and in some places I draw what is called a straight
Ulustration and in some I do oo comics.
Q. Yt}ﬂ mean a straight illustrator does not want to
be associated with goop comics, is that the idea? A. No;
it is better business because the publishers who buy the

stuﬁ feel that it is not good when one man is doing the
entire book, all the features.

B:y M?‘. Mmgegz

1 4 print . . :
that iprmt of your ink drawing? A. That is not a print,

i# the original ink drawing,

wh;ii}f .ifamti That is the original ink drawing

colored and reproduced in color.

R R
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William  Eisner—foy Defendants Oross
Q. And is the insert X also the o
A. That was the original ink draw;
Q. And where was
large sheet? A. That
that was part of it.

Q. Have you got the rest of that? A, No, sir,
Q. What did you do with it? A Destroyed it.

Q. When did you destroy it? A. We destroyed that
sometime last summer, in 1938,

riginal ink drawing?
ng.

this ingert X taken from, another
was taken from g large bond sheet

The Court: What did it contain?

The Witness: It contained a preliminary sketeh
for a magazine that we first presented to Mr.
Fox in January, 1938 called Kid Comics.

The Court: And then you decided on a different
thing that you were going to do and just took
that one thing out, that figure?

The Witness: That is right.

Q. Did you ever show the insert X to anybody else
except Mr. Fox after you drew it?7 A. Not that I can
think of.

Q. And when did you show it to Mr. Fox? A. The
first time we showed it to Mr. Fox was in January, 1938.

Q. In your affidavit submitted in op'pesition. to the
preliminary injunetion you went very thoroughly into the
whole question of originality, did you not? A. Appar-
ently, yes.

. What? A. Yes. ‘

8, And you claimed therein in page 1, dldL?"_’b‘;:i‘z:
that *‘Superman’’ is not, ashe};af.miin:y Mr. Lae .
an original character? A. That 18 C *

«3.123 then you mention in your aﬁidavzvf FﬁeJc;?ng
by you of the first cover of ““Wonderman' 1

1939, do you not? A. Yes, sir.

301
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- compr—for Defendants—Cross,
304 Wwilliam Eisnel 7 :
. can you point out to me any place in that
Q. ‘I\Oz}hem vou mentioned anything about having;
affidavit ¥ cWonderman’' in January, 1938, or any part
eated any Wonde
creat

of the year 19387

The Court: Qhow the affidavit. |
Mr. Manges: [ am going to show it to him

(handing to witness).
A. I find no mention of that.

305 The Court: When was the affidavit executed?
Mr. Manges: March 20th, 1939. I offer the
original of that affidavit in evidence.
The Court: Have you got 1t here?
Mr. Manges: It is with the filed papers.
(Deemed marked Plaintiff’s Exhibit 34 in evi-
dence.)

Q. My, Eisner, how long after you read ‘‘Superman’’
did you begin to use a W in a circle on the breast of
“Wonderman’’? A. I used the W in a circle on the
breast of ‘““Wonderman’’ before I saw that ‘Superman”’.

306 It was part of the original idea.

Q. In other words, Mr. Siegel has copied all of this
from you, is that it? A. I haven’t claimed that.

Q. Dor’t you think it is a rather unusual coincidence?

Mr. Fried: I object to that as calling for the
operation of the witness’s mind.

The Conrt: That is a good kind of objection,
@V@Ti&aaless be is not claiming any infringement by
mﬁ It is perfectly possible for two people to
gevelop things independently.

103
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Mr. Manges: Yes. 1, : ‘
. . M » but thig j ,
things it would he alinos‘ltb iﬁciuahb? PoPYof these
1 . eql e,
The Court: That is (o be argued, of course
). Do you claim that <&y Vo
Do you contend that? perman® is a Latin type?
Tthe dco}lrt: What difference does it make if he
Corﬁin f& 1:1 or H%f; T don’t understand the point
- Manges: This question has N
on credibility. 45 come up. It is
The Court: Would he he in ' ] 308
i credibl gaid i
‘s not? 1ble if he said it

Mr. Manges: He hag made an affidavit as to
several things here.

T}le Court: Does his affidavit say he is of a
Latin type?

Mr. Manges: His affidavit says he is of a certain
type. 1 will show him his affidavit and ask him.

The Court: What difference does it make?

Mr. Manges: On the question of credibility only.
This man’s credibility is a very sharp issue here.

The Court: Assume all this put in here amounts
to anything at all, his affidavit is a perpetual, stand- 309
ing, definite challenge to things that he has said,
isn’t it? T don’t see why you want to ask him
whether he 1s a Latin type or not.

Q. Mr. Eisner, did you have anything to do with the
wording of this poster for Wonder Comies{ A_ :}\Iﬁ;

Q. Do you know who did get this out, Plaintiff’s Ex-
hibit 337 A. I imagine—-

The Court: You don’t know!?
The Witness: I don’t'know.
! Mr. Manges: That is all
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210 William Eisner—for Def endants—Re-direct,

Re-direct Ezamination by Mr. Blum:

Q. When your affidavit verified on Ma:reh 20th, 1939,
as 'prepa? ed, who ?,gked' you th? {questmns about the
hings that vou said in this affidavit!

The Court: It doesn’t make the slightest differ-
ence. ‘ '

Mr. Manges: That is objected to.

The Court: The fact that he may have omitted
something is something you can argue about, but

311 it doesn’t make any difference who asked him

about it.

Mr. Blum: I agree,

Q. When this affidavit of March 20th, 1939, was pre-
pared did anybody, the attorney who prepared this, or
anybf}%y else, ask you about when you first submitted the
drawings of ‘““Wonderman”’ to Mr, Fox?

Mr. Manges: That is objected to. The affidavit
speaks for itself,

The Court: That is a question for argument.

312 Mr. Blum: I just want to bring out a point. I

was the first one that brought this out and Mr.
Koenig, with all due respect——
_ Mr. Manges: I object to that. T think it is grossly
lmproper.

The Court: No, T don’t think it is grossly im-
proper, but I don’t think you need it. It is not in
there and it is not stated and I don ’t think it makes

any difference whether a person asked him about
it or not.

When Jou gﬁ%miitted this material to Mr; Fox in
was there iny ﬁ’rﬁ;wing of the “Wonderman’’ or
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Samuel M. Iger—gor Defong ts—Re-cross.

cmtsw—-Diﬁrect.
were there a series of drawings?
pencil drafts. i
Q. And what was thig Ki
mentioned; what nature of pu
was supposed to be a comie
ordinary type of magazine.
tabloid size, soft paper cover,

A. There were several

d‘ Comics that you have
blication wag that? A, It
magazine larger thap the
It was Supposed to be of
to be sold for five cents.

Mr. Blum: That is all,

Re-cross Examination by My, Manges:

Q. You say there were several “Wonderman” draw-

ings in January, 19387 A. There were several penecil
drafts, pencil drawings.

Q. Have you got them with you? A. No.

Q. What did you do with the other ones? A We
destroyed those.

Q. When did you destroy those? A. About the summer.
Q. What is that? A. During the summer sometime
of 1938.

Mr. Manges: That is all.

SamuerL M. Icer, called as a witness on behalf of the
defendants, being first duly sworn, testified as follows:

The Court: Have you gotten any message from
Mr. Stolz yet?
Mr. Fried: My associate called up the office of
Myr. Stolz and found that he had arrived egfl.y tthﬁz
: in
; morning from Detroit and that he Waﬁ no ;
office ngw. Let me take a look at that letter agamn
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Samuel M. Iger—7or Defendants—Direct,
ar el YL .

<o much fuss has been made and

which \ :
about arrange with Mr. Koenig to consent

mavhe we cal

mwgf Blum: Why not let it go in subject to cor-
m{%ﬁn(ﬁgurt: Why don’t you let it go in subject

to correction, if you find there is something to be

orrected about 1t or it is not a circular and was
c ¢t

t sent ouf. ‘ '
nQMj Koenig: My position is consistent. I told

Mr. Manges if he told me Mr. Stolz sent it out T
W{fﬂ;ld not require hig presence and that T would
ohject to 1t.

Mr. Manges: That is right. |
Mr. Koenig: That is the agreement I made with

vou and I don’t need his presence so far as I am
concerned.

Mr. Fried: I would consent to conceding that if
Mr. Stolz were here he would testify he sent this
letter, if that is the concession you want.

Mr. Manges: That is satisfactory. To the peo-
ple stated at the top?

The Court: Of course if he sent the letter and if
it is addressed to somebody—is it?

Mr. Manges: Yes sir. I offer it in evidence.

The Court: Mr. Stolz is supposed to be what?

Mr. Manges: He is the vice-president of the In-
terborough News Company.

Mr. Koenig: T have an objection to the contents
of the letter,

The Court: It is contents from Interborough.

Mr. Koenig: Yes, but I object on behalf of
Bruns,

The Court: T will let it go in.

(Marked Plaintiff’s Exhibit 35.)
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Direct Examination by Mr. Blywm, .

_ Q. What is your age, residence .
56 Hast 57th Street, cartoonist; thirty fve A.
Q'-_ Please tell the Court what b

B for Tdentification? A. That ;g tDefendant’s Exhibit
that was presented to Mer. Fox, |

Q. When? A. In January, or o1
o . Ys Or thereabouts, o 193

[t was on this little piece of paper. As g mat;{er t;)f fa8£
¢

11:_‘ was done that way because it was just a rough ide
of our character. ° a

The Court: By “‘our character’
ciated——

The Witness: ‘“Wonderman’’.

The Court: Are you associated with this other
chap who has just been on the stand?

The Witness: That is correet, sir.

The Court: Mr. Eisner?

The Witness: Eisner.

are you asso-

Q. What is your connection with Mr. Eisner? A. I
am a partner with him.

Q. For how many years have you heen a cartoonist?
A. Ten years.

Q. At the time this drawing referred to by the red X
was made was it designated by any word or words? Was
it called by any name? A. Yes.

Q. What was the name? A. ‘The Wonderman.”

Q. Do you know who made the drawing referred to by
the X? A. My associate, Mr. Eisner.. | A

Q. Were you there when the drawing was made? A.
I was.
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Samuel M. Jger—Fo1 Defer

The Court: When was 1t made?_
The Witness: That was made prior to January,

1938, possibly a week prior.

Q. Are you sure when this é{rawing marked with a
red X was made that this was prior to the tm}e that Ac-
tion Comics, plaintiff’s magazine, Was published? A,
Deﬁﬁ:ﬁg}g; how many years have you k‘nownlof the comic
strip ‘“The Phantom’’ which 1s shown in Detegdant ’s Eig_
hibit A for Identification, being exclusively circulated in

eyr—.
ger—rfor Defendants--6'mes

Mr. Blum: I haye 4 n
Manges insists.
The Court: I don’t wa
ant to g0 into thi
- : . ’ %
Mr. Blum., That is Probably the lagt now..
I will ask this man, uestion

The Court: T hope so 1
; . : . am no{ inte:
don’t see anything in thig at all. T alr?x i;?ted‘ :
that has g:ot to decide this thing. There g niei"i(;n
here and if I have got enough to think abdutaitT;

don’t see why you should eo fy
th - 5
ference does it make? ° riner.  What dif-

325

323 this country? A. I remember seeing that I would say Mr. Blum: Just one question ang I think I e
about 1934, in the New York J ournal. through with this witness, Should he answera?::
Q. Has that been a very popular and well known— or does your Honor think he should not answer it?
A. T take that back. I would say about 1935. The Court: Read the question.
Q. Has that been a very popular and well known (Question repeated.)
feature? A. I suppose it has. It runs in all the Hearst The Court: Are you claiming you are going back
publications. to what is a common source?
Q. But you have seen it continuously in New York Mr. Blum: That is correct,
City? A. I have, The Court: You don’t want to put in a lot of
Q. And had the character ‘‘The Phantom’’ always strips of ‘‘The Phantom”. He is putting on a
been shown as dressed in the mask and with the tight coat to go out here,
fitting costume as shown in Defendant’s Exhibit A for Mr. Blum: If Mr. Manges wants—— 397
324 Tdentificationt A. That is right. Naturally we were The Court: I don’t want it. I don’t want to
slightly influenced by that character. bother about it.
Q. Has it also been shown at various times as throw- Mr. Blum: If your Honor will permit him to

ng off ils outer clothing to perform its feats of strength
and agility?

?zir, Manges: I object to that as not the best
evidence,

answer this question I will be through with this
witness.
The Court: I don’t see anything in that at all.
Mr. Blum: Direct examination closed.

The Court: What would be the best evidence?

| Mr. Manges: If he has, your Honor, any strips
the strips themselves are the best evidence,

Cross-Examination by Mr. Manges:

- ime did you see Mr.
Q. Mr. Iger, when for the first time did JoU “°%. ;
| Eisner’s affidavit in this agtwn? A. I think I saw it—
don’t remember the exact time.
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Samuel M. [ger—rfor Defendants—Cross,
The Court: Was it before today?

The Wiiness: Yes, it was. o |
The Court: Did you make an affidavit yourself?

The Witness: No, I didn’t.

Q. It is dated the 20th of March, as you will see
(handing witness). Was that about the time that vou

saw it? A. I suppose sO. | | |
%WQ,, Did vou see it before he signed it? A. I believe 1

dld,ﬁ;}i Did you call his attention to the fact that he had
ot mentioned anything in that affidavit about 19387 A.
No. Tt didn't occur to me because we had the original—
we knew he had the original of the ¢“Wonderman.”” That
‘s the definite reason why I didn’t think of that. I would
certainly have insisted on him putting that in there if I
had known it was that important.

The Court: You didn’t see this affidavit until
sometime after he executed it, did you?

The Witness: That is correct.

Mr. Manges: He testified differently.
have that read?

The Court: When did you see that affidavit first?

The Witness: I saw the affidavit after Mr. Eisner
had signed it. He showed it to me,
‘Mr. Manges: May we have that part of his tes-
timony read, your Honor?

, The Court: If you say be said he saw 1t before
1t was signed——

The Witnes;s: No, that was after.
(The following questions and answers were read) :

May 1

“Q. It is dated the 20th of March, as }
. ! . , you will see.
Was that about the time that you saw it? A. I suppose so.
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¢ : s 3
Q. Did you see it before he signed it?

T did.” A. T believe

The Witness: T saw it after he signed it

By the Court:

Q. What 1s your final testimonv? .
- wony? A, Th
saw it after he had signeq it. e final is I

Q. After he had signed it? A. Ves.

Q. An_d Whe.n did you see it? A. I should say after
he had signed it he had a copy of it and he brought it
to the office and he showed it to me,

(). He didn’t sign it in your office? A. Not that I
know of.

Q. Have you got an office together? A. Yes, we have.

Q. What is it, a studio? A. It is two offices, sort of
a studio, you might call it.

Q. And did somebody come up to you and to him about
the affidavit and talk to you both? A. No, I suppose they
talked to Mr. Eisner.

Q. No; T mean did somebody come into your office
when you were both there and talk to you about the affi-
davit that Mr. Eisner was going to make, discuss what
he was going to say? A. Well, he told me he was going
to sign some affidavit. After it was done he brought it to
the office and showed it to me. I was not there directly.

Q. And you were not there when it was being made!?

A. No, sir.

By Mr. Manges:
i ine ith the pasting of
Q. Did you have anything to dolv&"l asting ot
this insert X upon Defendant’s Exhibit B for ’ldentfma
tion? A. You mean actually pasting on or did I hav
someone do it?
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- ) ell, T suggested using the original
Q. El-thel;azni};e ﬁ:{:u‘ezt thing to the one that we had
because étt“ AMr. Fox in 1938. As the nearest thing to it
submltt‘fi ‘fO we .ghowed that he would be able to get a
! ﬁgm:etu;e to it for from the first series on. That was
true pic ion: M. Eisner had not mentioned it.
my Sugfﬁd wh:%n was the initial W put on? A. At that

time.

By the Court:

Q. What time? A. In 1938, January.

Q. And when that first reached Mr. Fox’s hands it
was just a little piece of paper? A. Tt was tl.lat character.

Q. Just a little piece of paper? A. A little piece of
bond paper with a drawing on it.

Q. Not a great big plece? A. No, it was not.

Q. And the little piece of paper was subsequently
trimmed down a bit and put on to this sheet, on to this
pen and ink drawing, is that right? A. May I explain
further, your Honor, how we do that? We had this
original drawing of the ‘‘Wonderman.”” He had drawn
on a sheet of paper—he started to draw the character. I
am denying that. I told him why not use the original we
had presented to Mr. Fox so we would have an actual
shot of the ““Wonderman’’ as he is so he could really
follow a true picture of it.

Q. What d’? you mean? What time was it that you
werg i%?gg? th;s?lg?. In January possibly of this year.

. . 1939
tha?*ifgazirﬁaylfggr the sake of some sort’ of coni.;inuity,
this pen draw: ¥, 1939, you were e'ngaged in making up
pen drawing? A, The completion with a pen.

Q. The completion of thi - :
Comics Magazinet A. Yeafs pen drawing for this Wonder
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Q. And whilst you were doino th
par‘gner, Mr. Eisner, had a talk gnd vyou called his at
tention to the fact that he originally had drawn a ﬁso*a :
under the figure which is pasted on there? A '.[‘hntjm:e
correct. - 2t

Q. And you suggested to him that it would be better to
put on the picture now pasted on there? A. That ig right,

Q. For the reason that that picture was the original
is that it? A. That is right. T

Q. And that is the story? A. That is the storv.

at you and your

By Mr. Manges:

Q. When did you first read the seript ““‘Superman’’ in
Action Comies? A. After the question of whether we
had copied the character in Action Comics called—what
do you call him? I don’t recall. As a matter of fact I
very seldom read—I] don’t read all the comic books.
We do read the comic books that we supply.

Q. And you never saw the ‘‘Superman” strip until
this lawsuit was begun, is that it? A. That is correet.

Q. It is a fact, is it not, that the insert X on De-
fendant’s Exhibit B for Identification was never used by
either you or Mr. Eisner until January, 19397 A. That i8

correct.
The Court: Was never used, yes, but it was

drawn before? ‘
The Witness: It was drawn, yes, that 1s correct.

Q. And when you used it it was after Mr. Eisner s‘tfatﬁa
he knew about ‘‘Superman’’ having been created, isn’t

that right? A. I don’t contend that.
Q. Didn’t Mr. Eisner testify—

The Court: Never mind whether you heard it or
not.
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340 Sam
Manges: 1f your Honor wants that
g‘{}; iCe:mrt' I don’t know whether 1t is neces-
e ;
sary or not.

By the Court:
Q. It was your partner

re11d . Eisner. |
Wﬂk&i grawing of “*Wonderman’’ was placed where that

iiwﬁﬁdgﬂnaﬁ” 18 pasted? A. Yes, Sir.
f paper do you call that, bond? A,

who did the drawing? A,

present
Q. On what sort ©

841 d. . |
Bme‘ Is that what the original 1s on! A. That is what

the original 18 on.

By Mr. Manges:

Q. Have you any papers or records of any kind in
your possesslon to show that insert X was not drawn at
the same time as the entire balance of Defendant’s Kx-
hibit B for Identification? A. We did have some pencil
roughs of a complete story that we later supplied.

Q. Have you or have you not? A, At the present
time, no.

342 Q. When for the first time did you talk about the
character ‘‘Superman’’ with Mr. Eisner? A. I wouldn’t
know the exact date. It was prior to the time I even
met Mr. Fox. We talked about a superhuman type of a
thing, a modern Samson idea.

Q. When T referred to ‘Superman’’ I was talking
about the ‘“Superman’’ of Action Comics. A. Well, I
dﬁ’t know much abont the “‘Superman’’ other than
what I read recently,

oo ggﬁg?fg was th.e’ ,ﬁrs't time that you discussed Action
first diacus HRman with Mr. Eisner? A. When did I
. CUSS Tduperman’’?  After it was brought to our
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attention that you ¢l
acter and yours,

Q. Can Y‘_)ﬂ explain by what process the lines of the
legs are carried down so aceurately from the insert to the
paper upon which the insert is snperimposed? A By
what process? ’

Q. Yes? A. You mean whether a pen was used or a
brush?

aimed a similarity between our char-

The Court: The pasting?
The Witness: No, he means the continuity. That

was done by a brush. 344

Q. And when was that done? A. After the thing was
pasted on it was not completed, it was a little bit of a
‘‘rough’’ pasted over it to finish the original character.
We had to paste it over to finish the panel. It is obvious.

Mr. Manges: That is all.
Mr. Blum: That is all

Victor S. Fox, called as a witness on behalf.c;f the' 245
defendants, being first duly sworn, testified as follows:

Direct Examination by Mr. Blum:

Q. Mr. Fox, you are the President of the defendant

Bruns Publications, Ine.? A. I am.
Q. For how many years have you

lishing business$ A. About three. . ,
*‘3 Q.g]f show you a picture marked with a red X 1n De

fendant’s Exhibit B for Identification and }?:l% ri*?‘;ix:;
tell the Court when you saw .. \

been in the pub-

this picture for ¢
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347

348

and who showed it to you (handing witness)? A. In
Janua!\;’hf slhgiized it to yon? A. Mr. Eisner, of Eisner
& Igér, came to my office and solicittfd me on putting out
a comic magazine. He showed me this among some seven
or eight features in a magazine called Kid Comies, or the
dummy of a magazine. o

Q. At the time he showed you this picture was there
any name upon this figure or character? A. Yes.

‘Q, What was the name? A. There was ‘““Wonderman’’
or “*The Wonderman”’,

Q. Did you take up this matter of this Kid Comies
magazine with Mr. Donenfeld of Independent News Co.,
Inc.? A. 1 did.

Q. And what did you suggest to Mr. Donenfeld? A.
I suggested to him that I would manufacture a so-called
tabloid sized comic magazine which would be twice the
size of those ordinarily sold by other publishers of 28 or
32 pages, I don’t recall which, and I submitted this dummy
to him and I said ‘I want you to put this out for five
cents, as a fivecent seller. There is no other one in the
market for five cents. I would like you to distribute it
for us.”” He said, ‘‘Let me have the dummy. I will talk
it over with my associate and we will let you know.”’

__Q. What conneetion has this Mr. Donenfeld with De-
tective Comies, Ine., the plaintiff in this case? A. T
understand he is president of that company.

By the Court:

Q. He is
He told me h
he is,

Q. He told you?! A. He told me he is

&1;86 the president of the Independent? A.
¢ 18 half owner but T am not certain whether

half owner.

S S A —
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Q. Is he an officer? Do you deal with the Independ-
ent or not? A. Everything T wanteq from Independént
he arranged for me. He gaig he is Independent News
Company, he and Sampliner are the Independent News
Company and he has his man sign checks, his man Liebo-
witz who testified here, sign checks for Independent
which is jointly with Sampliner. ’

Q. What reply, if any, did you get from Mr. Donen-
feld about distributing this magazine Kid Comics? A,
About two weeks after 1 submitted the duommy to him
he told me that he couldn’t distribute this magazine be-
cause 1t would he in competition with his line of comic
magazines.

The Court: What date was this?
The Witness: In January of 1938. I would say
the latter part of January, 1938.

. And was this done before the publication of Aec-
tion Comics, which is the plaintiff’s magazine} A. Yes.
Q. Now I show you a copy of your affidavit verified
in this instance in this cause on March 20th, 1939, page
3, and ask you whether you then stated to the Court the
things about which you testified to today? A. Well, I

signed this affidavit.

The Court: You are cross-examining him.

Mr. Manges: 1 object to that question.

The Court: I will sustain it. *

Mr. Blum: I agree it should be gustamed. May
I note this: They made a great point bec&us&hthe
other two affidavits did not rgf@r to it. PIGW ere
is one man whose affidavit did reff-r to it. * him

The Court: All right, why don’t you as het'h%x:
He is on the stand. I don’t mean ask him w .

349
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D
b
Fov

¢ s in his affidavit, tat ask hirn what the fact was,
What is 1f vou want to ask him about?
Ay Blum: That 1s all and T thiuk I am throngh

with this witness.

(). When you got this 11;11:.’11.1.1}2 hack fr[}ma Donent ejld
what did vou do with it then? A. It staved in wy office
for @mve}f':;i weels and then either Mr. Hisner or NMr,
Iger called e up and said they 'wante-d fo know what
g;j}gf_;ﬁ“},,;gﬁmi T wae woing to make of putting out the mag-

q55 azine. I told themn T was not prepared to do it at that
time and thev asked me if they could have their dummy
back and I sent it over to their office.

My, Blum: Direct examination closed.

Oross-Examination by Mr. Manges:

Q. The dummy that you say you submitted to Mr.
Donenfeld, did that include Defendant’s Kxhibit B for
Identification? A. Yes. You mean by that this one figure?

Q. Yes. A. Yes.

Q. The insert X was in it? A. The insert X with sev-
eral boxes, about three bhoxes, three panels on the page
were sketched ont; the ‘“Wonderman’’ with various poses,
and the rest was marked ‘‘same’’ and ‘‘same’ and
‘‘same’’,

Q. How did you happen to submit that insert X7 A.
What is it?

Q. The insert X1

354

The Court: How did he happen to submit it?

Mr. Manges: How did he he 4 th
insert X9 e happen to submit the

The Court: Who?
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Mr. Manges: My, Fox.

The Conrt: My el ,
fold. r Fox submitted it to Mr. Donen.

A. It was part of this entire dormmy,  The dummy is g
“”1%%-1 i‘ii’éﬂ}; ;;id ‘;;fiiﬂl; ai da_? c-ﬂztef%ilgt.ecl Pablieatitm,
R TP e CETZ o it ‘ x e outside of the
publication \}fas Kid Comics.”” You mean what was this
page called? 1 have already testified to that: **The
Wonderman’’ or “Wonderman.”
Q. Don’t you know which? A. T dou't recall whether 336
it was one word “Wonderman” or “The Wonderman.’

(). Have you got any part of that left? A. I testified
that I returned it to Iger & Eisner in the form of this
put-together dmmny. This 1z part of it right heve and we
have 1t now.

Q. That is insert X? A, Yes, siv. This is part of it.
This was returned when he came back to me again to
diseugs this new hook.

The Court: Who is Donenfeld, the president of
the plaintiff?

My. Manges: Of the plaintiff.

The Witness: And also part owner of the dis-
tributing company. *

The Court: What do you call that distributing

company ! 1
The Witness: Independent News (‘ompany, Ine

a7

e firgt time did Bruns Publications,

. When for th i
X through the detendant Kable

Inc., commence distributing

News Company? A, March 15th. | | -
Q. Do you contend that the defendant Bruns Publica-

’ : hase of
tions is committed under contracts for the purchas
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A, Blumi: [ abject to that. [ don’t see how that
ig competent. o
The Court: What has that got to do with it?
A[y. AManges: There are certain things in the
Affidavit on that that | want to ask him about.
The ¢ourt: That might eome up on the ques-
Gon of damages or something like that.
359 Mr. Manges: I am only addressing myszelf on
o the question of credibility.
The Court: He says “‘ves.”
My, Manges: But he has got a fantastie figure
here and I want to show that.
The Court: That hasn’t anything to do with ered-
ibility, if people always claim a great deal more
{lian they have any idea of getting.
Mr. Manges: That is not the point, your Honor,
If you will just allow me a few questions 1 think
I can bring it home,
The Court: All right.
360 . To what extent is the Bruns Publications commit-
ted for these purchases, in dollars and cents? A. Well,

I can not give you aundited figures, but approximately
$75,000,

The Court: For pulp paper and so forth?

The Witness: Yes, your Honor. We make con-
tracts over a period of time and we make con-
tracts with the printed. We made a contract, a
two-year contract with the printer.

The Court: Is that purely for this one magazine !

The Witness: Yes, your Honor.

Mr. Manges: That is what he claims.
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‘ Q. Can yOu_lteH ns how the defendant Brons Publ
tions can possibly be committed for the »amﬁ 0?’ e{;v}b 10;1;
A, The cost of publishing the mag: ?,iﬂ:ﬁ*.()fl the o ¢
Wonder Comics based on a print D;:ﬂer iet . l{ rtyp;-.gt
proximately 300,000 is about $67000 !}'U‘uz‘ “I%Z}, ’ ,dp_
over a pertod of a year—— ’ - flonor, und

« .Q” Jl\mt & ‘f“i““t‘i'o Your distributor has stated that
it is 230,000, Ts that correct? A, Yes, but T anticipate
my market and 1 fignre on 300,000, Mr. Manges.

MI;.‘. Blum: Your Honor, if we wish to hear it, we
are n equity, but certainly we are going verv fav
alield. 7 ’

The Court: T will tend to that,

My, Blumn: Very well.

The Court: I don’t see how that justifies any
confract. Is there anything in the aflidavit that
1s counter to what he has testified to now?

Mr, Manges: Well, the real cost of an issue is
something like $7,000 an issue and for two issues
it wounld be $14,000 and this man says %67,000.

The Court: He might have made a year’s con-
tract. 1 don’t know.

Q. You say you have a contract for how long with

your distributor?

The Court: I don’t want to hear any more of

this. This is just silly.

Mr. Manges: Your Honor, I think we can show
it is cancellable on thirty days’ notice or some-

thing like that, so there is no eommitment at all.

‘ The Court : What ditference does it make whether

there 18 a commitment or not?

P
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Action Comices? A
time: several times, I guess, ever since 1t has bheeu puh-

lished.

100
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ietor S For—for Detendants—Uross,

Mr. Manges: Only becanse of his affidavit that
Ay R o) Y = - L e - N
there 1s one. . N

The (ourt: 1f he has a contract there mav bhe
ap ‘out’’ in it, as bankers call it, or he can get
il of it for some other reason, then you can show

the tact that he has got a contract. Don’t let ns

he foolich, There is no sense 1in this.

Q. When did vou first read the “‘Superman’ strip in

Oh, I have seen it from time to

Mr. Manges: That is all

Mr. Blum: That 1s all

The Court: Does the defendant rest?

Mr. Blum: We rest.

Mr. Manges: I have two witneses in rebuttal that
will be very short, each about five minutes.

The Court: What are thev about?

Mr, Manges: Just denying things that have come
up during the defense. It may be less than five
minutes,

The Court: There is no use taking it up now. We
will do it tomorrow morning. You will have to
argue this thing right away as soon as you get
through and if T am satisfied about it maybe I
will decide it right away. I can’t tell; it depends
on how it strikes me. You better be ready with
everything. ‘

Mr. Manges; Yes.

The Court: We will adjourn until 11:00 o’clock
tomorrow morning,

(Adjourned to Friday, April 7, 1939, at 11:00
o’clock A. M.)
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New York, April 7, 1939.
11:00 A, M.

(Triat, Resum ED.)
Mr. Manges: r, e
1 E anges: Yo}lr Honor, may T recall Mr. Fox
for cross-examination on Just one matter?

The Court: Yes,

Vieror S, Fox, resmmned,

Cross-Examwiation by Mr. Manges (Con't):

Q. Mr, Fox, yon made an affidavit in this action, did
you not, in opposition to the motion for a preliminary
injunction? A. [ did.

(). Is this paper which I show you your affidavit in

this action (handing witness)? A, If is.
Q. When was it sworn to? A. May 20th.

The Court: May 20th?

ferdants—Crogs. ’

368

The Witness: It is a mispelled word. It should

be March.

Q. March 20th, 19397 A. Yes.
(). In that affidavit did .
submitted a dummy of Kid Comies to Mr.

369

you tell the story of having
Donenfeld? A.

Yes. o in that affidavit that the

Q. Is there any mentio
character ‘“Wonderman'’ wa
A. No, there is none.

Mr. Manges: That is all.

5 contained in that dummy ?
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Re-direct Eramination VY Mr. Blum:
Q. Now, 1 call vour attention to the last paragraph
‘ l g ’ ’ 3 : - - o
1 - affidavit which you stated as fol.
ewe 3 of vour affidavit in
on page 3 of ]
lows——

The Court: Don't read it to lom; show 1t to
bin to refresh his recollection and ask him about it.

Q. I show you the last paragraph on page 3 of this
affidatif.

371 My E\Iﬂllﬁ:ei‘g: I\In} we h’ﬂ,\’{{% that read in? 1t is

just a few lines.

The Court: It vou want to have it read in T don’t
care.

My, Blum: Suppose I read it.

“T find that a number of the ideas which were
embodied in the dummy of ‘Kid Comies’ which 1
left with Donenfeld are being used in a number
of Donenfeld’s comic magazines; to-wit, Action
Comics, More Fun Magazine, Detective Comies, and
Adventure Comics.”’

372 Q. Now please state to the Court the ideas referred
to in this paragraph of your affidavit which you allege
were being used in the publications there referred to?

A. There were a number of ideas in that paragraph that
included, of course, the “Wonderman’’.

Mr, Mgﬂges: I move to strike out “‘of course.”’
‘ The W}t-ne'ss: Well, there were so many similari-
ties that I didn’t think of specifying at the time I
made the afidavit, "

1 o, * * LY
The Court: So many similarities between what?
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The Witness: Between Kid (o
ll__lrr%ﬂ"xy of Kid Comics submitted to e in Januar
1938, and the publications that T named in the ai%i
davit, owned by Mr. Donenfeld. -

The Court: Yes, but they weren’t out then.

The Witness: Some of them were, '
Some of his publications were,
to several publications.

The Court: This was not out.

The Witness: Action was
Honor.

mics, the rough

vour Honor,
I make reference

not out, no, your

The Court: And the “‘Superman’ strip was not
out.

The Witness: Your Honor, T was explaining the
reason for the way the paragraph read.

Mr. Blum: May I say this, your Honor: Of course
[ mayv be wrong because 1 was pitch-forked into this
case only recently but this affidavit was verified
in Mareh, 1939, and I think their Action Comies
ame ont in April, 1938, and the Action Comies, if
T remember correctly, has their feature of the
“Superman’’. |

The Court: Yes, but he is talking about when 1t
was submitted to him, isn’t he?

Mr. Blum: No.

Mr. Manges: That is right.

The Witness: I was referring to the .

Mr. Blum: Just a minute, please, I_am: repl'yutt};g
to the Court. He verifies this affidavit in Mfirc ,
1939, and he says *‘I find that a numbel: oi’cihe;:3 ‘f;iii
which were embodied in the dammy ?t Kic d e
which I left with Donenfeld are being nset o

ald’ mic¢ magazines; 10-Wil

number of Donenfeld’s ¢o o other
Action Comics,”” and then he referred to

magazines,

-direct, 373

374

375
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e Defendants—Re-cross,
376 Victor 8. Foa—for Def

The Court: Tn (}t];erl _\\»‘o*r‘ds, your posli-;.a}tmn‘ ju

tehing around and claiming that i effeet My,
switehing A R

proganmzation was plagiarizing  some-

yonenfeld’s |
Ih . that they saw—I don’t know the names of
?‘ }Il;‘-{‘ | L ‘ ) o T - i "3 T F g -y

» vho were on the stand yesterday-—that

the }’j}sj{?[}le ¥ ) T e
and submitied to you: that is what yoy

were drawi
qre claiming
A, Rlum: That 1s correct,

(). 1 am asking yom at ﬂl({}wﬁﬂl(ﬁ* that ‘;}-"011 f“?m to
g7 this affidavit ou Mareh 20th, 1_3;9%3 ‘l_l‘ild‘An@‘tl_U_r% (,0111,1@5;‘?31“
ready been p‘ul}lisl‘;ed by the plaintitt in this case? A, Yes,

it had.

The Comrt: We all know that. Why waste time
on a silly thing like that.

Mr. Blum: That 1s all,

The Court: So your point 1s, as a matter of
fact, that the ‘‘Superman’ was copled from the
otber. Youm are going to argue that, I suppose, it
was really copled from the other, itz that 1t?

My, Blum: That 1s it; also that the defendant
had knowledge of their character before they had

378 any knowledge of the plaintiff’s character.

Re-cross Exzamination by Mr. Manges:

Q. Mr. Fox, at the time that you executed the affidavit
of March 20th, 1939, you had read the moving affidavits
in the injunction application in this action, had you not?
A. Yes,

, Q. And yet you did not think it worth while to men-
thlfl “Wonderman” as to one of these matters that you
claimed Mr. Donenfeld’s magazines were copying from
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). Yes or no.

The Court: Including it anyhow

" . { _@ . . -
A Tncluding M, your Honor. 1 am not a lawyer, I
just drew 1t in my own Janguage.

Mr, Manges: That is all.
My, Blam: That is all.

380
Max C. Gaives, called as a witness on behalf of the
plaintiff, in rvebuttal, being first duly sworn, testified as
follows:

Direct Examwnation by Mr. Manges:

Q. Mr. Gaines, for a period of five years between 1934
and February, 1939, were you connected with the MeClure
Newspaper Syndicate? A. T was.

(). And did you during that period have charge of
their comie newspaper and book department! A. I had
charge, complete charge of the cditorial supervision of all 44
the material in comic books and complete charge of the

color printing department.

Mr. Manges: Will you stand up, Mr, Iger?
(Mr. Iger stands in the court room.)

(). Mr. Gaines, do you know Mr, Iger? A. Yes. )
Q. How long have you known him? A. T had bublne:ss
contacts with Mr. Iger for a period of three years or s0.

it t : Mr. Tger, Mr.
. When was the last tune you saw - 138
MR part of April, 1938.

you, did you? A, Well——- Gaines? A. In the latter
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Q. Now, will vou fell us and ],Jis Ht}‘m):; &\“1.1:1? CO -
'i'ers;é‘fimz vou had with \'kr g 1;;01“ :ﬁ that 1-11§1<“5¢ A, In the
latter part of April, 14938, \1 Y, h{“ called e le; the
phone and told me he would {:Jgelt'u discuss o very mpor-
tant proposition. T invited hun to eome d(:)vs:‘fz} to see me.
He came down either the same day or the» .‘[0]!(?\&-’}1]@” day
and said that he was inferested at t_hat tume in L:Qi‘ni}'lg
out with another comie magazine. He had a lf)f of ma-
ferial available and conld got other Tl]zl't.{i_‘i"ié-‘%l and e
wanted Lelp from me to finance Dbim in a comie publica-
dorn. 1 told My, Iger at the time that 1 thought the
market was so overerowded with comic magazines——

My, Blum: I object to what he told the witness,

The Court: I will let him go on with the whole
conversation and we will get the pleture of what
happened. Go on.

A. (Continued)—I told Mr. Iger 1 thought the field was
so overcrowded and glutted with magazines that a new
magazine would not have a chance. However, he insisted
that he bad some very fine material. So I said, ‘“All
right, Mr. Iger, send down what you have got and 1 will
look 1t up and T will give you an answer in a couple of
days.”” 1 understand he came down several days later
while 1T was out of the office,

The Court: When did you see him again?

The Witness: I haven’t scenm him until T met
bim yesterday in the court room.

The Court: Did he leave anything for you to
look at!?

Thf? Witness: He did not leave any material at
the time. However, he did ask me, ‘‘What maga-
Zines are you getting out now, Mr. Gaines?’’ I
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Qg 5 ii - N R M ) *
.md, ! Am now wetiing out five
tor the Dell Publishing
Comices, the lemes, and
and T am printing

| magazines, three
Company: the Popular
el another comie magazine
| am. t..he msides of two for the Detee-
tive (Josz:;s‘ organization; Detective Comies and
Action Comies.” He satd, “Could T Lay

. . € 4 copy
of those magazines?”? >

Y i : L turned to wy assistant,
whno was sitting i the same office, |
«“Sheldon, ¢ive Mr, Joey e ;ﬁlc‘e,'dngl 1 said,

mheldon, give Mr. loev one issue of the five maga-
sines we are producing’ and My, Maver, my assist
ant, went to the vavious files containing these five
magazines, picked out one copy of each, and handed
them to Mr. Tger. My, Tger then said good bye and
left.

Q. And one of these coples was an issue of Action
(Clomies, you say? A. At that time we had alveady pro-
duced the first issue of Action Comies.

Q. That was the June, 1938 issne? A. That was the
June, 1938 issue, and that was handed to Mr. Tger with
the other four books.

By the Court:

Q. Did Mr. Iger refer to this thing called Kid Comies?
A. No, he did not. He did not refer to any one (;lummy
of any kind at all. He said he had suﬁieien.t material :fmd
he was anxious to-get in the corie field, m thf pubhcf
tion field and could I work with him and help finance the
progosifiﬁ? .said you didn’t think there was any
it? A I said at that time I was handli:}g eno,ugh iﬁOki
and I didn’t want to become involved In any 1?; o,
pointed out the fact 1 was already dou}g‘;{ubiﬁw_;h o
two and I didn’t want to set up in competition

of my best customers.

field for
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Q. Two what, comies? A, No, I was publishing three

w

haoks for the Dell Publishing Company and two bools for
YOOKS | c A ’ . Tty ’ sil 1 owe

the Detective Comies, five 1 all. Three of them | was -
he Lete ’

colntele edifing and producing the ‘3’”“”‘0 }"Jl"lb]ief-”i‘?]"&

© Q. On Detective Comies you weve not? A On Defec.

tive Comics and Action Cowles 1 was 01‘1'}"‘13flflt”3§42“ the

insides, that is, the four 0.0101‘ newsprint -mf”de“ -
Q. And vou said you didn 't aarzi{ii‘ to go In vo_mpehtion

with wour own customers? A, With my own good cus-

tormers,

589 ), Then vou have never seen hnu sinee? AL T didn't
£) Py 37 R 1
see him until vesterday in court.

By Mr. Manges:

Q. Did vou hear Mr. lger say that he never saw Ac-
tion Comics before this lawsuit was started? A. T did.
(. That testimony is not correct then, is it?

Mr. Fried: I object to that.

The Court: T can decide that. 1 heard the wit-
ness testify.

590 Q. I show you these four sheets and ask you if you
have ever seen any of them before (handing witness)?

]
H

Mr. Manges: I ask that these four sheets be
marked for identification.

(Marked Plaintiff’s Exhibits 36 to 39, inclusive,
for Identification.)

The Court: You say you had not seen those or
you had?

The Witness: T didn’t answer the question yet.

. Q. Have you ever seen Plaintiff’s Exhibits 36 to 39
inclusive for Identification or any parts thereof be-

131

_‘1/ it ! (07 e e P ' .
Meaa !, (;am{,.ﬂ,hp” Pl“"”’t?-ffhu]_),'1«(-,(,,& 291
fore? A, 1 have gec

n these op |
210NE,

» o . ‘1' oy
ive orp 31X VATIONS OCen-

The Court: Seen what?
The Witness: have

_ 5 7 seen these vy
drawings on five

. rious origing
OF six v ginal

arious 0ecasions,

Q. Who is the fivst person that submitted they, ¢
vou’! A, After T had——_ v

(2. Who was the first person?
Company.

(). When and under what cirenmstances !
January, 1936, 1 had made a visit to the Dell Publishine
Company, for whom I had just finished producing an:i
printing the first issue of a comic hook known as Popular
Comies, These four drawings in slightly different form—-
by ‘‘ditferent form” I mean when they were submitted
—were twrned over to me by the Dell people 1 the form
of daily strips, six daily strips.

Q. Of the same drawings? A. But the same drawings
which were rearranged into this page form for use in Ae-
tion Comics. Together with these drawings and some
additional drawings on ‘‘Superman’’ a letter addressed
to the Dell Publishing Company by Mr. Shuster and Mr. ‘
Siegel of Cleveland was turned over to me at _the same 393
time together with a 16-page dummy of a comic tabloid
magazine. The substance of the letter was to the effect—

AL The Dell Publishiny

A. Early in 399

Mr. Blum: I object to that. Tf the letter is
here let us have it

The Court: Have you got the letter herel

The Witness: I haven't got the letter here.

The Court: From who? o

The Witness: To the Dell Publishing.

The Court: From who?

The Witness: From Shuster.
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Ao (',‘f,,snf%;zum})Mﬁ'lge.‘:; this 'nil:ai'@?*izﬂ '\\:m) ‘?11.3:‘213{?1 {:}f@r fo

et with the letter by the I_)ellkfuul)lihmng 1t was
‘or the pmrposc of ascertanmg at that time
uld make use of this material 1 the Popu-
lar Comics Magazine and T was vequested by the office of
e Dell Publishing Company, °wh@f turned the wateriag
over to e, to gof in touch with tﬂimse [_‘Jeople and  ad.
cise them whether or not we could use thery }H:;ilﬁf.?;fia.l.
A dayv or two later I wrote fo Mr. Siegel in Cleveland
a{'}gfﬁgin‘ﬁ‘ Wim that the material had been turved over fo
e, that 1 would keep it for a while and give it consid-
eration and then let him know whether ov not we could
make use of it in Popular Comies. [ Lad three or four
tetters from Mr. Siegel in a period of fwo or three months
tollowing that. T finally decided at that time I didn’t
have use for it and I returned these drawings, which were
completely inked in in daily strip form to Mr. Siegel, ad-
vising him that I would bear them in mind and if at any
time I could make use of any of his material, including
these drawings, I would let him know.

The next time I saw these original drawings, also in
daily strip form, was a little over a year ago. In fact it
was last December, December, 1937, while I was still with
the MecClure Syndicate, 1 had an idea of getting out a
certain weekly tabloid containing a certain type of comic
strip form for newspaper syndication and I wrote to Mr.
Siegel and asked him if he still had available the material
which he had sent me several years ago and which T had
returned and to please forward it immediately as I might
have some use for it. He sent on these drawings again
with some other material which he wanted me to make
use of. I'kept them for a period of about three or four
weeks until 1 found out definitely that the idea that 1
was working on was not feasible at the time for news-

me foge
turned over |
whether we ¢v

133

1 ! Ty Y " . [
ﬂ/j“ﬁ (.f, (1 a(f,Hf(_'fS"“mfl’Jr I)La?n'ttﬁ‘—‘[)(i"(?('f 39—‘-

paper Wm].jam'm\n' _ During that three or four week period
u;s,a-@: [.)eteciu-'@ (.‘_1()1:111(33@; people, for whom 1 had then 'heeﬁ
prinfing one magazine, Detective Comies, told me they
want to come out with another hook called Action Comies
they h,zwe n,h.'eady liir‘l}('lw the title vegistered: did T have (m;,
'ﬂ"ﬁf‘i‘l'i?] ﬂ?’ﬂﬂlﬂ_\”ﬂ@ which they conld use in a book of that
nature? »Mild’ “Yes, T have got some here from Siegel
which T think s very good and which should be a
natnral,”” to use a colloguialism, “for that type of hook,
depicting action according to the title,” and so torth.
So, 1 submitted to Mr. Liehowitz about January of 193%— 398
Mr. Donenfeld was not available at the time—these strips,
these daily strips, six of which, invelving oue full week
daily continuity, were completely inked in and three ov
four weeks or two or three weeks in pencil, part of
which were inked in and part of which were left in pencil.

T had further discussions during that period ov shortly
afterward with Mr. Liebowitz and Mre. Sullivan, the
editor of the comic magazines for the Detective Comics
group, and impressed npon him the fact that this wopld
be a good idea and by all means to use it in Action Comices,
They agreed that it was a good thing, with the result that
1 wrote Mr. Siegel that inasimuch as the newspaper 1dea I 199
was working on at the time when I wrote him to subout
the stuff was not feasible I had taken the liberty of turn-

¢. Liebowitz and Mr. Sullivan this matel"xai
tion Comics and that if he had any objec-
Fvidently he had no
Comies, No. 1.

ing over to M
for use in Ac |
tions to let me know immediately..
cause we put it in Action No. 1.
A. The first issue of Action (Jomies
bmitted to me in daily strip forny
fore me are part of
entire **Superman’ '
s, with the ex-

objections be
Q). The first issue?
primarily as it was su
These drawings that I have be
the 13 pages which constitute ‘the el
feature in the first issue of Action Com
ception of three or four panels on pa

oe 1.
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441

402

By Mr. Manges:
(). And are these some of the other pages (han dine

witness )7

The Court: You better mark thewn for identifi-
cation too.

(Marked Plaintiff’s Ixhibits 40 fo 47 inelusive,
for Tdentification.)

A, 1 might mention, while we arve waiting for those ex-
hibite to be marked, that 1T was so umpressed with this
strip when I first got it over three and a quarter vears

ago that T made an effort at that time to have it used tor

newspaper syndication but my organization, McClure Svyn-
dicate, at the time did not feel they were ready to go into
any additional promotion for a daily feature. Subse-
quently, however, after the feature got started in Action
Cﬂﬂl%ﬁs %t did go into newspaper syndication and started
§ynd1cafmg to newspapers in January of this year and
18 now appearing in aboul twelve different papers
thronghout the country.

By the Court:

T . - . y - E »
A :([J. ‘i'ou are not connected with either party in this case?
- + print Action Comics and Detective (Comies for the
Detective Comics organization.
). But
A geg I mean you are not employed by any of them?

) IQ: You ha_’ve business relations? A. T have business
relations but I am not employed by them.

- eQ?. Yl'fu I\?re Ino longer employed by the McClure Syndi-
the Gr'eai:er% ﬁam a New York sales representative for
- Butfalo Press, Buffalo, New York, We print

TR
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comic sections for newspapers and m
tion to that T get out two comie mae
nag

agazines. In addi-
azines of myv own.

By Mv. Manges :

Q. 1 show you Plaintiff’s Bxhibits 40 to 47 inclusive
for Identification and ask if they are others of the draw-
ings that vou have just referred to?
The Court: What do you mean ““drawings just ve-
ferred to”%
Mr. Manges: ITe said theve were 13 <hoets alto. 404
gether and I showed him four,

(). Arc these cight a part of the original thirteen that
you have mentioned? A. I didn’t mention any thirteen
sheets, I mentioned the fact that T had received trom
Siegel originaly three and a half years ago or so, and
then again about over a year ago, one week's fimished draw-
ings of the ‘“Superman’’ strip which T identify as being
these same drawings with the possible additions of two or
three panels here and I said at the same time h‘e submitt?d
to me in rough form partly finished bt}t prgctwall.y all 1n
pencil three or two weekly continnities in daily strip torm. 445

The Court: And those are all part of those sub-
mitted to you, as you deseribe? .

The Witness: They look like the same drawings
submitted to me as described before by mys'el‘f 11;
finished and penciled form with the exﬁee‘piwn. oa
the last panel which was added on to finish up &

age,
¥ '%he Court: At the bottom of the page?

The Witness: At the bottom of the pages and
these too (indicating).
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Mr, Manges: The‘wiinuegg is now referring to
Exhihit 40 for Tdentitication. o |
 The Court: The hi:’:‘if_}"}élll(!{q()!'l 1‘['}10 bottom of the
page i Exhibit 40 for ,[d(iil'}if}‘ﬁ(:“,{ii‘, ion.

CThe Witness: In Exhibit 36 for Identification this
fias been changed and ‘t.ht},f?.@ have .h(flfen (-311;511-1g(§,d (in-
Jieating). This is part of the original drawings.

(. When yon say ¢‘thig’’ what do you mean? A, That
upper right hand corner.

407 The Court: That little haby ftossing around a

large chair, is that 1t ?

The Witness: Yes, sir. You see, in order to get
this material which we needed for the first issue of
Action Comics, instead of having Mr. Siegel re-
draw ap entive 13-page continnity we told them to
take the datly strips, cut them up, paste them to-
gether in this form so we could reduce them to
give us the proper size for the magazine. I can
make the distinetion here between the first week
continuity which was submitted to me originally and
the drawings here that were submitted to me origi-
nally partly in ink but mostly in pencil because on
the first week’s continuity Mr. Siegel has drawn
them on a certain type of drawing paper which,
when chemically treated, brings out certain Benda
dot effects.

The Court: What is Benda?

The Witness: Benda is a process of making a
tone over white and after the drawing is made on
that chemically treated paper and the drawing 1s
ﬁni‘shed then the chemical is applied to the paper
which brings out these half {one dots.

408
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Q. Ts that why some of fhe
tone? A. Well, that iy
the chemical effect on th

panels have o vellower
be due to age pe

¢ paper.

rhaps ax well as

The Court: The chemic
s very extraordinary,

The Witness: Tt also i
the heht.
with age.

al effeet of age on pulp

on this when exposed to
Pulp paper will hecome absolutely yellow

Q. All of these exhibits for identification that are
now hefore vou, these twelve, are all drawings of “‘Super-
man’’ that appeared in the first issne of Action Comics,
ave they not? A. Yes, sir. T might say that these pieces
that were cut out were eut out by the McClure News-
paper Syndicate in preparing the promotion for the News-
paper Syndication to the newspapers. We wanted cer-
tain drawimgs showing certain ““Superman’ effects so we
ent them out of these drawings and used them in our pro-
motion work.

The Court: When vou got the work and started
promoting them that was when you got them bhack
from Aection Comics?

The Witness: That is right.

Q. That was in 1939% A. That was in the end of 1938.

Mr. Manges: Now, [ offer these 12 exhibits for

identification in cvidence. | _
The Witness: There is evidently one page MITS
‘ 1) 1ssue

there before there were 13 pages I the first

of Action Comies.

Q. But you had seen all 137 A. Yes.

P[a*intiﬁhf)irect. 09
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ar O, Gainis—for Plaintif —Cross.
The Court: They may be aih-'}iitedj |
(Plaintiff s Bxhibit 36 to 47 inclusive for Tdenti-
fieation TOW received i evidence.)
My, Manges: MThat is all
(’r(u;',s?—ﬁ..rrf’f?;f5??{?8"‘27‘7*'33 by Mr. Blun:

(). Are vou (he part owner and managing editor of
All American Corpies? AL Yes, o .

Q. Is any company owned by-_h M I ]}rmentel(l the re-
ciine owner of all American Comies? A, No.

Q. TWho is the remaining owner of All American Coni-
iex? A Mr. Liehowitz,

. Is that the Mr. Lichowifz who 1s assoctated with
the pluintiff in this case, the maun you mentioned? A.
That is correet.

(). How about Movie Comies; is Mr. Liebowitz also in-
terested in that? A. He is personally.

(). Is he personally interested in All American Com-
ice? A. He is.

Q. You have referred in your testimony to a great
deal of correspondence between yourself, Mr. Siegel, the
Dell Publishing Company, and so on. Have you any of
that correspondence here? A. None of it available.

Q. When did you look for it? A. I threw away most
of that correspondence two years ago. I clean my files
out once a year and throw away what T don’t think I need
any further,

' Q. Do YOH' have at the present time a serap of paper
Eeasiigddi S&Y k;nd as to the date when you first saw
Wings ! A. T believe so.
Q. Where is it? A. (Witness produces a paper.)

gel ? Let me see it, please. A. (Witness hands to coun-

méa
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i - ' A, . N o
I‘gh(, Court: As Joug as hie has (aken it and looked
i]t J_ty uIl.d(:]‘ qTU(.],ge Lae()irlP)Q 3g anﬁiC\nt rlllillw you
can pub 1t in evidence heeance. Hing v
\(azu’i:JE or not IéV{ijizelxbe(‘du“@““hether 1t 13 rele-
r4 | X i} ] ‘( ) (u (.‘ - ym_‘ . ‘ . ) ‘

_ MY Know-—1t bheecomes competent
at once.

(). This memorandnm is dated June 8th, 1938, is that
correct? A, Correct.

f i ] M L hy

The Court: Is that your signature, Mr. Gaines,
in pencil?

The Witness: Yes.

Q. Who was the Mr. Waldo to whom this communica-
tion of June 8th, 1938, is addressed? A Mr. Waldo i the
head of the MeClure Newspaper Syndicate, Mr. Richard
T. Waldo. That is an interoffice connuunication between
myself and the head of the company.

Mr. Blum: That is all.
Mr. Manges: [ offer the memorandum n evi-

dence.
My, Blum: I object to it. o
The Court: You can object to it but that is all
[ will allow it in because that 1s the

you ¢an do. the
it a person demands gomething

rule in this court;

he takes it with the burden. bt does
My, Blum: I agree w.k‘[l_{ that pf,ut.m' y ! —

that mean every self-serving Jeclaration m 1

is admissible?

i it as 1ts
lon’ o it to prove it as tol
My, Manges: [ don’t offer it to [

contents. '
The Court: He offers it

as to the time when he put thege 8

fore you asked for it and you ‘got .It an O )
(Marked Plaintiff's Fxhibit 48 mn @

as to the Jate and also
things in. Be-
ow 1t 18 10,
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for Plaintifl —hirecl.

JNed as a witness on behalf of the

Ax MAYER, ¢ , e ‘o
SHELPOX = heing first duly sworn, testified as

plaintift, in rebuttal,
follows:

oation by Mr. Manges:
Direet Examinalion by M7 7

Q. My, Mayer, were von the assistant of Mr. Gaines?
¢ ‘Ll‘. J’{ O . 4 ; c

A. was. ,
Q. And e:?im’m.gff o
voi +1l1 the present day.
}S;az}.[{}hji;j }im; ];hew exhibifs, beﬁin_g ]*l;—lilltiff’g Hixhibits
26 to 47, inclusive, and ask vou if vou have ever seen
them before (handing witness)? A. ‘I have. * |
Q. Will you tell his Honor when for the first {ime you
caw them and under what circumstances? A. Mr. Gaines
<howed these to me in daily strip form when they were
sent to him by the Dell Publishing Company.

what period? A, From January of

The Court: What time?
The Witness: In January of 1936.

Q. And was that just after the first issue of Popular
Comics had come out? A, That 1s right.

Q. And Popular Comics had come out about December
20th, 19257 A, That is right.

Q. Were you present, as Mr. (Gaines states, when he
had a conversation with Mr. Iger in April of 19387 A.
Yes, sir, T was.

Q. Is it true, as he testified, that he asked you to
give Mv. Tger——

The Court: That is not the way to ask a question.
He can tell the story,

Q. Will you tell us what happened? A. Mr. Iger came
into the office and after a discussion with Mr. Gaines Mr.

141
Sheldon M ayer—for

it sak - -

(raines asked me to oot one COpY eac
that we were connected with. A
Jomies, |

Q. And what did von do? 1 picke :
and, ax T said T gavif then{j tofif %(ﬁed one out of egch

(0. At that time? A At that timzﬁ

Q. And are vou certaiy that Ae .
the five? A, Absolutely,

. That was the fivst
That 18 right.

h of all the magazines
Ong them was Action

flon Comies was one of

ssue of Action Comies? A

Mv. Manges: That is all.
Cross-Baxamination by Mr. Blum -

Q. What day in the month of April, 1938, did Mr. Tger
come to your office? A. Well, T can’t say the date exactly
bat [ do know that it was toward the end of April, I
can positively prove that, He came back about a week
later after he saw Mr. Gaines with the drawings that he
had promised to show Mr. Gaines, his own stuff, and
Myr. Gaines wasn’t there and after some little conversation
My. Tger and I went out to lunch and we were going to
have oysters but it was too late iu the season, so that I
know 1t was just at the end of April

Q. Mr. Iger at that time did show you some drawings®
A. He did.

Q. Do you remember the drawings Mr. Iger showed
you sometime in April? A. T do. ’ |

Q. What were they? A. They were a series ot——weltl,
several series. As a matter of fact, they were photostatic
copies of drawings and if I am not mistaken most of them
were used in the Jumbo Comies. _ t

Q. What characters were there in these drawings iha
Mr. Iger showed you? A. Oh, there was anl aviation strip

Pla.ifsrf,tiﬁ“__..(jm&g‘ 421
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194 Qheldon Mayor—ior Plamtiff —Cross.

and there was a spy strip. _I donjt recall the names of
tBé characters because they drdn’t impress me very mueh
" Z?I?;:;ﬁw the course of yem:sy Sa}:* from 1936 up to
the presenf toue, how many emm}c strip.s have been sub-
mitted to vou: h, 10U, Liow many ? A @ couldn’t say ex-
actlv.  Possibly 50 or 100 |
Qn Yau pretend you can remember at ?}hé present tune
overy one of these strips that were submifted to vou and
the date apon which they were submitted?
425 |
Mr. Manges: T object to that, as to whatl the wit-
ness can do.
The Court: It makes no difference whether he
can or not, if he can remember this particular one.

(. Have you stated your best recollection as to what
Mr. Iger showed you? A. Yes.

Q. Prior to the time you saw these drawings, Exhibits
36 to 47, inclusive, had you ever seen cartoons published
showing a man in the conventional strong man’s costume,
like a wrestler or a circus acrobat?

426 Mr. Manges: I ohject to that as incompetent, ir-

relevant and immaterial,

The Court: It is cross-examination and I will
let him go on.

A. Of course,

Q. I beg your pardon? A. Yes.
Q; T’hat has been a common feature for many years,
hasn’t it? A, I wouldn’t say that exactly, no.

Q. Was_it shown in ‘‘Phe Phantom” before you saw
these drawings, Bxhibits 36 to 47 inclusive?
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ITarry Dovente R N P
Y Donenfeld_ ., Pl@!’i?f?[f——-f)irnpt

My, I\"[:j.l'{l}l,'('.s: There I
tom’”’ was connected witd
It 1s not a superman.

. g . ,

The Clourt: In tle case of §J
wyn-Mayer, p robably the most
ase that has been up for Nt .
Ig 1 1 (I nap for a long e, and on which
L was reverse A S0rTY to sav :

we ?‘ ersed, LA sorry to say, such a copyright
of course is valid and the public domain is impor-
‘[fint (ml’} on the issne of 111f1:mgemeut, that is, so
far as it may break the forea of the inference to
be drawn by the work—the defendant has access
to other material which would have served him just
as well.  That is all it amounts to. They just try
to create what T mentioned as an intellectual alibi,
and was criticized,

Mr. Blum: That is all,

My, Manges: That is all.

1O proof that “The Phan.
POWrs or anvthing ke it

weldon v, Metro-Gold.
tmportant copyright

Harry DoNENFELD, called as a witness on behalf of the
plaintiff, in rebuttal, being first duly sworn, testified as
follows:

Direct Examination by Mr. Manges:

Q. Mr. Donenfeld, you arve the president of the plain-
tiff corporation? A. I am, sir, ' ;

Q. Did Mr. Victor Fox ever submit to you a dummy
for a magazine Kid Comies? A. No, sir. | it
Q. Did Mr. Fox ever submit to you any d‘ummy

the ““Wonderman” character on it? A. No, ?};
Q. Did he ever submit to you a dummy wit )
ing contained on it which now appears as p

the draw-
nel X om
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d—for Plaintiff —Direct.

Defendant’s Exhibit B for Identification? A. No, I have
e . .

qever seen that at any fime.

My, Blum: May I interrupt for a moment. I had

the idea that Exhibit B had been allowed to go in
%ﬁbj.eet to further ruling, in other words, BExhibits

1o S
derstood vour Honor’s ruling yes-
A and B, as I underst A gy

ferday, were 1n subject to ruling at the final argu-

ment. . ,
meThe Court: What has that got to do with it?

(‘an’t he show it to the witness?
Mr. Blum: No; but he said Exhibit B for Identifi-

cation and I just want to clear up that point.

Mr. Manges: It is marked that way.

The Court: Reserving it doesn’t make the slight-
est difference.

Mr. Blum: I just wanted to make sure my recol-
lection was correct.

The Court: I think T will let them both in and
then we can strike out the identification.

{Defendant’s Exhibit A and B for Identification
received in evidence.)

Q. Mr, Fox stated that this submission of a dummy to
you took place in the month of January, 1938. Will you
tell us where yon were during that month? A. Around the
latter part of December I took a cruise on the Holland-
American Line and it landed me in Havana New Years.
I spent New Years eve in Havana and a few days subse-
quent to that and then about the first week in January I
went to Miami and spent the entire month in Miami up
fo about the 2nd or 3rd of February. T was away from

New York from the latter part of December until the
early part of February.

145
Harry Donenfeld—wfor Plaéntiﬁ‘mCross, 433

The Court: Mr. Fox didn’
and submit this tq you or a
The Witness: No, sir.

t ﬂyﬁ down by airplane
nything like that?

Q. Did you meet Mr, Fox in an .-
or trip? A. No. ¥ part of your ecruise

Q. Did_ you see Mr. Fox from the time you left New
York until the time you returned? A. No ‘sir.

‘Q. I show you this paper and ask you if it is a check
which you cashed on the “‘Statendam’ on the 23rd of
December, 19377 A. Yes.

Q. Does that refresh your recollection? A Yes, sir.
I purchased some stuff in Cuba.

434

The Court: What is this?

Mr. Manges: This is to refresh his recollection,
to corroborate what he is saying.

The Court: You have a ran on the stand.

Mr, Manges: This is definite proof as to the dates.

‘ The Court: It doesn’t show that it was cashed on

the ‘‘Statendam.”

Mr. Manges: Yes, sir, it does. The purser’s
stamp of the ¢‘Statendam.”” T will withdraw it.

The Court: You assume, first, except in the case
of a hostile witness, you are going to call some-
body who is telling the truth and ‘thesx} aftier he
has done it you don’t have to bolster it with plllG'W%,

Mr. Manges: On the question of dates I w?mad it
to appear with certainty. However, 1 won't press

the point. That is all.

435

Cross-Examination by Mr. Blum:

Q. Did you see Mr. Fox in the ear
shortly after you return from Miami
have.

ly part of F&bwim
¢ A, Yes, I might
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436 Harry Donenfeld-—for Plaintiff
QI didn’t hear you. You might have? A, Yes, I

'oht have then.
ml,@l Was it in the early part of February that Mr. Fox

showed vou Kid Comics? A. He never showed me Kid
Comics. .

Q. After you returned from your cruise .how long
did vou stay in New York before going to Miami? A,
I didn’t come back to New York. I took the cruise and
when the boat got to Havana I got off the boat and I
stayed in Havana for about a week and from there flew

437 to Miami. 1 didn’t come back to New York at all.

Q. Have you ever been convicted of any crime? A,
Yes, sir.

Q. How many times? A. T wasn’t convicted; I pleaded
guilty in General Sessions for publishing magazines and
paid a fine,

The Court: What was it supposed to be, an
improper magazine?

The Witness: It was supposed to have been
magazines which I have discontinued about 1934.

The Court: Was it improper?

The Witness: Yes.

The Court: Lewd or something like that?

The Witness: Snappy magazines, snappy stories.
In fact that was the title of it, ‘‘Snappy Stories.”

438

Q. Was that the only conviction? A. Yes. ‘
Thf' Was that the only time you pleaded guilty? A.
it was when I pleaded guilty, in General Sessions. It
was In Special and then it was transferred to General
and I pleaded guilty,
i eﬁg»ﬂﬂa«;ﬁ'm’t you pleaded guilty in the Federal Court
nily for sending obscene matter through the mails?

EEEEe

.(
e
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Harry Donenfeld—for Plaintiff—Cross. 439

A. No, sir, I was never involy
tion,
swer, 1f vou remember it

Haven’t you pleaded guilty in the Federal Court recentl ?
A. Do you think I am going to perjure myself ? 7

Q. I don’t know. A. T have made a definite statement
that I was never indicted, never had any business with
any Federal authorities or any Federal courts; never heen
indicted and never pleaded. Is that clear?

Q). That is clear. A. 0. K, sir.

ed in any Federal Court ac-

The Court: Why do you use “O.K.”"%

The Witness: I am sorry, Judge, but I made the
statement,

Mr. Blum: That 1s all.

The Court: Do you realize that that isn’t so? You
asked him if he pleaded guilty in the Federal Court
and he said he didn’t plead guilty in the Federal
Court. Are you certain he didn’t?

“Mr. Blum: Yes. What happened is I didn’t hear
very well and Mr. Manges gaid ‘‘you are incor-
rect”” and I thought he meant ‘‘he is inearreet"’—-
just a case where my hearing should be a little
better. .

The Court: All right, then I think you ’shoulei
apologize to the witness for talking to mm In ﬁtl:a;
way when he said definitely he had not been indic ]:’
in this court. If he was I could send for the Cler i
records and it is very easy for me to find ou

it 1 e or not. _
Whﬁzzhe};lgmlf Itr\zould not have asked that question
L . . settine worse. 1 am
except that my hearing 18 getung
very sorry I asked that qll}%tl‘m*

The Court: He says he 18 SOTT

question, and that’s that.

v he aSkﬁd that

440
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Harry Donenfeld—for Plaintiff —Cross.

Cros&-Esmmim%%m by Mr. Fried:

| 1 ba d{j you I)H.'bw
_ Donenfeld, how many magazines

li hQ;tI‘It;e present t;lme? A. Four comies and World’s

ET‘S ir Comics and Superman Comics—that makes the six

a;nicsMa,na I have got Fact Detective and Faect Maga-

zine—that is eight.

Mr. Manges: We are talking about the plaintiff
corporation, are we not ? '

Mr. Fried: I am asking him how many magazines
are published by any of his companies.

The Court: You didn’t ask him that,

Mr. Fried: ANl right; then I will reframe my
question,

The Court: I will let him ask it.

Mr. Fried: He has already begun to answer my
question.

The Court: But don’t you know it doesn’t make
any sense if a person answers a question that was
not intended to be asked and does not answer it
right. What do you intend to ask?

Mr. Fried: If your Honor please, I have prac-
ticed law in these courts for more than twenty-five
years and I believe I have some ideas of the con-
dnet of a case.

The Court: Now I am trying this case, remember
that. The trouble is lawyers think they try the
cases and I don’t believe in that, the judge tries
the case. Now, what I want to know is what do
you want to ask this witness? Just ask him the
question,

Mr.‘ Fried: All right, your Honor, T will address
the witnegs,

%,

B
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Q. Mr. Witness, how many magazines
by yourself or any companies in which you

I don’t want you to enumerate them-
A. T will; ten, ’

Q. And how many companies publish these t
. en -
zines? A. Three, e

Q. What relationship is there between these three
companies and Mr. Liebowitz, if any?

are published
are interested?
tell me the number,

Mr. Manges: I think this should be limited to
the plaintiff corporation. I don’t see where we

are going to get with other corporations that have
nothing to do with this aetion.

The Court: You can not tell what the rammifica-
tions are., Maybe he is going to make an argument
about Liebowitz testifying or something like that;
I don’t know. I will let him answer.

Mr, Manges: I think he should be limited to mat-
ters T brought out through the witness.

The Court: I think he could be limited to that
but I don’t believe in i,

'Q. T have asked my question. What is the answer?

A. Ten. .
Q. I beg your pardon? A. Ten magazines.

The Court: That is not the question. Repeat the
last question.

Q. (Read.) A. Mr. Liebowitz is employed by me &3
general manager of all my businesses.
Q. Who owns the stock? Wh‘o is
the stock in All American that is in the name
witz? A. I have nothing to do Wi
Q. Will you please answer my que

the actual owner of
of Liebo-

th the All American,
stion?

445
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. ‘.) N - at-
Mr. Manges: I object to that. . .
The Court: Do you know a thing like ithat? |
The Witness: T have nothing to do with the All

Ameriean.
The Court: Do you know? ’
The Witness: Mr. Liebowtiz is part owner of it,

I know, and Mr. Liebowitz is part owner of Movie
Comics and All American.

Q. Didn’t Mr. Liebowitz endorse in blank the shares
449 of stock he owns in All American Company?

Mr. Manges: I object to that.

The Court: I think yvou have gone far enough.
Start on something else.

Mr. Fried: I will take an exception to your Hon-
or’s ruling.

Q. This cruise that you started off on, Mr. Donenfeld,
in December, 1937, was it? A. That is right.

Q. How many days cruise was it? A. A seventeen day
cruise,

Q. What stops did it make? A. All through the South;

450 Curacao, Caracas, the West Indies, and the last stop on

the way back was Havana. The ship got to Havana the
31st of December,

d‘dQ, Did the cruise continne back to New York? A. It
id.

Q. ’;sz tell us now that you didn’t come back to New
York, is that right? A, Surely,

Q. With that cruise? A. That is right, T di )
back to New York. right 1 did not come
o Q You tell us there was not an intermission between
t;we time you concluded your cruise and the time you went

Miami? A. 1 have g check here that I issned——

i
S
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Q. T am not asking you ahont a check.

The Court: Just answer that.

A. Repeat the question,

Q. (Read.) A. 1 stopped in Hav

Q. And you didn’t come back to
went to Miami? A. That is
New York.

Q. And you _didn 't speak to Fox in New York in Janu-
ary? A. Definitely not. On the 3rd of Januar
the bill at the National Hotel in Havana,

ana in between,
. New York before you
right, T did not come hack to

v I paid

Mr. Fried: T move that that answer be stricken
out as not responsive.

The Court: T will let it stay there. T believe in

having things sound like sense. I will let it stay in
that way.

Q. What was the day that you finally returned to
New York? A. The early part of February.

Q. Do you know the exact day? A. The 3rd or 4th of
February.

Mr. Fried: That is all.

Re-direct Examination by Mr. Manges:

Q. And is this the check dated January 3rd, 1938, to

the National Hotel in Havana? A. Yes, sir.
Q. Your check? A. That is my cheek and that was for

my bill.

Mr. Manges: I offer it in evidenfz& .
(Marked Plaintiff’s Exhibit 49 In evidence.)
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Harry Donenfeld—for Plaintiff —Re-direct,
I show you this check dated LTanuary 5th, 1938
t% order of the Dempsey-V anderbllt and ask you if
to the A. Yes, it is my check.

1ot is vour check? ' , . .
than And when and where did you issue it? A, T issyed

it in Miami and I cashed it at the Dempsey-Vanderbilt

Hotel, for $50.

). Jannary 5th, 19387 A. January 5th, 1938.

Mr. Manges: I offer it in evidence.
(Marked Plaintiff’s Exhibit 50 in evidence,)

Q. I show you this cheek of December 23rd, marked

«“qS Statendam, Purser’s Office,”” and ask you if that is
a check cashed by yvou on the S8 Statendam on December

23rd, 19377 A. Right, sir.

Mr. Manges: I offer this in evidence.
(Marked Plaintiff’s Exhibit 51 in evidence.)

Q. T show you this check dated January 10th, 1938,
to the order of Dempsey-Vanderbilt and ask you if it is a
check cashed by you in Miami, Florida, on that day? A.
Yes, that was a bill T paid for $167 to the Dempsey-
Vanderbilt Hotel.

Q. The check was issued on that day? A. That is right.

Mr. Manges: I offer it in evidence.
(Marked Plaintiff’s Exhibit 52 in evidence.)

Q I am 8:03118 to skip some and come to January 28
??d as}: you if j:hig 18 a check you issued on January 28,
Tlfii’ ﬁn :gilaml, Florida (handing witness)? A. Yes.
the D ; raelew has got an agency down there known as

¢ Dade County News Agency and I cashed the check—

i
i
i
H
¥
5{{

e %

153
Victor S. F(imw—Recalled—mfor Defendants—Direct 157
I think you will find the gt
Agency stamp—at the Dade County News
Mr. Manges: T offer it in evidence,
(Marked Plaintiff’s Exhibit 33 in evidence.)
Mr. Manges: That is all.  Plaintiff rests,
Vicror 8. Fox, recalled, in sur-rebuttal, further testi-
fied as follows: | 458

Direct Examwation by Mr. Blum:

Q. Mr. Fox, did you hear the testimony just given
by Mr. Donenfeld? A. T did.

Q. State to the Court whether to your knowledge M.
Donenfeld was in New York before he went to Miami in

January of 193817

The Court: You mean was he ever in New York
or was in New York after he went on his cruise,
between the time when he went on his eriuse and

the time he was in Miami? 459
Mr. Blum: That is right. That is the question.

A. T recall disinctly that he was in New York. We had a
conversation where he had a lot of trouble with some of
his magazines and he was trying to get himself straight-
ened out. He had to break his cruise short.

Mr. Manges: 1 object to this. .

The Court: He says he had a conversation. Where
was the conversation?

The Witness: The offices of the
News Company were on the same floor

Independent
with my
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460 Victor S. Foxr—Recalled—for Defendants—Cross,
ictor 8. Foa

pany’s offices, and we were talking

. gom
offices, our ¢ _ :
outside of the door of'thexr offices, T recall dis.

=5 / l’mrry to g-et awa
v ’\fir‘?Manges: Can we have the date fixed?
A * -

The Witness: I would say I cannot give you the
recise date, but it would be between January 10th

and 20th, 1938. ‘
Mr. Blum: That 1s all.

Cross-Examination by Mr. Manges :

461 Q. Have you any proof at all besides your word that
you saw Mr. Donenfeld in New York between January
10th and January 20th, that those dates are correct, in
19387 A. I was unprepared for the question but if I have
the time—I keep memorandums of all my conversations
with Donenfeld becanse I found that they were not al-
ways according to Hoyle.

Mr. Manges: I move to strike out the answer.
The Court: Strike it out.

A. (Continued) And I have in my files undoubtedly a
469 memorandum of the conversation between me——

Mr. Manges: That is all.
The Court: Is there anything else?
Mr. Blum: That is all so far as I am concerned.
The Court: I will hear from you in justification
of this publication, ‘““Wonderman’’.
Q (Counsel sum up to the Court.)

s

SRR

155

463
Opinion,

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT,
SoUTHERN Distriey oF NEw York,
Docket #....—Civil 3-38.
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(Statement of names of counsel who appeared in the case.)

WooLsey, J.

The plaintiff may have judgment as bereinafter pre-
scribed.

L

The basis of my subject
cause is the Copyright Law.

matter jurisdietion in this
mitle 17, U. 8. Code.
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The defendant Bruns Publications, Ine., is the pub-

Jisher of the alleged infringing magazine, and the other
ishe :

two defendants are distributors thereof.

IT.

The copvrights ‘ndicated in the complaint:

(a) As to the Juné, 1938, issue of said periodi-
eal: June 14, 1938—Class B, No. 379787.

(b) As to the July, 1938, issue of said periodical:
June 14, 1938—Class B, No. 379788.

(¢) As to the August, 1938, issue of said peri-
odical : July 30, 1938—Class B, No. 385466.

(d) As to the September, 1938, issue of said
periodical : September 17, 1938—Class B, No. 387907.

(e) As to the October, 1938, issue of said peri-
odical: Oetober 27, 1938—Class B, No. 394784,

(fy As to the November, 1938, issue of said
periodical: October 27, 1938—Class B, No. 394886.

(g) As to the December, 1938, issue of said
periodical : December 22, 1938—Class B, No. 399214.

(h) As to the January, 1939, issue of said peri-
odical: February 7, 1939—Class B, No. 405349,

are for what is considered in the Copyright Law to be an
original work, and which is, therefore, copyrightable,

In respeet of the February, 1939, March, 1939 and
%Pﬂl-, 1939 issnes of said periodical, the issuance to plain-
tiff ?f such certificates of registration is imminent, all
requrements of law having been duly complied with by
Plaintiff for the issuance thereof in due course,
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11T,

The next question which arise
is whether there has beeq any ac
copy the plaintiff’s work.

I think that access—if it i
gkr?und——wcer?;ainly has been establisheq because the plain
titf’s magazine was on all the newsstand  vons
bhefore the defendant’s magazine was p

S in a'dl copyright cases,
CESS8, % e, any chanee to

not accepted as common

s for cirea a vear
ublished,

Iv.

I have gone through all the plaintiff’s magazines and
the defendant’s magazine, and I find that in the one copy
of the defendant’s magazine which has come out—the
May, 1939 number of the magazine called “Wonder Com-
ics’’'—there has been unfair use hy the defendant of the
plaintiff’s copyrighted pictures, and unfair paraphrase
of the plaintiff’s text accompanying its pictures.

Consequently, in my opinion, infringement has been
shown both textually and pictorially.

Short of ‘“Chinese copies’ of the plaintiff’s ‘‘Super-
man’’ strip, the defendant could hardly have gone further
than it has done. E. g., the pictures shown in the moving
papers on the preliminary injunction which came before
one of the Judges in motion part and which may be‘ re-
ferred to in the findings of fact to be hereinafter provided
for, and the parallel column eompar:ison {)f the'text as
shown at pages 9 and 10 of the plaintiff’s trial brief.

V.

It seems to me that in dealing with 2 ,comiz ﬁitm&i
the kind embodied in both the defendant;lst i»;lt e-v-giyp$a€h
tiff’s magazines, it has to be remembered 1

. \ . rise or in-
cartoon embodies a conception of humor or Sup

469

470

471
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. he cartoonist may be aiming at—.
eredxbihiygflf;ﬁi(i‘fi; chhe copyright is entitled to is the
and W?'Zn of that embodiment of his concept. K. g., King
E’Z?z;;é Syndicate V. Fleischer, 299 F_ed* 5.33 (C. G-‘ A 2),
Wﬁiéh ie often called, as it was on this trial, the ““Spark
Plug’' case, and Fleischer Studios, Inc. Ve Ra:lph 4.
Freundlich, Inc., 73 F. (2) 276 (C. C. A. 2), thh 18 often
called. as it was on this trial, the f‘Betty Boop™’ case.

Inasmuch as I have found unfair use !oy the de‘fe}fxdants,
that means infringement of the plaintiff’s copyrights and
entitles the plaintiff under the Copyright Act to a judg-
ment for an injunction with costs and to damages and

profits.
VL

Now we come to the question of mechanics, for my de-
cision must be embodied in some juridical aet in order to
have it of any value.

Counse] for the plaintiff must forthwith prepare and
submit to me, through the Clerk’s office, findings of fact
following the complaint with such additions as counsel
for the plaintiff may be advised, as, for example, the
pictures shown in the papers on the motion for the pre-
liminary injunetion, and the comparison of the texts shown
on pages 9 and 10 of plaintiff’s trial brief, and conclu-
giens of law in aceordance with this opinion, which 1is
just the barest outline of my views herein.

Counsel for the plaintiff must give five days’ notice of
such findings of fact and conclusions of law to counsel
for the defendants.

Couns&l for the defendants may, if he be so advised,
on the return day of such notice, submit to me a criticism

of the findings of fact which plaintiff’s counsel may have
proposed. -
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Only the findings of fac
I sign will be filed aq par
not have cross-findings in thjg Court

I suggest this procedprea . .

Cor the defendantsI willdgsgbgg?sufzidl ti;ﬂh}.nk that counsel
f the pr d find; at a great many
ot 1€ proposed findings of fact by the laintiff

subject to any objection. There will Ii?ob bi are not
a few really controversig] matters, PTODADLY e only
e by defomants” oy S Of Bl of fu
eounselu nd admigsioﬁ Ofxgerm‘ust be served on plaintiff’s
' ; vice secured before submis-
sion to me,

Now, in order that T may be facilitated in correcting
th:e ﬁndmg.s of fact, T want them sent to me typed in
triple spacing so that I can correct them by writing in
between the lines if I wish to.

The necessity for this form of procedure has been
approved by the United States Supreme Court in a case
which was decided under Equity Rule 701, Interstate
Circuit, Inc. v. U. 8., 304 U. 8. 55, 56 and 57. Before that
case, I had always made out findings of fact in my opinion,
and had then said at the end thereof that the opinion
should stand as the findings of fact and conclusions of
law in the cause. The Supreme Court, under the case just
cited, literally enforced Rule 70% and ended that practice.

VIL

With regard to the remedy, after the ﬁndings ?f fa.et
and conclusions of law are signed by me, the plaintiff wil
have to submit, through the Clerk’s office, a final decree

4175
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ts and counsel fees, to be fixed as hereinafter
osts -‘ s

carrying ¢ ill provide

: ich w

Pfescmbed’ i‘l;f a permanent injunection forbidding the
fnjéher @ubiieatian by the defendant ]:;ﬁr?ns Pub-

lications, Inc., of 1ts caix*t()(m character ‘Wonder-

man’, in such form as will make that cartoor} cl:jar_

aaf;&; trespass in any respe?t on the plaintiff’y

‘{Superman’.

ea§t0§:V: hiiiifz; id?cated herein some of the

regpeef& in which I think it has already trespassed,

479 and, for the future, the two cartoons must be kept

art. ‘
apThe form of the injunction to be submitted

should, I think, substantially follow the lines of the
injunections granted in the ‘Spark Plug’ and ‘Betty
Boop’ cases referred to above. The records on
appeal in those cases are available to be looked at
in the Association of the Bar or in the Clerk’s
office of the Circnit Court of Appeals in this build-
ing.

2. For a recovery by the plaintiff from the
480 defendants of the plaintiff’s damages and profits
which T have fixed under Section 25(b) of the Copy-

right Act at Fifteen hundred dollars ($1,500).

The defendants, Kable News Company and the
Interborough News Company, will only be second-
arily liable for such damages and profits in case
the Bruns Publications, Ine.,, cannot answer there-
for. In such event, they will be jointly and sev-

erally liable therefor ag joint and several infringers
of the plaintiff’s copyright.

VIIL

e plaintiff will have also costs as
defendants, including all taxable allowances

In the final decree th
the

and disbursements, ang

also reason
- - * a
provided under Section

bl
40 of the (guers msel fees, ag

Copyright Act.  Costs

IX.

Counsel fees will be fixed by me before any final decree
is entered. Tn order to enable me fo fix these fees in
accordance with the canons of legal charges laid down by
Judge Choate of this Court, and quoted by me in In re
Osofsky, 50 F. (2d) 925, 1 will require the plaintiff’s
counsel to serve, with two days’ notice, on the attorneys
for the defendants and submit to me a verified petition
dealing fully with their services and dishursements herein.

X.

Only after these fees are fixed in accordance with the
canons of charges above referred to, and the costs are
taxed, may a final decree be noticed for settlement, in
order that the costs, including counsel fees allowed, may be
included in the final decree.

The final decree will be submitted to me throngh the

Clerk’s office on the usual notice. WoOLSEY,

U. 8 D.J
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INITED STATES DISTRICT COURT,
Sovraery Distrior oF NEw Yorx,
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Derrerve Conrics, Inc.,
Plaintiﬁ,
485 AGAINST

486

162

Bruxs Pusricariorns, Inc., Kasre News Company
»
and InrerBoROUGH NEws Co.,

Defendants.

0

Fixpines or PFacr.

1. Plaintiff, Detective Comic
?naf‘ter mentioned was and stil]
1zed and existing under and by virtue of the Laws of the
Sta'te of New; York, having its principal office and place of
L;z:;ﬁs; at I\:(-). 480 Lexington Avenue, in the Borough of
e Sgnti? Cll?r, (%’ounty and State of New York within
e | d(' rn 1str{ct of New York, and was and stil] is

gaged In the husinegg of publishing magazines for sale

to the genera] :
America and elsewhere, oughout the United States of

8, Ine., at all times here-
18 a corporation organ-
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and still is engaged in the g
zines for sale to the generg]
of America and elsewhere.

3. Defendant, Kable News Company, at all times here.
inafter mentioned was and still is 4 corporation organ-
ized and existing under and by virtue of the Laws ofbthe
State of Illinois and has regularly engaged and still ree.
ularly engages in business in the State of New York a;d
maintains one of its principal offices and place of business
at No. 420 Lexington Avenue, in the Borough of Manhat-
tan, City, County and State of New York within the South-
ern District of New York, and was and still is engaged
in the business of distributing magazines throughout the
United States of America and elsewhere.

4. Defendant, Interborough News Co., at all times
hereinafter mentioned was and still is a corporation or-
ganized and existing under and by virtue of the Laws of
the State of New York, having its principal office and
place of business at No. 525 West 52nd Street, in the Bor-
ough of Manhattan, City, County and State of New York
within the Southern Distriet of New York, and was .and
still is engaged in the business of distributing magazines
in the City and State of New York.

5. Defendants, Bruns Publications, Ine.z Ka]:_rle N&wz
Company and Interborough News Co., are .1nhgbxta;1t§ e{;
and may be found within the Southern District o
York.

4817
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491

492

6. Plaintiff was organized for 'the purpose, among
other things, of carrying on and: since 1its organizatiop
has carired on and is now carrying on, the business of
writing, producing, publishing and selling periodicals;
that for these purposes it has caused to be written by its
agents a series of periodicals entitled "‘Action Comies”’,
that plaintiff, being an emplover for whom said periodi-
cals were made for hire, is the author and proprietor
thereof.

7. Plaintiff, being a corporation organized and exist-
ing under and by virtue of the Laws of the State of New
York, is and was at the time of securing and registering
claim to copyrights in sald periodicals, as hereinafter set
forth, a citizen of the United States.

8. Said periodicals caused to be written by plaintiff,
the author thereof, by its agents as aforesaid, contain

a large amount of matter wholly original with said author
thereof.

9. Plaintiff did on or about the 18th day of April,
193?, secure copyright for the June, 1938 issue of said
penr{dlcal ““Action Comics’’ by publishing the same and
offering the same to the general public with the following
Iit)tlceii)f cgpy{'ight’ ““Entire contents copyright 1938 by
Df‘fe?fwe Comics, Inc.,’” inseribed upon the title page;
i)oam Iffh did on or about the 25th day of May, 1938, secure
x:iiélg thor. t};lf July, 1938 issue of said periodical
the sa?@ tﬁmzfs by publishing the same and offering
of copyri gt » Ege;neral public with the following notice
tive COmiis ’I Et{re c‘?ntentﬁ copyright 1938 by Detec-
did on -ér a’b nf., inseribed upon the title page; plaintiff
right for ﬂf ut the 25th day of June, 1938, secure copy-

e August, 1938, issue of said periodical
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EAetion Ct-orrgfs” by publishing t
he same to the genera) L2 ﬁ

of copyright, ‘‘Entire 00111}?@1:1?13120\;?3@%ﬁel;ggowmg notfl ve

Comics, Inec.,”” inseribed upon the tittfe . -b}i ?ei‘;eetv{e

on or about the 25th day of July, 1938}? Sceec, plaintiff 'dxd

for the September, 1938, issue of said ’eri g?e f?%’?fl@;ht

Comics’’ by publishing the same angd poffe(;i;ia th Action

to the general public with the following notice 0? sz.me

Iiight, ‘““Eintire contents copyright 1938 by Det:ctii;
Cornies, Inc.,”” inscribed upon the title page; plaintiff did
on or about the 25th day of August, 1938, secure copyright
for the October, 1938, issue of said periodical ‘‘Action
Comies’” by publishing the same and offering the same
to the general public with the following notice of copy-
right, ‘‘Kntire contents copyright 1938 by Detective
Comics, Inc.,”” inscribed upon the title page; plaintiff
did on or about the 26th day of September, 1938, secure
copyright for the November, 1938, issue of said periodical
¢« Acetion Comies’’ by publishing the same and offering the
same to the general public with the following notice of
copyright, ‘‘Entire contents copyright 1938 by Detective
(lomics, Inc.,’’ inscribed upon the title page; plaintiff did
on or about the 25th day of October, 1938, secure copy-
right for the December, 1938, issue of said p@ri{)difml
¢« Aotion Comies’’ by publishing the same _an§ @ﬁéi’lflg
the same to the general public with the following noftice
of copyright, ‘‘Entire contents copyright 1938 by Qetf%
tive Comies, Inc.,’” inscribed upon the tifle page; plaints

did on or about the 25th day of November, 1938 SEEFe
copyright for the January, 1939, issue of said f%je}‘;: the
« Action Comics” by publishing the same and 0 BZtife of
same to the general publie with t;he fjggf E% %e‘teﬁﬁve
copyright, ‘‘Entire contents copyright Vo e

did
Comies, Ine.,”’ inseribed upon

e same ang offering

the title page: plaintiff &
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7 r, 1938, secure copy-
the 27th day of Deee.mbel, , copy
i }?tr ?(l;: uthe February, 1939, 1ssue of said Peljlﬂdmal
Sf&cfien Comics’’ by publishing the same and offering the

" ic with the following notice of
to the gemeral public with T : |
z;f;iight, «‘Tntire contents copyright 1939 by Detective

Clomies, Ine.,”’ inseribed upon the title page; plaintiff did
on or about the 25th day of J anuary, 193?, secure copy-
right for the March, 1939, issue of said perIOfilcaI “‘ Action
Comics’’ by publishing the same and' Oﬁ"erufg the same
to the general public with the ?dlawmg notice of copy-
right, ‘ Entire contents copyright 1939 by Petective
Comics, Inec.,”’ inseribed upon the title page; plaintiff did
on or about the 25th day of February, 1939, secure copy-
right for the April, 1939, issue of said periodical ‘‘ Action
Comics’’ by publishing the same and offering the same
to the general public with the following mnotice of copy-
right, ‘“Entire contents copyright 1939 by Detective

Comics, Ine.,” inscribed upon the title page.

10. After publication of each of said periodicals with
said notices of copyright as aforesaid, plaintiff duly regis-
tered its claim to copyright in each of said issues of
said periodical ‘‘Action Comics’’ by filing, in respect of
each such issue thereof, with the Register of Copyrights
application therefor, specifying that each issue of said
periodical belongs to subdivision (b) of Section 5 of the
Act of March 4, 1909 and (in respect of each of said
1ssues of said periodical) duly deposited in the mail, ad-
dressed to the Register of Copyrights, Washington, D. C.,,
two complete copies of the best edifion of each issue there-
of then published as aforesaid, which were printed from
type set ’:Vlthin the limits of the United States from type
b oherein, and were bound within the limits of the
United States, and paying, in respect of each such issue
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Finding: ‘ '
ngs of Fact and Conclusions of Law, 499

of said periodical, to the Register of .

required by law, ot Copyrights the fees
11. rf}:‘\ere was duly issued to plaintiff under seal of

the C‘Opyrlghf; Office and signeq by the Register of Conv.

rights, a certificate of registration in respect of each sggh

issue of said periodiecal, as follows:

(a) As to the June, 1938 issue of said periodical:
June 14, 1938—Class B, No. 379787.

(b) As to the July, 1938 issue of said periodical: ~°°
June 14, 1938—Class B, No. 379788,
(¢) As to the August, 1938 issue of said periodieal:
July 30, 1938—Class B, No. 385466.
(d) As to the September, 1938 issue of said periodi-
cal: September 17, 1938—Class B, No. 387907.
(e) As to the October, 1938, issue of said periodical:
October 27, 1938—Class B, No. 394784
(f) As to the November, 1938 issue of said periodical: o1
October 27, 1938—Class B, No. 394886.
(g) As to the December, 1938 issue of said periodical:
December 22, 1938—Class B, No. 399214.
(h) As to the January, 1939 1ssue of said periodical:
February 7, 1939—Class B, No. 405349
said periodical:

(i) As to the February, 1939 issue of
March 29, 1939—Class B, No. 411085.
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(j) As to the March, 1939 issue of said periodicg].

Mareh 4, 1939—Class B, No. 409037.

(k) As to the April, 1939 issue of sald periodieal.

March 17, 1939—Class B, No. 409444

which said certificates are in evidence herein as Plaintiff’s
Eshibits 1 to 11, inclusive.

12, Since the respective dates of publication of each

503 of said issues of said periodical as hereinbefore set forth,

504

said periodicals have been published by plaintiff and all
copies of said periodicals made by plaintiff or under its
authority or license have been printed and bound as set
forth in Finding No. 10 hereof and that all such copies

bore the notices of copyright as set forth in Finding No.
9 hereof.

13. Plaintiff since the time of securing copyrights and
registering claims thereto as aforesaid has been and now
is the sole proprietor of the entire right, title and interest
in and to the said copyrights of each issue of said periodi-

cal ‘‘Action Comics’’ and of all rights and privileges
granted and secured thereby.

: 3‘4' *Oﬁpi% of each of said copyright issues of plain-
tiff’s said periodical entitled ‘“ Action Comics?’’ are in evi-

dence h&rein as Plaintiff’s Exhibits 12 to 22, inclusive.

lmlﬁ, “Action Comies” is a monthly periodical, 64 pages
g; containing eomic cartoons, telling complete stories

Qr E * . * » . o
stories In serialized form. The retail sales price of
sald magazine i

| s 10¢ per copy. The sales of said maga-
ﬁmtgﬁ general public have risen from month to month
8¢ 1mtial publication and distribution thereof.
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Estimated present sales thereof to th

: e general ]
at the rate o‘f 350,000 copies per issye out of 4Tp2u Eg)lg Sl'fe
tributed coples of each issue thereof, , =

* 16. T}ie ﬁf"f*t an% pr-incipa‘l comic strip feature in each
issue of .l}ﬂtmﬁ QOm}CS” 1s entitled ‘‘Superman”, a
wholly original fantastic description of a human being
known as “Superman” and possessed of superhuman at-
tributes. Said feature is 13 pages long in each issue of
«+ Action Comies’’ in evidence herein except for the October,
1938 issue thereof (Plaintiff’s Exhibit 16) in which it is
9 pages long. Said comic strip is the most popular and
most important comic strip feature in said magazine. In
recognition of such popularity and importance the feature
¢‘Superman’’ is prominently displayed by way of feature
announcement on the covers of the issues of ‘‘Action
Comics”’ for December, 1938 and February, March and
April, 1939. In the June, 1938, December, 1938 an_d
Mareh, 1939 issues of ‘‘Action Comics”, *‘Superman’ 1s

the central theme of the cover display.

17. Defendant, Bruns Publications, Ine., has an‘oﬁce
in the same building as plaintiff. Within t}}e year prior tg
the commencement of this action, its pi*eﬁ{dent, \.Tl_ct:urf S.
Fox, who directs its affairs and controls 1ts poémmsle dx;
quently called at plainiff;s Gﬂiée ;};«;}’ ’hzi dfuﬁs l;gl "
of the existence of ‘‘Action L0 P :
feature ‘‘Superman’’ and knew that the sarfl?P :ﬁ:ﬁ?ﬁi};
righted by plaintiff. Said defendant, Bruns e ater.
Ine., and defendants, Kable News C{iﬁiiﬁg’s  agazine
borough News Co, had access to pial

. s thereof
¢ Action Comics’’ and to the ffrmﬁ}p%}, f:ﬁ;ﬁ publiea-
entitled ¢‘Superman’’ for some time ?fl@;iz;éiéai entitled
tion and distribution of the infringing P

3 red to.
¢¢Wonder Comics’’ hereinafter referr

usions of Law. 505

506

507
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210
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On or about March 15, 1939 defendant, Brung
18, M Tne., published or caused to be published anq
P ﬁbhﬁatwm;hg ;;mrket for sale to the general publie
placed Qj:lh United States and elsewhere, a periodiea]
thrfi‘llgh“_ggon der Comics’’, May, 1939 issue thereof, being
entitﬁl:i e 0 ¢ said magazine. A copy of said issue of
:ziea p;riaéieal entitled “‘Wﬂﬂder.cﬁ)méesn’ }%sye of May,
1939 is in evidence herein as Plalntlff s Exhibit 23. T.]m
<ame consists of comic cartoons, telling complete stories

or stories 1n serialized form.

19. Said May, 1939 1ssue of said periodical entitled
«Wonder Comics”’ contains 64 pages (the same number
of pages as ¢« Aetion Comics’’), has the same page size
as ““Action Comics”’ and the retail sales price thereof is
10¢ per eopy, the same retail sales price per copy as ‘‘Ac-
tion Comics’’.

20, The first and principal feature of said May, 1939
issue of said periodical entitled ‘‘ Wonder Comies’’ is a
14 page comic strip entitled ‘““Wonder Man’’, describing
the exploits of a human being possessed of superhuman
attributes. Said comic strip entitled ‘“Wonder Man’’ is
directly copied after plaintiff’s comic strip entitled ‘‘Su-
perman’. Said comic strip character called ‘‘Wonder
Man”’ is, except for a different device on the chest, di-

rectly copied after plaintiff’s comic strip character ‘‘Su-
perman’’,

21. Defendant, Bruns Publications, Inc., has copied
plaintiff’s copyright and has paraphrased plaintiff’s tex-
'tﬁa{ matfmal accompanying the pictures in plaintiff’s
comie strip entitled “‘Superman’’, Specific instances and

amples of such copying are as follows:

L e A

A
i
£
§§~ -K\
B
o
4
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(a) ‘“‘Superman?®’
of superhuman power
““Wonder Man”
possessed of

18 a normal human being
s of strength and speed,

" is likewise a mnormal human being
superliuman powers of strength and speed.

possessed

(b) “superman” conceals his strength beneath ordi-
nary clothing and stands revealed in his true character

only aft.er r.emoving bis regular garments and appearing
in a skin tight acrobatic uniform emblazoned with the
letter ‘‘S’’ on his chest. The color of the uniform is blye

with trunks of extra color (Plaintiff’s Exhibit 17, Novem- 512
ber, 1938 issue of ‘‘ Action Comies”’, p. 8).

“Wonder Man”’ likewise conceals his strength be-

neath ordinary eclothing and stands revealed in his true
character only after removing his regular garments and
appearing in a skin tight acrobatic uniform. Such uni-
form is emblazoned with the letter ““W’’ on his chest.

The eolor of the uniform is red with trunks of extra color
(Plaintiff’s Exhibit 23, p. 4).

(¢c) “‘Superman’’ is stated to be ‘“‘champion of the
oppressed’’ (Plaintift’s Exhibit 12, June, 1938 issue of
¢t Action Comices’’, p. 1). . ) s

«Wonder Man” is likewise stated to be champion ©
the oppressed’’ (Plaintiff’s Exhibit 23, p. 1).

' ing toward a full
d) “‘Superman’’ 1s pertrayed*mnnmg‘ owar {
m{fmz ¢off into the night”’ (Plaintiff’s Exhibit 21, Mareh,

' ' ies”’, p. 12).
1939 issue of ‘‘Action Comies™, P .
«“Wonder Man?’ is likewise pertr*ay*?d ‘m’ﬂngggh :ﬁgga;i
a full moon ‘‘off into the night” (Plaintiff’s ib

p. 13).

an’
(e) The hand of ‘‘Superman “*
gun with the legend appearing Over the

» ig shown crushing 8
picture ‘‘then

N

[ YRR
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515

516

crushes it to 2 pulp”’ (Pla.intiﬁ’s Exhibit 18, December,
1938 issue of «¢ Action Comics’’, P 5).

¢ «Wonder Man’’ is also shown crushing g
earing above the picture being “in.
he gun and crushes it in its grasp”

The hand ©
gun; the legend app
stead a hand seizes t
(Plaintiff s Exhibit 23, p. 9).

(f) «Superman’’ is portrayed as having succeeded in
beating a bullet to its target and preventing its harming
the intended target by interposing his impenetrable fig-
are {Plaintiff’s Exhibit 19, January, 1939 issue of ““Aec-

tion Comics’’, p. 9).
«Wonder Man’' is shown stopping and throwing back

shells (Plaintiff’s Exhibit 23, p. 8).

(g) “‘Superman’’ is impervious to bullets; he is pie-
tured as being shot at by three men each holding a gun,
but remaining unharmed (Plaintiff’s Exhibit 13, July
1938 issue of ‘‘Action Comics”’, p. 2). ’

“Wonder Man’’ is likewise impervious to bullets. He
is likewise shown being shot at by three men each holding
a gun, one of them stating: ‘‘It’s no use—bullets can’t
penetrate his gkin’’ (Plaintiff’s Exhibit 23, p. 13).

(h) ‘““Superman’ is shown leapi
‘5 v pmg over a twent
story bgﬂdmg (Plaintiff’s Exhibit 12, June, 1938 issuz
of ‘“Action Comics’’, p. 1). ’

“Wonder Man”’ is pictured leapi 11di

o Ma eaping from building to
‘l::i%lrdn:ig (Plamtzﬁ' 's Exhibit 23, p. 9). This picturg of
wve{i‘n ?rpﬁlén’j 1’3 similar in action and portrayal to the
eove jf “Aa-lt!}tlﬁ 8 E’xhibit 18, being the December, 1938
e middle‘ {f}mn Comies’’ and to the picture appearing in
the 3 of page twelve of Plaintiff’s Exhibit 12, being
the une, 1938 issue of ‘‘Aection Comiecs’’, ’
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(1) “Superman’’ ig " : :
ugm?-r.nan bhattle agai;siezirgbi?ngs*lgﬁzécef‘,g a-ged.in.hig
Exhibit .18, December, 1938 issue of “‘l;etisn (EPlEfH:-El,ﬁ’S
':l)ad It 13{&15?, stated that “he battles the for)(?;glco? :a\ﬁl
?}n ! ;TIJU.S ice” (Plaintiff’s Exhibit 21, March, 1939 issue,
“Won@er Man’ is described as ‘‘relentless foe of all
that is evil and unjust” (Plaintiff’s Exhibit 23, p. 1) )

(j) ‘‘Superman’’ is pictured as ripping open a steel

door (Plaintiff’s Wxhibit 12, June, 1938 issue of “*Action 518

Comies”’, p. 3).
«“Wonder Man’’ is pictured as ripping through a steel

door (Plaintiff’s Exhibit 23, p. 10).

(k) ‘‘Superman’’ is stated to be ‘‘the strongest man
on earth’’ (Plaintiff’s Exhibit 17, November, 1938 issue
of ‘‘Action Comies”’, p. 1).

«Wonder Man’’ is stated to be ‘‘the strongest human
on earth” (Plaintiff’s Exhibit 23, p. 1).

99. Jerome Siegel, writer, and Joe Shuster, artist,
collaborated in the creation of the comic strip character
¢¢Superman’’ and created the same in 1933. The matari.al
appearing in the ¢Quperman’’ comic strip in the ﬁrst: 18-
sue of ‘‘Action Comics” (June, 1938 issue, Plaintiff’s

Fxhibit 12) was prepared by them in 1934.

93. Said Jerome Siegel and Joe Shu‘ster on or abont
March 1, 1938, for a valnable consideration pgud; to th@n;
by plaintiff, assigned and transferrad’to pla;,int;ﬁ; aﬁ}h ;
their rights and copyrights in and to said comic i@rg@@@:
acter *‘Superman’’ and in gnd to tha’ ?ngﬁil ;rg N

't the ‘‘Supermal . |
Ei‘giri;g?ﬁ a‘(:}AZiion Clomics”’ (June, 1938 1s80¢ thereof,
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Plaintiff’s Exhibit 12). Since March 1, 1938 qerﬂme
Qiegel and Joe Shuster have ereate(}’ all t}.lﬁ ma.tem%] ap-
pearing 1o each of the “sﬁp@fmaﬂ: comie strips in all
igsmes of plaintiff’s magazine “ Action Cor}ne:g” pursuant
to employment for that purpose by plaintiff and sajq

Jerome Siegel and Joe Shuster have received from plain.
tiff compensation therefor,

94. Defendants, Kable News Company and Interbor-

ough News Co., were retained by defepdant, Bruns Pub.

591 lications, Ine., to distribute said magazine ‘““Wonder Com-
ies”’ to dealers in periodicals throughout the TUnited
States and elsewhere and said defendants, Kable News
Company and Interborough News Co., have distributed
230,000 copies or thereabouts of said magazine ‘‘Wonder

Comics’’ to dealers thereof for sale to the general public
throughout the United States and elsewhere,

RN e SRR T T R RS e e o

Coxnorusions oF Law.

1. This court has jurisdiction of the cause of action

herein as the same is a suit in equity arising under the
500 Copyright Laws of the United States.

2. This court has jurisdiction over the persons of the
defendants and each of them.

3. T:here was duly secured to plaintiff, its successors
and assigns, as provided by law for the first term of
i}veﬁty»«gight, years from the respective dates of publica-
t%az& above referred to in Finding No. 9, the exclusive
%‘%ghita and privileges in and to the copyrights of each of
the issues of the periodical * Action Comios’’ therein Te-

reg ughout the United States and territories

R el IS .
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clusions of Law.
thereof, including the gole libert

print, reprint, publish, coOpy an

Y and exclusive right to
periodicals.

d vend gaid copyrighted

4. Plaintiff’s aforesaid copyrights are good and valid
and owned by plaintiff,

5. Plaintiff’s aforesaid copyrights have been in-
fringed by defendants by virtne of the publication and

distribution of the May, 1939 issne of the periodical en-
titled ‘“Wonder Comics’’,

Dated, May 11th, 1939,

WooLsky,
United States District Judge.
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